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DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

i Tlmely Petltlon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by Petttloner herem and notlce gwen to ali
parttes, the Comrmssmn aﬂer cons;denng the issues’ of causal connectlon, _medtcal expenses RN
- temporary total dlsablhty, temporary partial dtsablhty, maintenance and permanent disability, and o
o -"_-bemg advised of the facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts the Dec1smn of. the Arbltrator Wthh is
S attached hereto and made a part hereof : : SRR T : o

1-_ IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the DeCISlon Of ihe i
. -Arbltrator ﬁled July 29, 2019 is hereby afﬁrmed and adopted : '

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION tbat the Respondent pay to_ P
Pet1txoner xnterest under §19(n) of the Act 1f any ' _ _

| IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shall have o
 credit for all amounts patd 1f any, to or on behaif of the Petltloner on account of sald accrdental e

: ;njury

_ Based upon the named Respondent hereln no bond is set by the Comnnssmn 820 [LCS ;
_ 305/]9@)(2) _ SR : _ '
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D The party commencmg the proceedmgs for review in the Clrcult Court shali ﬁle w1th the
: Cormmssmn a Notice of Intent to File for Rev1ew in C1rcu1t Court o SRR -

'-DATED -.2921 O e T B
0022321 MAR ’ oo Kathryn A-Doerries - o0
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ILLIND!S WORKERS COMPENSATiON CDMWSS!ON
' ' NOTICE OF ARBITRATOR DEC!SION I

DICKMAN, LAWRENCE S Cased '1_4_\:\:90_(3'_'1'7937}_1_.
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| CITY OF ELGIN/ELG!NPOL;CE 211w00002 -

_ _Empioyen’Respondent

On 7/791’2019 an arb1trat10n decmon on th1s case was ﬁled W 1th thc Ilimcns Workr.rs COmpensatlon
_'.Comm1ss1on 1 Chlcago a copy of wluch 1s enclosed e ARGE S
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ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION
ARBITRATION DECISION N :

 Lawrence Dickman | o Case# 14wc_ 1793

- ';Etnployee/?etltloner e DR

Employerf[{espendem - e

An Applwarzon for Ad]ustment of Clazm was' ﬁled in th;s matter, and a Nol‘zce of Hearzng was ma.xled to each

~ party. The matter was heard by the. Honorab}e Ch rlstlne M. Ory, Arbitrator of. the. Commission,‘in the’ city. of - _. G

- Geneva, on December 13, 2018. After Teviewing all of the evidence presented; the. Arbxtrator hereby makes _

'- -_'--ﬁndlngs on the dlsputed 1ssues checked ‘oelow and attaches those ﬁndmgs to thls document B e ;

. DISPUTED ISSUES

. . Was Respondent operatmg ander and subject to_" he. Ill" .GIS Workers Compensatlon or Occupatlonal _ ': :_' |

. What was the date ofthe acc1dent‘?--' o

. Was tunely not:ce of the accldent glven to Respondent‘? SR S

X s Petmoners current condltzon of 1ll-bemg eausally related to the 1nJury‘? S

. What were Petmoners earnmgs‘? R LA RERY

. What was Petltioner s_age at’ the tlme of the accldent‘? SRS R

. What was Petitioner s;mantal status at the time of the acc1dent‘? N SRR

X ‘Were the medxcal services that were provxded o Petitioner reasonable and necessary‘? Has Respondent e
pald all appropnate charges for all reasonable and 1 necessary med1cal servlces? s o

X What temporary beneﬁts are mdlspute‘? R : S ol

L X TPD X Mamtenance i X TTD

._L. X What is the natu;re and extent of the mgury‘? I

M. . Should penaltles or fees be 1mposed upon: Respondent" R

N X 1Is Respondent due any credlt for hohday pay‘? R

'-O D Other o . _ i

lCArbDec 2/10 100 W Rando{ph Srreet #8-. 200 Chicago I 60601 312/814 6611 ~Toll; free 866/35? 3033 Web site! www.iwee, JI gov
Downs?aie oﬁces Callmswlle 3} 8/346-3450 Peor:a 309/671 3019 Rocﬁfard 8 15/987- ?292 Sprmgﬁeld 21 7/785 7084 o
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On January 12, 2014, Respondent was operating under and subject to the provrslons of the Act

FINDINGS

On this date, an employee employer relationship did exist between Petltroner and Respondent

On th1s date Petitioner dm’ sustain an acc1dent that arose out of and in the course of employment
Tlmely notice of this accrdent was given to Respondent | |

Petitioner’s current condition of ill- bemg is not causally related to the accrdent

In the year precedmg the n‘gury, Petlnoner earned $90, 354 68; the average weekiy wage was $1,737. 59
_On the date of accident, Petitioner was 51 years of age, marrted w1th 1 dependent chﬂd

Petrtxoner has recerved ali reasonable and necessary rned1ca1 services.
| Respondent has not paid a.li appropnate charges for all reasonab}e and necessary medrcal services.

To date, Respondent has paid $0 in TTD and/or for mamtenance beneﬁts and is entltIed toa eredrt for any and
all amounts pard . o _ o

Respondent shall be given a credrt of $28 629 03 for TTD/mamtenance and $0 for other beneﬁts, for a total
credit of $28, 629 93. _

Respondent is entitled to a credrt of $0 under Section 8()) of the Act
ORDER
Temporary Total Disability
Respondent owes and has paid temporary total disability from January 13, 2104 to Apnl 27,2014; July 24, 2014
to August 20, 2014 and September 30, 20&4 to November 7,2014, whrch is 24-4/7 weeks @ $1 158 39 per. week
Medical Benef ts
Respondent shall pay $2, 455.36 to ATI Physwal Therapy for the FCE of November 20 2014 sub_] ect to the fee
schedule and pursuant to §8 and §8.2 of the Act and subject to credit for any payments made by respondent
directly or pursuant to §83 of the Act. ' _
- Permanent Disability - : ' ' '
Respondent shall pay Petmoner the sum of $721 66/week for a perrod of 7 1 5 weeks as prov1ded in §8 (e) 12
- because the injury ‘caused 5% loss of use of the left leg and 5% loss of use. of the rlght leg and as provrded in
§8 (d) 2 of the Act, because the i 1nJur1es sustamed caused 10% loss of use of person as a whole
Respondent s Credit - ' _
Respondent s claim for credit for hohday pay is derned -
'RULES REGARD!NG ArpeaLs Unless a Petition for Review is ﬁled within 30 days a:ﬂer recerpt of thls decrsron -and
areview is perfected in accordance wrth the Act and RuIes then thls dec1sron shail be entered as the decrslon of
' the Commission.
STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commrssron reviews this award rnterest at the rate set forth on the Notlce of
Decision of Arbitraior shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if
an employee s appeai results i in either no change ora decrease in tl'ns award mterest shail not accrue '

July 23,2019

Date

Signature of Arbitrator
 ICArbDec p.2 -

L 29 2019
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BEF ORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

-Lawrence D:ckman g :

Petltmner, o ) RS
SR VS : E )N 14WC1793 '
o -Clty of Elgm/Elgm Pollce Dept ) REERS

Respondent

ADDENDUM T() ARBITRATOR’S DECISION
FIN])INGS OF FACTS AND C()NCLUSIONS OF LAW

- Th;s matter proceeded to hearmg in Geneva on December 13 2018 The parttes agreed
g that on J anuary 12,2014 petitioner and respondent were operating. under the Nlinois Worker’s -

21racc‘

_-:-Compensatlon or Occupatxonal Diseases Act and that the1r reiatlonshlp ‘was one of employee and S

B :employer _They agree Petitioner sustained acc1dental injuries that arose outof and in the course S
- of his employment wrth respondent and petltloner gave notxce to respondent of the acc1dent

i within the time’ limits stated in‘the Act The partres agree petitloner ‘earried $90, 354 68 i in the

. year predatmg the acctdent and that hrs average weekiy Wage calculated pursuant to §10 was B
L 1173759 _ : PR R
o _ _--'At 1ssue at thxs hearmg was as foHows

2 Whether reSpondent 1s. hable for the unpaid'medleal'.btlis

s current condition of 111—bezng is causally connected to the clarmedﬂ_‘ B

- -'.-.':;Whether petrttoner 18 due temporary total dlsablhty, temporary partlal dlsabthty and_ g

i ...-"'Whether respondent is entztled to credlt for $1 666 77 hohday pay ”:'_. e i
| | STATEMENT OF FACTS |

Petltloner clalms temporary total drsabrhty from January 13 2014 to Apnl 27 2014 J uly' 0

g 24 2014 to August 20 2014 and September 30,2014 10 January 15, 2015; maintenance beneﬁts.j_-_-' - :
: -'_frorn January 16; 12015 1o November 14, 2015 and from May 1, 2018 to October 2018 and

" _ temporary partral chsabiirty from November 15, 2015 to Aprr} 30,2018,

'Respondent stipulated the only benefits petrtloner is entitled is temporary total dlsablllty: o

: '_'beneﬁts from January 13,2104 to Apnl 27 2014 July 24, 2014to August20 2014and September_' |
_'-30 2014 to November 7, 2014 o Gt T

= Petltloner tesnﬁed he now 1s empioyed by Abbott Protectron whrch isa company he started o
in }uly, 2018, along with two other partners. He has taken $2700 to date as the company is still

. growing. He expected to take another $2,000 to: $3,000 in sa1ary before the end of the year. ‘They

install security cameras and other securrty related items. Previous to startmg Abbot Protection, he
was employed by ] Montfort Electronics as an outside sales representatrve from November 15,2015
until: Apnl 30, 2018 ‘when “he ‘was laid off He: received payment from" Monfort Electromcs Lo
(PX 33). From Aprrl 30 2018 to }uly, 2018 petrtroner was pald unemployment and was lookmg :
-for work ' _ | o

Pg:lflﬂ S
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Before working for Montfort Electronics he was employed by respondent. He was hired on
April 7, 2004 as a police officer and worked until he was terminated in December, 2016, He
worked as a patrol officer. On January 12, 2014, petitioner was on a call to a shooting. When he
arrived, petitioner found the police tape had fallen down that was around the scene. As he walked . . .
over to secure the tape, he slipped on icé that was not visible; he fell almost into the splits. His
left leg went out and he fell on his rlght knee He broke is fall with his hands. He felt pam in his
Ieft knee.

At Acting Sergeant Ericson’s insistence, an ambulance was ca]led and petltroner was
transported to St. Joseph Hospital in Elgin, where he was given a brace for his leg. He then was
seen at respondent s occupational clinic. Petrtloner reported the day after. the aomdent he awoke
w1th pain in his right hip and lower back.

-~ He received treatment from Fox Valley Orthopaedrcs by Dr. Sostak Dr Popp and Dr.
Siodlarz from January 15, 2014 to Aprrl 29, 2016. During the perrod petitioner received treatment
at Fox Valley Orthopaedics his knee pain resolved, but his back got worse.

~ Prior to his employment ‘with respondent, he mjured his lower back wh;ie workmg in
Costco’s warehouse. He received physical therapy only for that injury. - :

. He also received chrropractlc treatment from Dr. McGowan in 2013 He had some dull
ache in his back. After the January 12 2014 acc1dent the pain was located at the warst level that
radiated into the left buttocks. .~

Petitioner had MRIs done on Apnl 15 2014 October 9, 2014 a.nd Apr11 27 2016 He had

an arthrogram and a MRI of the right hip on April 15 2014 On November 20 2014 he underwent
~ afunctional capacity evaluationat ATL. .

Petitioner also came under the care of Dr Aruna Ganju of Northwestem from May 12,

2016 to December, 2016. Dr. Ganju performed surgery to petitioner’s lower back on June 23,
2016. Petitioner was discharged from Dr. Ganju’s care on December 28, 2016 with the restrictions

of no physical altercations. Petitioner also was not to sit in a vehicle for any length of time.
' Petitioner testified he did not believe he could perform the dutles of a police officer safely
the way he feeis He would not be able to sit in the patroi car Weanng a duty belt or chase after
people or take down anyone.

He acknowledged he received the termination letter (RX 26) However, he was never
released to return to work as a police officer by hrs treating physicians.

- Petitioner was seen by Dr. Jeffrey Coe on January 5, 2016 at his attorney S request " He
was seen by Dr. Rodarte at respondent’s request for a fitness for duty examination on November
25, 2014 pursuant to the collective bargaining agreement Dr. Rodarte did not find petitioner
capable of workmg as a pohce officer.. On J anuary 28,2015 Dr. Popp stated petmoner couid not
return to work as a pohce officer;

After petitioner applied for a pensmn he was seen by vanous doctors He was exammed
by Dr. Theodore Suchy on May 11, 2014 (sic), who said he could not return to work as a pollce
officer. He was examined by Dr. Mark Levm on Apnl 17 2015 who felt petrtloner could return
to work asa pohce officer. - -

At respondent’s request he was seen by Dr Jay Levm on October 15 2014 who beheved
petmoner could return to work as a police officer.

Petitioner has pain in his back at waist-level, espec1ally after domg mstallatxon work in hrs _
new company He had relief after surgery; the pain then started within one month after workmg
for hrs new company He worked Six days in a oW domg a heavy job with hls new oompany and

Page 2 of 10



}Ga:l Cohen .}anuary 26,20151
o _-.Dr Rxehard Rodarte May 22, 201 _Deposn‘,mn (PX 2) .
o _:_November 20,2014

- Petitioner underwent a .ahd FCE on Novernber 20, 2014 wlneh showed he was not capable o S o Sl
not. hkeiy abie to apprehend and arrest:- el

! _of toleratmg proionged srtt____g
SRR :subjects as thzs would be in the very heavy physrcal demand levei

S ._ _- 11 201 5, and reviewed medical record:

: .'_7:-_:..14W _1793 Lawrence chkmanv Ctty ofEEgm/Elg:nPD 2 1 I %%f C @ ' 2

'_'.._-:had reai problems wrth h1s back Petltloner conﬁrmed hrs knee and hrp pam resolved wrthm
o ._months after the. aecrdent ey e -

On' Cross- evam;mnon pemroner connrmed hc does ttzno oftoo1 boxes and matc rnEs as o

- weH as gomg up and down ]adders to perform the mstallat:on of security systems

. Petitioner: conﬂrmed he had recelved treatment: by Dr McGowan of AccuCare durlng the e

summer of 2013. He also confirmed how his _back felt at the time of the treatment.

*. | Petitioner testified he asked Dr. Ganju to prov1de a restriction note as Dr. Ganju Was notE G

irivolved w:th the work eomp case at all and wasn t part of any of the paper work

etter (PX i & RX. 21)

R Ms -Cohen’s letter confirms petluoner has perrnanent restnctions accordlng to Dr 35}.:-“._ o o
_-Rodaﬁe s exam of November 25 2014 and the November 20 2014 FCE that prevents hlm from S

o returnmg to work asa

S * Dr. Richard Rodarte, board certified in preventanve and occupational medrcme, tesnﬁed_'_'_ S
“in behalf of petmoner' Dr. Rodarte performed a ﬁtness—for-pohce duty of petltroner on November e

| ':_25 2014 at respondent srequest

- Dr Rodarte, in strong. rehance of the FCE concluded pe’utloner was not ﬁt for duty as a' : .:...: B

: pohce 'ofﬁcer as he: could notbe mvolved with physrcal altercations or in emergeney evacuation - -

beyond 50 minutes ang

__':Dr. Theodore Suchy May 1 2018 Dep psition (P)

L situations (11 12) He was not asked to glve a causal connectlon oplmon as to the work accndent S o

- Dr. Theodore: Suchy, board certlﬁed .m orthopedlc surgery and as an mdependent medrcal e

" examrner testlﬁed in behalf of petmoner

Dr. Suchy exammed petmoner at__the reduest of respondent’s pohee pensmn board on May S o

Dr. ‘Suchy concluded: petxtloner suffered a left knee and right’ hip i injury that had resolved

lative to the petxtloner s January 12,2014 work accident. o SR "

7 Dr. Suchy aiso mdrcaied petitioner had pre—ex1st1ng degeneratlve discdisease of the lumbar spine, - o

o petltroner from: returmng 1o work as a pohce officer. -

. _-and scohosrs that had been exacerbated Dr. Suchy beheved the back mjury was preventmg::- o

- Although petrtloner advised Dr. Suchy'1 that he had a pnor back mjury claxm w1th Cos’tco o

C EWhaeh ‘according to petitioner ‘had resolved, he failed to adv1se Dr. Suchy of similar low back
B _compiamts for whxch he sought treatment from a chn‘opractor in J uIy and August 201 3

| _ .Dr Jeffrey E. Coe August 5 2016 I)eposxtmn (PX.S)

Dr. J effrey Coe, board-certzﬁed specialist in occupatronal medlcme testrﬁed in behaif of
' peiztloner At the request of petmoner s attorney, Dr. Coe performed an exam of petltloner on -

o January 5, 2016 In conjunctlon w1th the exam Dr Coe rev1ewed medical records and other
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materials. Petitioner reported a back myjury in 2003 that had resolved with physical thcrapv He
reported he was pain free from 2003 unti! the fall on January 12, 2014. - '

Based upon petitioner’s history and the medical records provided. Dr. Coe detummcd
. petltioner continued to need work restrictions, as a result.of the work accident of January 12,2014,
Dr. Cog believed the addltlonal treatment received after his exam on January 5, 2016, including
the June 23, 2016 surgery by Dr. Ganju was reasonable and necessary to treat petxtloner of his
work injury. :

- On cross- exammatlon Dr Coe conﬁrmed he had not seen any chzroprac'uc records
regarding petitioner. Dr. Coe also confirmed he had not reviewed any actual diaghostic studies,
including MRIs or X-rays. Dr. Coe agreed the synov1al cyst had developed between the October,
2014 MRI and the 2016 MRL. Dr. Coe agreed the synov1al cyst had reduced from the Apnl 15,
2()14 MRI to the October 9 2014 . .

Presence St Joseph Hosp:tal Records (PX 6) '
o Petitioner presented at the emergency. room: on January 12 2014 aﬂer falling. while
working. He reported domg the sphts and falhng on his left knee H1s complamts were hnnted to
~ his left knee. '

Petitioner was seen on Ianuary 13, 2014 by Occupational Health He had compiamts of
pain in his left kne¢ and mild low back complaints. ' The dlagnosm was acute spraln of the left
medial knee and mild strain to the left low back; slowly heahng L :

' The records also mciude a Septernber 15 2014 bone scan.

F ox Valley Orthopaedic Records (PX 7)
Petitioner was first seen on January 15, 2014 by Dr. James Sostak with left knee
complamts The dlagnOSIS was leﬁ knee medlal collateral hgament spraln Petltioner was kept off
work.
' On January 28 2014 he was seen agaln by Dr Sostak in follow up to ?ms leﬁ knee He
now complained of lower: left back and buttock and right groin pain for two to. three weeks after
the fall: Petitioner admitted he had pain in hlS low back in the past, but it is now worse. Diagnosis
was Jower back sprain, sprain/strain knee medial collaterai and b11ateral hlp strams Phys1cal
therapy was prescribed. Petitioner continued off work.
Petiuoner was seen again by Dr. Sostak on F ebruary 25, 2014 He Was contmmng phys1cai |
therapy ‘and was to transition to work condmomng B
' - He returned to Dr. Sostak on April 21, 2014 to. dlscuss the result of the nght hxp MRI
_ On April 24, 2014 petltloner was ﬁrst seen by Dr. Craig Popp for low back and left leg
pain.. Dr Popp noted the CT scan showed: osteophytes around the facet Jomt that was aggravated
by the accident/fall. SI injections were recommended. L
"~ Petitioner was seen on May 5, 2()14 by Dr. Smdlarz who performed lumbar facet mjecnons
on May 15,2014, -~ -
. Petitioner was seen. by Dx Sostak on Iune 4 2{)14 in follow up to hlS left knee spram and
' nght hip flexor strain. Petitioner recelved a cortisone injection for his rlght h1p on June 17, 2014
by Dr. Siodlarz. Petltloner was seen again by Dr. Sostak on June 30, 2014.. _
_ - Petitioner. was seen by . Dr. Siodlarz on' August 20, 2014 after completmg work .
condltiomng A stermd mjectlon was offered : SR

Page40f10 .
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He was'seen by Dr Popp on August 29 2014 as follow up tor Eow back pam A bone scan.f_ S

was recommended On September 30, 2014 petltroner foitowed up. w1th Dr Popp Dr Popp o :

; recommended petrtzoner obtain-another MRT and. kept petitioner off work

Petmoner underwent another MRI on October 9,2014 which showed no ev1dence of the o '

synov1a1 cyst at the 1.3: L4 leve} ‘Therey was no focal nerve root dlsplacement :

S 0On October 13 2014 Dr. Popp concluded surgery was not the: answer and recommended-
: _'a functlonal capacrty evaluatlon to determined’ petltroner § restrrctmns DR R
Petltloner was seen by Dr. Popp on December 4, 2014, after undergomg a FCE and ﬁt for e

";lduty evaluatlon;- Dr. Popp noted petltloner-could not return to work as a police ofﬁcer _as he eouId-_.,'_ I

~not'sit contmuously Dr. Popp though petitioner had suffered a szgmﬁcant eontusron 0 he_-bone o

g possible micro fracture. Dr. Popp also determined the ‘myofascial type injury had healed. Dr.

: “-Popp further stated petifioner’s preexisting’ degenerative. eondmon had become aggravated'_'f_' 5 S

¥ _-.'iFox Van" Orthopaedle Records (PX,S)

o Petmoner was seen by Popp on August 28 2015 Dr Popp reported no change s:mce he"--_ R

' f"iast saw petltzoner g
L Petitioner was next seen by Dr. Popp on Apnl 21 2016 Petltroner reported spendmg a lot S
_of time in the car as he was now. emp}oyed ds an outs1de sales representatzve He complamed of S

2 _numbness down hlS Teft leg and into the top: of the foot:: A1 new MRI was ordered..

~The Apml 26, 2016 showed a return of the synovial cyst at the 1314 level. Dr Popp noted' L

Aecordmg to the disablhty eotes, petltloner was eompietely drsabled from January 15 .

' ':':ion Aprxi 29 , 2016 there was progresszon of the synovral cyst at the L3 L4 Ievel and recommended_ o i

2014 10 May 16, 2014; from June 10, 2014 to June 17, 2014; from September 30, 2014 to -
o 'December4 2014 Ali other penods after January 12 2014 petltloner was. released to restrrcted-_;_'--_-"' '

x Work only

I ATI Physu:al Therapy Blll (PX 10 PX 15 PX 16 PX.25)
L $2 455. 36~FCE 11/20/2014 i
$3 382 '62"P T._ 08/19/2{)16 09/06/2016

o _Northwestern Medlcmell)r Aruna Gan]u Reeords (PX.I i) SR ' SR
- Petitioner was first seen. by Dr. Ganju on May 12 2016 for low baok pam whlch he related L

back 1o aceldent of Eanuary 2014 Dr. Ganju’ S nnpressmn was, lumbar stenosis- secondary to ST

: synovxal cystat L3-4. An EMG was ordered The May 12,2016 EMG was ‘normal. ‘OnMay 19,

:2016, Dr. Ganju recommended a mlmmally invasive decompressmn at, L3 ~4 that. was camed out S

- .on June 23 2{)16 ()n July ’7 2(}16 CNP Noel Burks reported petmoner was domg well

| '_ Dr Aruna Ganju December 28 2016 Cernficatlon to Retnm to ‘Work (PX 12) =
... OnDecember 28, 2016, Dr. Ganju wrote restrictions for petxtroner not to be subjected to
physwal altercatlons no hﬁmg greater than 100 pounds allow breaks ﬁ-om srttmg in car and allow :

: breaks from weanng belt welghmg 10 pounds or more.

Cbagesetio
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AccuCare Total Health (PX. 13) |

- Petitioner was seen from July 16, 2013 to August 21, 2013 for low back and cervical
comphmtq ' : : :

Fox Valley Orthopaedlcs Blll (PX 14 PX 20 PX 22 PX 24) : '
; -The bill for services rendered from April 21, 2016 to May 10, 2016 totals $2 658.00.
Notlce from colIec’uon agency of balance due on Fox Valley Orthopaedics bill of $750.18

May 9,2015 Emaxl from Murphy to Beer (PX 23)
' On May 9, 2015 Attomey Murphy sent an email to Attomey Beer demandmg vocatlonal
rehablhtatlon . . : _

Northwestem Medlclne Blll PX. 17 PX 18; PX 21; PX 26) _
' ~ Physicians and hospltai charges for services rendered from May 12 2016 to J une 23 201 6
) totaled $53,245.04
- There is an additional bill totaling $357. 06 for services rendered May 12 2106 to }une 23,
2016. . _
Ballert Orthopedic Bill (PX. 19 & PX. 27)
- Phafmaéy bilis totals $849.37.

Petttioner S Bxll for Health Insurance (PX. 28) : -
Bills from respondent to petitioner for health i insurance from June 2016 to June 2017

Notice from Cigna of Out of Network Claim (PX.29)
‘ Notlce of blll from Stephame Crall that was out of ngna s network

Conduent Payments (PX 30 & PX 32) .
‘Payments made by the petltloner s wife’s insurance.

Respondent Payment to Petmoner (PX.31) ; ' '
Pet1t1oner ] payment by respondent from Ianuary 3, 2014 to February 13 201 5

Monfort Electromc Paycheck (PX 33) :
' Petmoner s paycheck was in the gross amount of $3, 000 00

| AccuCare Total Health (RX l)
Same records as Peutioner S Exhlblt 13

})r. Jay Lawrence Levm Curriculum Vltae (RX 2) : N
Dr. Jay Levm sCV reports his education and practlce and mdlcates he is board certlﬁed in
orthopaedxc su:rgery and as an mdependent medlcai examiner. - :

| .October 1, 2014 letter to Dr Jay Levm and Dr Levm October 14, 2014 Report (RX 3 & 4)

Dr. Jay Levin examined petmoner on October 15, 2014 and reviewed medical records and
dlagnostxc studles the dlagnosm was muitlievel degeneratlve arthritis of the lumbar spme with

. Page6 ef 10
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- 'iumbar myotasmal stram Dr Jay Levm conciuded petmoner had reached max1mum medical..

: _'1mprovement and was capable of 1 retummg to work wrthout restrlctlons However D1 Jajy Levm .
"ﬁgteed a ﬁmctsonal C'ip‘lCitV ovslmhon was in order ' - % : .

: Apl‘ll 22 2016 letter to Dr. Jay Levm Dr Levm Aprll 27 & May 16 2616 Reports (RXS& 6) - '.
S ~Petitioner retumed to Dr. Jay. Levm at respondent 8 requeston Apnl 27, 2016 Dr. Levm §°
L opxmons remamed the same relatlve to petitioner 5 lower ‘oack and rlght hlp S :

_-])r Jay Levm May 17 2016 AMA Ratulg Report (RX 7) TR NN L

S Dr Jay Levin performed an AMA- ratmg evaiuation of petxt;oner on Apnl 27 2016 and- :

SRR deterrmned petitioner had 1% whole person 1mpa1rment as weH asa zero. percent of both the nghtfi S
i _lower and Ieft lower extremny : SR S St : _. g

s -October 2 2016 letter to Dr. Jay Levm & I)r Jay Levm October 17 2016 and November 1 S

B -’2016 Reports (RX.8,9 & 10) . i : i .' FE

L - Petitionier was seen agam by Dr Levm on October 17 2(}16 At that tlme, petmoner was L
= .post-LS 14 lammectomy/cyst removal of June 23, 2016.. Dr. Levin did not believe: petltloner s
o 1am1nectomy was: necessnated by any m]ury suffered to petitzoner s lumbar spme m the J anuary o
12 2013 work acmdent N

: . Dr. Jay Levin’s AMA ratmg of petmoner s dlsablhty remamed at 1% whole person as of N
".--0ctober172016__ s P e B

ay_. Ehﬁrerlce Levaehruary 10,2017})eposmon (RXll) S e s
i Dra Jay Levm, ‘board certified orthopedic. surgeon, testified 1 in behalf of tespondent Dr G
R J ay Levm testlﬁed consmtently \mth hIS ﬁndmgs and opmxons stated in hlS reports (RX 4 6 7 9 S

:'_ _ _Dr Mark Levm Currxeulum Vitae (RX 12) S S
' Dr Mark Levm s CV reports hlS educatlon practxce and board cemﬁcatlons

Apl‘ll 9 2015 and May 9 2015 Pensmn Board Letters to Dr Mark Lev:n- Dr Mark Levm S
- April 27, 2015 and June 25 2015 Reports and Hrstory of Present Il]ness by Petltmner (RX R
Lo _14_1'n _ ¢

o Dr Mark Levm exammed petmoner at the Pensxon Board’s request and revzewed medmal RN

o reeords and dlagnostac studles and concluded petitloner was capable of returnmg to work as a

_ Petltwner s Appheation for Dlsablhty Form to The E}gm Pohce Pensmn Fund (RX 18)
- Petitioner applied fora duty pensmn on January 15 2015 ducto hls clasmed back m_]ury
on}anuarylz 2014. - o

Dr. Mark Levm Apnl 25 2018 Deposntlon (RX.19) ' IRTEEE
" Dr. Mark Levin testified in behalf of respondent after hls exam m behalf of the pensmn o
board. Dr. Mark Levm testlﬁed conslstently wath what was contamed in hls Apnl 27, 2015 and o

'June 25, 2015 reports

' .Pa'ge7.ot_10 S
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Fred Beer’s November 7, 2014 Email to Daniel Murphy (RX.20)
Respondent’s attorney’s email to petitioner’s attorney advised benefits were being
terminated based upon the findings of Dr. Levin, who determined petitioner’s ongoing problems
. were non-work related... .

Emalls (RX 22) : :
_ Emails between petltroner s and respondent s attorneys whereby petitioner demanded
vocatronal rehabrhtation and respondent’s response to same.

Daniel Murphy August 17, 2015 Letter (RX.22)
- Atforniey Murphy’s letter to Beer of August 17, 2015 adv1sed petmoner was willing to try
and return to work asa pohce officer.

Respondent’s Secondary Employment Form (RX 23)
Petitioner advised he was takmg a position as the regional sales manager with Monfort
Electromcs Marketlng : :

Fred Beer May 20 2016 Letter (RX 24) -
Beer 8 May 20, 2016 letter to Murphy advrsed petrtloner to report to work

Rlchard Kozal December 23 2016 Letter fo Petltlener (RX 25) _
Respondent’s city manager letier to petitioner advising his employment had been
terminated for abandoning his job as he had not responded to the May 20, 2016 demand to return
to work and had not completed respondent s secondary employment form..

May 12, 2916 EMG and June 23, 2016 ()peratlve Report (RX 27)

_ Petitioner’s May 12, 2016 EMG was normal. Dr. Aruna Ganju June 23, 2016 operative
report confirmed petitioner underwent a left hemﬁammotomy at L3-4 due to Eeﬂ L4 radiculopathy
from a left L3- L4 synovral eyst :

Respondent’s Payments (RX. 28) _
Respondent s payments to petrtroner ﬁom June 30 2014 to January 29, 2015,

ATIE November 20 2014 FCE Blll and Payment (RX 29)
The FCE $2, 455.36 bﬂl and respondent s reconcﬂratron of payment

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW .

The Arbltrator adopts the Fmdang of Facts in support of the Conclusrons of Law

F. Wnth respeet to the issue of whether the petltmner s condrtlon of ﬂi—bemg is related to the

injury, the Arbitrator makes the followmg conclusions. of law:

. The Asbitrator finds petitioner failed to prove that his present back condrtlon, for whrch he
underwent surgery on June 23, 2016, was caused by the work accident of January 14, 2013. In
reachmg this conclusron, the Arbltrator consrdered the foilowmg facts :

Page 8 of 10 :
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R Petitxoner had complamts in’ the 1umbar region ﬁve months prlor to the claimed acudent S
S _for whlch he. underwent chiropractac treatment ‘that brought him no relief, L :

ol Petmoner 's treating oﬂhopedfc surgeon, Dr. Charles Popp npmed on’ Dewmbcr 4 7{)}4 o

- that although petmoner had suffered a si gmhcant contusmn of the borie, or possuble Micro’ fracture RS
 he beheved petmoner 5 myofascral type injury had healed and that petltloner had reached MMI_ S
o --for the aggravation of the pre- ex1st1ng condltlon e '
' “The October 9, 2014 MRI showed no ev1dence of the synovxal cyst at the LB L4 Ievel :
Although Dr. Rodarte, -Wbo performed a ﬁtness—for—duty ~exam of pet1t10ner on November :

i "25 2014 determined petitioner was not it for duty, Dr. Rodarte was not asked to. give @ causal .
':'-_Accordmgi}’, he had no oplmon as_to the cause of-' e

>

o Aiﬂxough Dr Suchy, who exannned petltloner on May 11 2015 opmed petltloner

- ;njury was the cause of petxtloner s inability to return to work as a pehce officer, petitzoner failed -
Cte dxsciose to. Dr Suchy the fact th '
L -i-accndent_ :

sback;_;-;_ :
.: __e-’had sxrmlar complamts ﬁve months pnor t ; the work 2 i

Both Dr. Jay Levm 'who examined petmoner on October 15, 2014 and Apnl 27,2016, was%- i

_ _' ; of th pl'mon petltloner was able to work as a police: ofﬁcer desplte the work i injury, and. Dr Mark
" Levin, who examined petltloner on: Apnl 27_ 2015 at, the penswn board s "equest d1d not ﬁnd o

o .Petltrener dlsabled o |
: Aﬁer petmoner began employment as an outs1de sales "representauve in. November 201 5 Skt

L f-that by his own adrmssxon, required him- 1o spend alot of tnne in his vehicle, he returned: toDr. B =
S __Popp w1th radIatmg pam down hlS left leg and mto hJS foot on Apnl 26 2016 The Apni 29 2016 T

synov1ai cyst at the L3-L4 flevei Petmoner testiﬁed Dr Ganju s treatment was not part of the = _.

""'-_workers compensation case.

R T mally, although I Dr. Coe off_ _”ed the opmxon as to the causal connectlon of the problems - o
. -petlhoner was having with his back in 2016, for which he eventually underwent the. iammectomy I
- byDr. Ganju D}: Coe rehed upon petmoner s representaaon that his. back had been paln free from;

_".chzropracac treatment for snmiar compl'amts in July and August 2013.---._-As'Dr Coe s opmlon was e X B
] .-_based upon nnss-mformatlon and thereby ﬂawed the Arbltrator gwes httle to no value to Dr o

""::'Coe s oplmon L

"_J Wlﬂl respect to the 1ssue regardmg medlcai bills mcurred the Arb:trator makes the
fallowmg conclusmns of law: - '

“AsDr. Jay Levin agreed .th.at a :ﬁmctxonal capaaty evaluation was in order the Arbxtrator L

; awards only the costs of the: Functional Capacrcy Evaluation from ATI Phys1ca1 Therapy of -
‘November 20, 2014 in the amount of $2,455. 36, to be. pa;ld in accordance with the fee schedule
- and §8 and. §8 2 of the Act vnth credlt to be glven for any payments made by respondent dlrectiy
' orpursuantto§81 S o ST : RRRTRERN: o

Page90f10
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K. Wlth respect to the issue regardmg temporary total dlsabl!lty, temporary partial
disability and maintenance benefits, the Arbitrator makes the following conclusions of law: .
. The Arbitrator finds petitioner is entitled to temporary total disability from Januarv 13,

- 2014 to-April 27, 2014; July 24,2014 to August 20, 2{}14 and September 30, 2014 to November._ .

7, 2014 whlch is 24 4/7 weeks @ $1, 158 39 per week _ :

L. With respect to the issue regardmg the nature and extent of mjury, the Arbltrator makes
the followmg conclusions of law:

As a result of the January 12, 2014 acmdent petltloner sustamed a left knee and right hip
strain, as well as: myofasmal strain and temporary aggravatmn of the multﬂevel degeneratwe
arthritis of the lumbar spine.

- Pursuant to §8.1b of the Act, the folIowmg cntena and factors must be welghed in
determining the ievel of perrnanent partlai drsabllrty for accrdentai 1njur1es occurrmg on or after
September 1, 2011+

' Wrth tegard to subsectlon (1) of §8. lb (b) the Arbitrator noted Dr. J ay Levm provrded an
AMA 1mparrment rating of 0% for the left knee injury, 0% of the right leg for the nght h1p 1njury
and l% of the whole person The Arbrtrator gives some werght to this factor. .

- With regard to (ii) of §8. 1b (b) the occupatlon of the rnjured employee the Arb1trator

notes petltroner was employed asa pohce ofﬁcer whlch is phys1cally dernandrng Therefore the

| Arbitrator gives some weight to this factor. _
- With regard to (iii) of §8.1b (b) the age of the employce at the time of the m;ery was. 51

'years of age at the time of the occurrence. Therefore, the Arbitrator gives some welght to this -
factor.

_ With regard to (v) of §8.1b (b) the employee’s future €arning capacrty, although
petitioner claims his earning capacity has been d1rn1mshed as a result of the injury; the Arbrtrator
ﬁnds pet;troner failed to prove that his drnnmshed earning capacrty was the result of the work
injury. Therefore, the Arbitrator gives no weight to this factor.

o With regard to (v) of §8.1b (b) evidence of dlsablhty corroborated by the. treatmg medleal
records; the Arbitrator notes the medical evidence, indicate petrtioner has no lasting affect from

- his Ieft knee and right hip. Although petitioner claims ke is permanenﬁy restncted dueto his back. .
injury, the mcdleal evidence fails to support pet1t1oner sustained any permanent injury to his back,
but rather was the result of hrs pre-exrstmg degeneratlve condltron The Arbrtrator therefore grves
httie welght to thls factor. - -

Based on the above factors and the record taken asa whole the Arbltrator ﬁnds that
Petrtzoner sustained permanent partral drsabrhty to the extent of 5% loss of use of the left leg, -

: pursuant to §8 (e) 12, and 5% loss of use of the nght leg pursuant to §8 (¢) 12, and 10% loss of

use of person asa whole § 8 (d) 2 of the Act and awards 71 5 weeks PPD @ $721 66 per week

N. Wlth respect to the lssue regardmg credlt due respondent the Arbltrator makes the

foliowmg conclusrons of law: _
The respondent failed identify the prov1510ns of the Act that ma.kes it entltled to credlt for
$1, 666 77 holrday payment to petmoner Therefore, respondent’s clalm for credit is demed
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BEF ORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION

o ':_Davi dBuffan 5 _': S

 Petitioner,

SN -[ No 13 WC15398

E o Fred Groves Serv1center d/b/a Fred Groves

Respondent

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

o Tamely Petltlon for Revrew havmg been ﬁled by the Petltloner heretn and notlce g1ven to S S
all partles the Commission, after consrdermg the issues of causal connection, ‘medical expenses R

: -temporary total disability: and permanent drsablhty, and bemg advised of the facts and law,: o
reverses, in part, and afﬁrms in part the Decrsmn of the Arbrtrator Wthh 18 attached hereto and :
'_madeaparthereof RN S . : -

o "I.‘ FINDINGS OF FACT

_ _ The deelsron of the Arbttrator dehneates the facts of the case in detall As relevant to the o
- issues on review, the Commission writes additionally to address the Arbltrator s demal of
causatton wrth respect to Petrtmner s cerv1cal eond1t1on _ '

e The Comrmssron acknowledges Pettttoner S preexrstmg cerv1ca1 treatment whlch was
_ ongomg pnor to the undrsputed May 4, 2012 motor vehicle acc1dent at work. One day prior,
. Petitioner’s treatmg physician, Dr. Dickhut, noted that Petitioner had not yet plateaued regardmg
~his cervical spine.- Subsequent to the accident, Petitioner testified to headaches and i 1ncreasrng 3
: cervrcal symptoms that are corroborated by the treatment reoords

' The medrcal records reﬂect that Petltloner rnformed Dr Bersch in Dr Drckhut s office of o |

8 the acc1dent four days aﬁer the car accrdent complalrnng of dtscomfort and eoncerned about
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B '_:Whlplash On May 14 2012 Petttroner complamed of nght lower neck. pam The followmg day, _: Bos

¢ Petitioner informed Dr Drckhut’s ofﬁce that during the motor. vehlc]e accident he was. shc)ved

- forward and then his head Whrpped back towards the seat: He also stated his- hands were. on: the

: _-steermg wheel and that he braced hrrnself in. that posmon durlng nnpact Petitioner had nausea -
“and headaches that nrght and complamed of re-occurring headaches since. Dr. Bersche noted a -

o posmve cervical compressron test'on the nght and tlghtness durmg cerv;cal extension.”

o _: - _. hold in, order to get Pentroner s neck back on track- L

o _'TDecreased cetvical range of motion: (“ROM”) was noted: Dr.. Bersche d1agnosed Petltroner w1th R

L .cervrcai facet syndrome anda sprain. He also advrsed that current therapy would be plaeed on

R Thereafter Petrtloner contmued treatmg for his’ cemcal spme through August 20 2012
. '.when it was noted that his eervacal condition was domg much better and his ROM wasnear -
' --"_"-:levels tested Prior to’ the motor vehrcle accident, On September 6 201 2, Dr ‘Dickhut noted that B

o -',Pet;tloner $ cervrcal condltlon was dozng well SubseQHently, treatment was dlverted to drfferent e

SR __'opmed that the mechamsrn of mjury could cause headaches and neck pam related to wh1p1ash

Petrtroner also underwent a Sectron 12 exammatzon at Respondent’s request Wlth Dr

. _' ) C Hsu, a board certlﬁed orthopedlc surgeon on’ May 2,2014. He reviewed medtoal records .
BN 'mcludmg a May 2011 cervical MRI, a January 2013 cervrcal MRI a January 2013 EMG, and a

B July 20,2013 cervrcal MRL ‘Petitioner 1nformed h1m of hrs May 4 2()12 MVA Dr Hsu opmed

P Petltroner had suffered a resolved cervrcal stram G

e II CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
A Causal Connectton

_ | The Arbztrator found that Petltroner faded to prove a causal conneotlon between hrs May :
- 4 2012 ‘accident and: cond1t1on of 1ll-be1ng in the cervical spine.  In so. domg, he noted that =

~“Petitioner had preex1stmg cervical issues which requrred further tréatment, whether the ~~ *

o undrsputed motor vehicle accident had occurred or not. The Arbitrator also noted that there was

B ~a'10-day gap between the: accident and Petitioner’s first reports of cervical symptomatology

-W?mle itis ‘clear that Petrtroner ‘had preexrstmg cervical issues; whrch had not plateaved and d1d
- Tequire. addmonal treatment leadmg up to’ the unrebutted May 4;2012 caraccident, the -

- Commission finds that Petztloner s preexrstmg cervical condition was' temporanly aggravated by L R

' the accrdent thus provmg causatron by a preponderance of ev1dence

fE ln pre-exrstmg condltzon cases, recovery depends on the employee 5. ab111ty to show that a

.'work—related accident aggravated or accelerated the pre-ex1st1ng disease such that the employee s
current condmon can be sard to be causally conneeted to the work 1njury and not srmply the i
(2003) “It is axromatrc that employers take thelr employees as they ﬁnd them ” stbro 207 L.
2d. at 205. “{Ejven though an employee hasa preemstmg condition Whrc‘n may make him more
Vulnerable to injury, recovery for an accrdental injury will not be demed as long as itcanbe
~shown that the employment was alsoa causatrve factor.” Jd. ‘An employee need only prove that

h some act or phase of his employment was a causatlve faetor of the resultmg m}ury, the mere fact
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L "that he rmght have suffered the same drsease even 1f not’ Workrng, 1s 1mmater1al T wrce Over

o E Page 3.

zrrreee

o Clean Inc W Industr:af Comm n, 214 lll 2d 403 414 (2005)

The record reﬂects that just four days after the car- acmdent Petrtroner cornplalned to Dr

o chkhut ) ofﬁce of drseomfort and was concerned about whlplash ‘Petitioner’s symptoms o

- persrsted and on May 15; 2012, Dr. Bersche dragnosed cervical facet syndrome and a sprain.’ At _
" that time, Dr Bersche advrsed that all other current therapy would be put.on hold.in order- to get R

. . Petitioner’s neck “back on track.” This: language is-a clear indication that there had been &
C .'change in the condrtlon of I’etltloner s neck; which necessrtated dwerse treatrnent from What

i -_'_-examrner Dr Hsu

Petitioner had been receiving pre—aco;dent The medlcal records and’ testlrnony indicate that the

| -'_-acmdent was the provocateur for this change. Dr. Drckhut testrﬁed that the car accident caused a ' .' e

:cervrcal sprain, an oprmon corroborated by both Dr Nardone aad Respondent s Sect:on 12

L Thereafter Pet1t1oner contrnued treatmg for cervrcal complamts and on August 20 2012 L
: Dr D1ekhut noted that Petltroner S cerv1eal condrtron was “doing: much better and his ROM was

L '_.near levels tested’ prror to the. accident. As of Septernber 6;2012, Dr. ‘Dickhut drscontmued

5 -.'-further oervrcal spme treatrnent and began focusrng on Pet1troner s eomplalnts 1n other body

Based on the foregorng, the Commtsszon drsagrees w1th the Arbrtrator S demal of

G --’pre-exrstmg cervrcal sprne condrtron that worsened asa result of the motor vehlcle acerdent at

L work. This conclusmn is buoyed by the medical records, as. well as corroboratlng dragnoses and f BN

. causatron oplnrons from both Petitioner’s and Respondent 8 physrcrans Thus, the Commlssron R

- reverses the Arbrtrator ] denral of causatlon asit relates to Petltloner s cervrcal condrtron but
S ._afﬁrms all else R : . o R

B Medzcal Erpenses -.j

In contemplatron of the above analyzed causauon rssue the Comrmssron also reverses e

' " the Arbrtrator s denial of medical expenses inisofar: as they relate to Petitioner’s. cervroal

* condition through September 6, 2012 'when Dr. Dickhut discontlnued further cervical sprne
: ':treatment Accordrngly, the Commrssron awards all reasonable and neeessary medical expenses SRR
o _for treatment related to Petrtroner $ cervrcal spme from May 4 2012 through September 6 2012 SR

C Permanent Dzsabzltly

Seetron 8 lb of the Ilhnors Workers Compensatron Aet (“Act”) addresses the factors that
rnust be con31dered in determmmg the extent of permanent partial disability for accidents -
occurring on or aﬁer September l 2011 820 ILCS 305/8 lb (West 2011) Specrﬁcally, §8 1b

'states as follows o o : R _

o For accrdental injuries that oceur on or aﬁer Septernber 1, 2011 perrnanent part1al
o drsabrhty shall be estabhshed usmg the followmg crrterla
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(a) A physmran hcensed to practrce medrcme in aH of 1ts branches prepanng a. o
. permanent parhal drsablhty rmpanment report shall report thelevelof .
- impairment in writing. The report shall include an evaluation of medrcally _
- defined and professronaﬂy approprlate measurements of 1mpa1rment that
; fmc}ude but are not limited to: ioss of range of motzon Ioss of strength
: ._'measured atrophy of tissue mass consistent with the 11’1]111’)?, and any. other
"~ measurements that establish the nature and extent of the impairment. The
o _’;most current ed1t1on of the ‘American Medlcal Association’s "Guidesto
~ " the Evaluation of Permanent Imparrment“ shall be used by the phys1cran in
T 'determzmng the level of ;mpalrment S .

(b) In determmmg the levei of permanent part1a1 drsablhty, the Comm1551or1 L
o 5 shalI base 1ts determmatlon on the fo}towmg factors % =

(1) the reported 1eve1 of 1mpa1rment pursuant to suhsectron (a), -
(i) the occupatlon of the injured employee; =+ AT
- (iii)the age of the employee at the time of the i mjury, sl
o '_.(w)the employee s future earning capaclty, and . : SR
: '(v) evidence of drsablhty corroborated by the treat1n<r medrcal records o
- No single enumerated factor shall be the sole determinant of -
R _'.'drsab111ty In determmmg the level of d1sab111ty, the. relevance and L
R welght of any factors. used in addltron to the level of i 1mpa1rment as &
L .'reported by the physroran must ‘oe epramed in a wrltten order

Ia’ However [n]o smgle enumerated factor shall be the Sole determmant of dlsablhty R

o Id § 305/8. 16(b){(v).. ConSIdermg these factors in hght of the evidence subrmtted at the: hearzng,

= ithe Commtssmn addresses the _faotors dehneated m t‘he Act for determmmg permanent part1a1

- _.’-dlsabrhty as mdreated beIow

R W1th regard to subseohon (1) of §8 1b(b) the Cornrmssron notes that nerther party
submltted an AMA rmpanment ratlng report thus 1o we1ght is glven to thls factor s

: _ Wlﬂ’l regard to subseetlon (11) of §8 1b(b), Petltloner Was employed as an Auto Mechame -
" _'-.whroh 15a physrcaily demandmg posmon requmng heavy hﬁmg ‘Petitioner contmued workmg
inthis Capacrty while treating for the instarit ceérvical strain, and afterward when his condrtron

_ retumed to pre—aceldent baselme Moderate werght is grven to th1s faotor

With regard to subseetron (111) of §8 1h(b) Petrtloner was 52 years old at the trme of
_ “accident. “At this age, and with a cervical strain, the instant aceldent likely had a Iesser effect on
g hrs abrhty to perform hlS dutres Some welght is grven to thrs factor :

W1th regard t0 subsecuon (zv) of §8 lb(b) there was no ev1dence that the 1njury in
questlon had any effeet on Petrtloner $ future earmng capaorty No we1ght is grven to thzs factor.

_ Wrth regard to suhseetron (V) of §8 1b(b) Petltloner s eondrtlon requrred conservatlve
care and ultlmately 1mproved approx1mately four months post—acmdent Suhstantlal wei ght s
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'_'fcausaﬁy connected to the May 4 2012 acc:tldent
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Based on the above analy51s the Commlsswn ﬁnds that the 1nJur1es sustamed caused - S
B _Petltloner a 2: 5% loss of use of h1s person as a whoie '

Ali else is afﬁnned and adopted

s THEREFORE FOUND BY THE COMMISSION that Pentloner s cerv1ca1 stram is fi S

g IT IS THEREFORB ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Petlttoner 1s ent1t1ed to aH
- reasonable and necessary med1ca1 expenses related to. hiS cerv1ca1 spine from May 4,2012

o --'_-_:_through September 6,2012. Respondent shall be g;ven credlt for:all medical betiefits that have

- been paid, and shall. hoid Petitioner harmless from any claims: by any prowders of the servzces
_-for whleh Respondent is seeklng thIS credlt pursuant to sect1on 8(]) of the Act

i IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petmoner o
- -f-permanent part1a1 dlsa‘ml;ty beneﬁts as the accident’ resulted in'a2.5% loss: of use of Pet1t1oner S

- person as a whoIe (12 5 weeks), pursuant to secnon 8(d)(2) of the Act :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to

o '_'-Pet1t1oner Interest under sectton 19(n) of the Act xf any

o IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credlt
RES '_for all amounts paxd if any, to or on behalf of Pentloner on account of sa;d accndental mjury

Bond for removai of thls eause to the Clrcult Court by Respondent is hereby ﬁxed at the '

L sum of $7.600.00. The party. commencing the proceedmgs for review in the Clrcult Court shall

: ﬁle w1th the Comrmssxon a Notlee of Intent to. Flie for Rev1ew 1n Cn‘cutt Court

oamn MR 12
- “BNF/wde

© Marc Parker
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ey plo;ee/Peuoner

[{f-fFRED GROVES SERVJCENTER D/B/A FREU
- GROVES -
j-.:'-"EmpIOyer/Respondent

On 3/ 1 1/2020, an’ albltratxon decxsmn on hxs case was ﬁled with the Ilhnms Workers Compénsatlon




T s,
cou NTY or MCL&A%\, y b |

IE \one of tne abo\ ¢

ILLH\OIS “ ORKERS’ CO\IPE\SXHO\ CO\I\IISSIO\
T _' _ ARBITRATIO\ DECISIO’\ ' s

Ell‘lpiOVLL‘PLtlilOll{.I’ R

VL = S ; '_ '_ Consohdated cases e £

:'_"-:FRED GROV ES SERVICENTER DfB/A F RED GROVES

Empioyer, Respondent

An Applzcatzon for Adjustmenr of Clazm was. ﬁled in thts matter and a Noz‘zce of Hemmg was malled to eac:h -

- party. The matter was heard by the Henorabte PAUL SEAL Arb1trat0r of the Commission; in the city of

- BLOOMINGTON, on September 24 and October 16, 2019." Afier reviewing all of the evidence presented .

“the. Arbltrater hereby makes.ﬁndmgs on. the dtsputed issues checked beIow and attaches those ﬁndmgs te thrs

B _ -docu"

: A . Was, Respondent operatmg under and subject to the thms Workers Compensat1on or Occupatmnal
Diseases: Act‘? ' . SRR S : 3 L
- Was there an employee~employer relatlonshtp‘? : o 3z :
. Dxd an aceldent oceur that arose out of and in the course of Petlttener s emptoyment by Respondent‘?
. What was the date of the acczdent? . o : : A : SR :
. Was tlmely notlce of the acc1dent glven to Respondent‘? :

. Is: Petttloner 5 current condmon ef 111 bezng eausatly related to the 1nJury‘?

1T .| What were Peﬁttoners eamtnos‘? R - - :

] What was Petltlener s age at the tlme of the acetdent‘? _

] What was Pettt:oner S marltal status at the time of the acczdent‘? '

=—** = C) “ﬂ mvow

“paid all appropmate charges for all reasonable and necessary mechcal serv1ces” e
What temporary benefits are in dispute” RS : : : : '

: [J'TPD: [ Maintenance [ TTD

L Eﬂ What IS the nature and extent of the 1njury‘? e :

M. [:] Shoutd penaiﬂes or fees be 1mposed upon Respondent‘?

N. D Is Respondent due any credzt"? '

O_. DOther”""' 3

ICAJIJDEC .?/10 109 . Randﬁ{ph Streer #8 200 Chzcaga L 60601’ 312/814 6611 Toflﬁee 866/’33 -3033  Web site: www.iwecilgov
Dowmt‘ate oﬁ"ces Collmsu!!e 618/346 3450 Peorza 3()9/67] 30!9 Rockﬁ}id 5’15/98? 7297 Spungf’e[d 217/785- 7084 : RS

o
o S

g Were the medical services that were provided to Petitioner reasonabte and necessary‘7 Has Respondent S
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FI\ DINGS

'_ On 5/4/2012 Respondent was operatmg under and subject to the prov151ons of the Act

On this date an ernployeewemployer rela‘nonsth did exist between Pet1t1oner and Respondent

On thts date Petitioner did sustain an accident that arose out ot and in the course of employment
.Tirnely notice of this accident was given to Respondent,

Petitioner's current condmon of 111—belng is not causally related to the acc1dent

In the year preccdmg the m}ury, Petitioner eamed $48, 524, 84; the average weekiy wage was $933.17.
On the date of acmdent Petitioner was 52 years of age; smgle with 2 dependent chﬂdren

Pet1t1oner kas received ali reasonable and necessary mechcal services.

Respondent has paid all appropnate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical ser\nces
ORDER
Denial of benefits

No beneﬁts are awarded.

'RULES REGARDiNG APPEALS Unless a party files a Pef:tzon for Rewew thhm 30 days after receipt of this

_ decision and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then thls decssaon shaﬂ be entered as the
dems;on of the Comnussmn

_ STATEV!EI\T OF IVTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award mterest at the rate set forth on the
Notice of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment

however, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, 1nterest shall not .
accrue. - :

March 6, 2020
Signature of Arbitrator Date .

.I.CA;.*chc = | | . .. | MAR 1 % 2023
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: ?z‘afement of Facz‘s

{’ctrtaomz tcstltzed that hc Was a mechanic with ccmmatcs in AUt a' and A dms (T iés "(}} Peiltl(!l}u -
testified his job dutics for Respondcnt included heavy engines; brakes. computus and ev cwthmu else. forra car

or fiLl(.h {T.:28) On May 4.2012, Petitioner 1estified h{, was test diiving a.customer’s. \chleit_ a.mustang, was'

-':ptukct at the light outside the: shop waiting to-make. aleft -hand turn| and was rear ended by a Dtnangbo witha'
~pushbar; Petrtioner stat_e_d at'the time, his hands were at 10 and 2, he was looking. feft and did not see the car :
“before impact. (T. 33 - 38) Petitioner testified. he could not dctmc how hard he was-hit but there was no

damage to her. vehicle. He testified that the bumpcr of hls xehlcie had sprdeuns of the pamt State Farm' reflects. -

4 ¢heck was issued to ‘the. vehicle owner for. $379 390 (R‘( 16) Perez, the office manager, “testified that she 5

~assisted filling out the police report and Petitioner had a headache and-did not Took good 1mmed1ately fo]lowmg s

'the -mcrdent (T 173 174) The pohce report compieted that day mdrcates there were no mjur}es (PX 6)

g Petrtroner testtﬁed he had no’ pam When the vehieie was struck (T 36) Pet1t1oner testlﬁed he worked the rest of e

e the day until'6 p.m. and then an hour after he was home; noticed pain‘in his shoulder, expenenced headache and -

~nausea: (T. 39): He: stated when he woke the next day, he: had a little bit of pain and headaches (1d) Petrtroner'_'

:-'testrﬁed the. headaches went away after a few days but the left shoulder and neck pain: stayed and became more =

_ pronounced going from a pain scale of 3106 0r7. (T 40 =42y Petitioner:testified. he was seeing chlropractor -

-'fDrckhut for his back from 521112 —6/18/ 12 as: they were' ‘done with his neck: (T. 45.-46) Petltloner testrﬁed on. - |

~ June 25; 2012 he told chiropractor Dickhut he was in a car accident. and he had left shoulder and. neck pain. (T. -

'46) Petitioner test1ﬁed on August 20 2012 he ’oegan experlencmg pam in hrs nght shouider as he was favorlng S -

-:_.the left. (T 50

' :'Petztroner also : 'tated in: that time he had nght arm ﬁngers back and Ieg patn (T 52) Petrtloner testtﬁed he Was |
referred to Dr, Li, completed an. MRI on. September 7,:2012 during ‘which time his. neck: was sore. (T. 54)

Petitioner testified his' right hand was cold as it had been, but 4lso had: aehmg in the wrist, middle, ring-and =

'smali ﬁngers with peeling skin: Petitiofier testiﬁed he has. 1eft shoulder surgery with Dr. Enbanks and he felta

lot better. (T 88 and 158). Petitioner test;fied in a previous: depos1t1on reIated to the civil aspect of th;s accident
and: stated the patts of body m_}ured were left. shoulder headaches, ear ringing: -and nausea. (T. 130) : Petitioner - -

acknowiedged ‘he ‘continued to” work: between May 4, 2012 through January 2,:2013. (. 132) Petitioner -
acknowledged the civil claim filed against the drivet - was' dropped (T.:131) Petitioner acknowledged when he -
became employed wzth Respondent beneﬁts were offered but he dechned because they were too expenswe (T o
153) . : R F R i w e

Petrtloner sought treatment for hlS eerwcal splne pre-datmo hlS emptoy for Respondent On Apnl 19 201 1 L
Petitioner was seen by Dr. Lm prov1d1ng a history: of falling on his left side while walking in the’ wind; and

experiencing numbness in"the neck and shoulder with shootmg pam down: the arm (RX 7} On May:9, 2011 o

Petitioner presented to. chlropractor Dickhut with sharp neck -and low back pain, numbness -and . tmglmg that
goes down both arms noting he had double carpal tunnel surgery and the right wrist was operated twice. The left
hand felt better, but stated the right‘hand was much worse and ruined his life for past 4 years. He reﬂected that
he had been off work for the past 4 years and went to get his'CDL but couldn’t get a job due to. pain. ‘He also

said he hurt brceps years ago in a work injury at GM where he tore a biceps muscle. Chrropractor Drckhut stated .
symptoms related to cervical segmentat dysfunction muscle deconditioning and atrophy as well as CTS in both
wrists. (RX 6) Petitioner returned to OSF on 5/12/11 with pain 1nten31ty of 9/10 indicating his neck hurts all the

time, down the nght arm-and hand. He also needed a DOT physzcal as 3 months ago had hlgh blood | pressure 50
onIy allowed 3 months. On 5/31/11 an MRI of cervical spine:was completed due to R arm and shoulder pain

with ‘onset 2007. It demonstrated severe _degeneratlve changes from C5. through L7 1nc1ud1ng osteophyte_ B

eomplexes and hllateral facet Jomt osteoarthropathy (RX 7) As of May 3, 2012 1t was noted he had not yet B
plateaued wzth care to hlS cerv1ca1 spme (RX 6) R RN R S _
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Fred Groves testified on behalf of Respondent, stating he was 80 years old, had retired and had closed his shop
as of March 2019. Mr. Groves testified that when Petitioner quit in January 2013, they had a conversation in the
office in which Petitioner advised him he brought his problems with him and not to worry about worker’s

Chiropractor Dickhut was deposed on September 24, 2013. As of May 15, 2012, Dickhut stated Petitioner
complained of frequent aching, burning, numbness, tightness and tingling in the right thigh and the right knee.
He stated the exam demonstrated a positive compression test and he diagnosed him with cervical facet
syndrome, sprain. (PX 2, pp. 8-9). As of May 21, 2012, he had some complaints into his left trapezius, which
Dickhut stated was increased muscle tone, in the area of the upper mid-back. Dickhut re-evaluated him on June
13, 2012, finding left cervical spasm, restrictions on ‘segmental motion of the upper back, as well as some
findings in the right low back at L2. He also had complaints of left neck pain into the left shoulder noting he
could not pinpoint anything he was doing: differently at work. He also complained of getting pain in his
tailbone, swelling into his feet and having a hard time getting his boots on. (PX 2, pp. 10-11). Exam on June
25, 2012 noted complaints of left neck pain-and low back pain which switched from right to left. His right knee
was bothering him arid his left shoulder. As of July 2, 2012, Petitioner complained of pain in the low back,
right thigh, right knee and left shoulder. Exam demonstrated increased muscle tone at the left trapezius and
right lumbar region. As of August 13, 2012, he continued to complain of low back, tight thigh, right knee and
back of the left shoulder as well as the left side of the neck. (PX 4, p.13). He had left trapezius spasm and
shoulder abdtiction was restricted with spasmi on palpation of he left pectoral of the minor muscle. Dickhut
testified that as of August 20, 2012, Petitioner complained of low back, right sided, right kneg, left shoulder and
Tright low back, with numbness in the toes all the time; that he was taking Ibuprofen but felt like he was making
slow improvement. On August 20; 2012, Petitioner associated his left shoulder injury with this motor:vehicle
collision. Also, on this date, Dickhut testifies that his neck is doing a lot better and range of motion is returning
to level seen prior to the motor vehicle collision on May 4, 2012. (PX 2, p.16). Dickhut testified that
Petitioner’s neck was doing significantly better as of August 20, there is no thought of referring him to a
surgeon, and he did not have “drop hand” on that visit. (PX 2, pp. 17-18). Asof September 24, 2012, Dickhut
said Petitioner was frustrated with his left shoulder as he needed to keep working to pay bills after being off for
so long. (PX 2, p.20). As of October 15, 2012, Dickhut testified that he had improvement with respect to his
neck, his right low back was bothering him, and he had aching, tingling, numbness and dullness in the right
palih which Dr. Dickhut attributed to his neck but acknowledged it could have come from the neck, shoulder,
elbow or wrist. (PX 2; pp. 22-23). As of November 7, 2012, Petitioner complained of right hand, left shoulder
and. low back; and on November 13, had left shoulder and buttock complaints. As of December 10, 2012,
Dickhut testified he had complaints in the left shoulder, upper back, right hand, wrist, forearm and low back.
He had a sharp pain in his right shoulder that got worse with motion and felt like he had carpal tunnel in the
right hand again. He said shoulder was just sore. As of December 10, 2012, Dickhut said that he possibly is
experiencing right arm pain due to overuse, that there was a new injury to his right shoulder or perhaps his neck.
He testified that in prior visits he had not complained of discomfort in the right wrist or right forearm. (PX 2,
p.28). ‘He testified that on January 7, 2013, he was having a lot of trouble with the right side of his neck and
right shoulder, feeling his right arm was heavy and: weak, could not sieep, and Dickhut opiried he had been
compensating for the left shoulder. As of January 31, 2013, Petitioner advised Dickhut that he had a new injury

on NOVember- 26, 2012.

Dickhut next saw him on June 25, 2013, with complaints of right hand, buttock, left shoulder and indication that
he wore gloves a lot because his hands got cold, and he had atrophy ini his right arm, fingers and palm. He saw
him again on'July 29, 2013 noting worsening in his right hand and wrist, skin drying out, strength getting worse
and he had skin hanging on his right upper arm. - He complained of fingernail itching, fingertips itching, having
a hard time eating, getting into cars, and he was doing everything left-handed. Testing demonstrated atrophy of
the right triceps, nail changes on the second and third fingers, dried out skin on his right radial forearm and. - ..

=



_;nrnds and into ‘his first, second and third lwzts W hen Peti tronu zedr,ln,d av 1tl“ h]s rlwht arm:you' -can’ see spdszn _
“hie (.()Lil(l lllll\£ afist. butawhen hr, W Lﬂt 0.0 mr it thc. tus* -\uvond At 1d lmd lmnus utend and his mrst goes
:“g Gl i\.\ i x. \\,u xm ) ignll‘y tu Al iR . it W ; d.l il i)\,kw!o\., \\I?Lii e 11th§
been examined carly on-afier the: car” collision; ln.-lmd oxuali m&mtu}' rength, but notmrw uas'_--
significantly. dec_rused as on lhh date: “Dickhut testified that his left should
“r_to the: May' 4; 2012 auito dccident because Petitioner’ stdted he w as hoidznw thé stecring w heel with his. lett arm; -

l

Hpda”

: orn 3ld1nts were causall Iy u.lated -

“he. had new: eomplamts in the left shoulder eom;}arcd to prior care. “Dickhut testrtred that'in. addltron tosamehe
- associated the cetrvical sprain to the auto accident-as’ well: {PX 2. pp. 40- 41 ) Dlekhut testlﬁed that the cervical -
-_;.-complamts could be related to the November: 26; 20 2 accident, (PX 2. p. 42). Dickhut acknowledged thathe '
- -had pre- -existing degcneratmn in the neck that was not. caused’ by the i 1njury on-May 4 or Noven}ber 26, 2012,

.ﬂbut that it cozrld have been: aggravated from snnrl'n forces, (PX 2 p. 42) Dickhut tes‘dﬁed that his oprnron wrth o
“respect to. causal connection to'the left shoulder, even; though there was nio mention ‘of same until June 13,2012,

~could have been explarned by several ‘scenarios rncludm pain from. the rxght neck and: right shoulder were: o

~overriding the same; he may not’ heve stressed ‘the area untrl that time; - or that he injured it and: it gradually : -
“became weaker as he continued: to use it at work: - (PX 2,:pp. 43—44) chkhut testified that- prror to-May 4,

":."?()12 Petrtroner did not have a’ “drop hand” and had. been: workmg as a'mechanic and had full use of his hand,

(PX2, pp.45-46). He noted that it could be the result of the i injury. of \lov ember 26; 2012 because lrftrng thmgs_ :

puts a strain on the. cervical spine and the rrght upper extremity. (PX 2, pp. 46-47). - Dickhut testlﬁed On cross-- -

'. exam that he did not have his: complete chart in’ preparatron for the deposdwn ‘and went to get'same. followmg o
“which; e testified that the first time: ‘he saw Petitioner was on May 9,201 1+ At that: pomt he: presented with -
'~ sharp- neck and low back pain. He had numbness and’ trnglmg going down both arms espeerally in the right, had

L0 stre_ngth in’ hrs arms and could: not-hammer a narl 1into the wall svithout | pain.: He states: hiS right hand. hadﬂ L
. rurnedf'hls life - for. the past four years He had not been sleeprng well laymg down hurts hzs neck, he had : seen

13:doctors. in the_ past four years trying to: ﬁgure out what was ‘wrong with him. (PX 2, pp. _5_1 53) ‘He stated'

= Petrtloner could:not get a Job even though he got. his CDL because he could ot due 10 the | painin the hand and |

“the neck. His history. mdicated that he used to be a mechanic and a comrnercral airline mechanic but cannot do -

“that. any. longer due to surgery He also hurt his: broep years agoiin a work injury at GM: where he tore it.-An
‘MRI"ordered from May:31, 2011 of the cervical spine: demonstrated degeneratwe disc disease. - chkhut .

'_ acknowledged that on July 28 2011, Petitioner 1nd1cated he was wearing’ gloves at night because: his hands were
“cold. (PX:2; p. 58) ‘He further stated: that the coldness i lns hands had never: resolved (PX 2, P 61) Dickhut
testified that Dr, Bersche saw: Petitioner-on’ May 8, 2012, and the lnstory provrded was continued low. baek S

“right thigh and. knee “pain, but also a‘car accident of May 4, 2012 and he was womed about whlpiash Hehada .
‘headache later that nlght but no neck or. upper back pain. (PX 2 Pp. 63- 64) On May 3, 2012, Dickhut -

' aeknowledged his note indicated. Pet1t1oner had not yet plateaued w1th respect to care for'his neck or low back.
(PX:2, p.63). Drckhut acknowledged that on May 10,:2012; Petrtroner did'not have complarnts of. left shoulder -
or left neck pain. (PX 2, p. 08)." On cross-exam, Dickhut testrﬁed as‘of May 14,2012 when he'saw, ‘Petitioner,

he: could not differentiate between the neck pain he had already ‘been ‘rreatmg hrrn for prior. to May 4; 2012 (PX- o

'_2 Pp: 68 -69). Drckhut testrﬂed that on November 28, 2012-Petitioner did not descrrbe anew injury, (PX 2,

p.82). He: noted he was in treatment again on Decernber 4, 2012, ‘and then seen on December 10, 2012 and - -

December 12; 2012 at-which point, he still made no mention of the new accident of November 26, 2012 (PX 2,
p.86).. On December 19, 2012, Dickhut testified there was a phone call relative to new injures from & motor

vehrcle colhslon (Id))- He: agam did not ‘mention the November 26,2012 aceident. He was seen for treatment - |

on December 20, 2012 and seen by Drckhut on December 26 2012 agam w1th no mentron of the November 26,
2012 accident. -(PX 2, pp. 86~ 87) Petitioner cornpleted a motor- vehrcle collision personal i injury questionnaire .-
per: Dickhut’s records and testrrnony as wellas a ‘workers? compensatron questionnaire for the November 206,

2012 accident which he completed on’ January 8,2013. Dickhut testified that the chart notes followrng May 4,
2012 aH lndicate they were: berng forwarded to State Fann (PX 2 p 100) S
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On September 4, 2012, Petitioner saw Dr. Li stating on that on 05/04/12 he was in a car accident; continued to
have left shoulder pain, limited range of motion, weakness and stiffness. Strength testing of left shoulder was
4/5, active flexion 120, abduction 80, external rotation and internal rotation normal. Dr. Li diagnosed probable
votator cuff tear and teferred for MRL Same was completed the following day demonstrating full thickness tear-
involving anterior supraspinatus signal changes at the biceps labral anchor, subdeltoid/subacromial bursitis and

small effusion with osteoarthritic change. Petitioner continued with chiropractic care and was next seen by Dr.

Li on January 11,2013 at which time surgery was recommended. (PX 20) "

The deposition of Dr. Li was obtained on September 23, 201 3. Dr. Li first examined him on September 4, 2012
and noted left shoulder pain and limited range of motion. (PX 1, p.9) Dr. Li diagnosed inferior subluxation,
rotator cuff subluxation which he attributed to the way the muscle was hanging. (PX 1, p.10) The only. other
medical record he possessed other than diagnostic testing in his own chart is that of Dr. Dickhut of 08/20/12.
(PX. 1, p.25) Dr. Li testified that Petitioner relayed he had ongoing shoulder pain from the auto accident and
based upon same, he believed it was causally related, but upon review of the Dickhut’s June 13, 2012 chart

note, he stated this may impact his opinion. (PX 1 pp.30-31) Dr. Li testified Petitioner’s cervical symptoms

were similar to his old complaints on 06/12/11. (PX1, p.46)63 Dr. Li opined causal connection of the cervical
spine to pulling the 40 1b cylinder, not the auto accident (PX 1, p.63). 69-70Dr. Li compared the 05/31/11 MRI
to' the post-accident MRI and. indicated that they were similar with severe degenerative’ disc disease at C3

through C7. Agreed that stenosis could progress, and that impingement could further regress, (PX1, pp.69-70).

Dr. Li testified he had no k.n'(_)WIe_.dge of when cubital tunnel complai.nt's began but théj% must have EégUn' as of
the EMG as they were documented on same (PX1; p.53). Dr. Listated . decreased - sensation - C8 "to "T1
supports cubital tunnel. (PX 1, p.54)72The 03/03/11 Fort Jesse record demonstrated diabetic peripheral

neuropathy which Dr. Li acknowledged and further conceded diabetic neuropathy can impact cubital tunnel.
(PX1, pp.72-74) : IR

The evidence deposition of Dr. Eubanks was obtained on February 19, 2015, Dr. Eubanks testified he was
licensed in the State of Illinois in 2008 and has been Board Certified in Orthopedic Surgery since 2011. He
testified that at the first evaluation on May 9, 2014, Petitioner provided. a history. of pain, weakness and
numbness in the upper extremity mostly the right arm, in-addition to wrist drop. - (PX3, p.7). Stated his exam
demonstrated weakness of the radial nerve distribution with wrist extension, as well as numbness in the median
nerve distribution and tenderness over the lateral epicondyle and forearm. He further stated that tenderriess over
the lateral epicondyle demonstrated epicondylitis, and he had a positive Tinel and Phalen sign demonstrating
carpal tunnel. (PX3, p.13). He stated that a surgery was completed on August 20, 2014 ¢onsisting of
epicondylitis release, carpal tunnel release and posterior interosseous release. He testified that as of the October
14, 2014 visit, Petitioner complained of left shoulder pain pointing to the bicep tendon as:the primary source.
He testified that he comipleted a partial rotator cuff repair and biceps tenodesis.. (RX3, pp.21-22).: Dr. Eubanks -
testified that he was doing well postoperatively and as of November 13 he would have allowed him to return to
light duty work: (PX3, p.23). Dr. Eubanks testified that on January 22, 2015, Petitioner continued to have
some tenderness in the shoulder and slight loss of range of motion. ' He imposed a 30-pound lifting restriction
for the left arm. Dr. Eubanks noted he was intended to return in three months for anticipated final chieck of the
left shoulder.  Dt. Eubanks testified that based upon the job description tendered by opposing counsel at the
deposition (inaccurate description), these job duties may have been the cause for the disease process in the left

shoulder. He further stated that the automobile accident may have been the cause of an aggravation to the left

shoulder. (PX3, pp.29-30).. Dr. Eubanks testified that evaluation of the shoulder included exam such as Empty
Cari test, part of which was objective, and part subjective based on the éxaminer and also the patient’s responsc.
(PX3, pp34-35). - o TR T ARG Al s patetl]

4



_-'Dx Eebanks admttted that he Wi unimmhar with the med d‘ti\!ﬂ m‘ m]u ry: foz the. uuto aceid ent (P‘u 3 33)
ST iuhdnks ackiow lf.d"ul that hi\ opiaions \\l_h respect (0. causation a___h hLd sole ly on W, hat Pettttonu s

. SO sl Mdtnex '1; m H :"E!‘c ki»}’\)a ST NP RO SEEN i ; it L!EUHL.._ miuﬁ\ Like u“\j 1

dar ge parts out of cars:. He at\o acknow ledged rmt he had not rey foveed any rhedieal ia.t,(?l@\ dm,nmentmﬂ pi(,~' o
- existing (,Olldltl()ﬂb teidtuj to the: ailments w hich he provided: care for and that: this may. impact his opinion.
"{P‘(J pp4l 42} When: p;esented with: the information - relative to the au tomobil Laccident eompiete( by
_Dickhut's. ottlce he testified that a 7 1010 mph collision is unhkd\/ to have: Ldtl::t.d the m_] my 111 the Iett"
: 'shouldu gven the \/uy slow speed low yelouty and 10“ unpaet wll;s;on (?Xa p 43) S R

LJ

:Dr Btent Johnson tcstlﬁed en Febl uary E9 Ol-t notms_ that he W as an orthopedle sui g:eon spcczahzmg an the.; :

“treatment of knee and: shouider injuries.: “Dr. Johnson tes%tﬁed that the. hlstm} prov ided-to him by the Petitioner

was that he: wids.in'a motor Vehzcie acerdent on \/Iay 4,2012, was rear-ended, and: 1n1t1a11y exper;eneed painin.

: 'the left shoulder and neck that' evenmg “Drs Johnson testrﬁed that examination demonstrated posmve ﬁndmgs[!

“of the bilateral shoulders including tenderness over the mid- eiavrcle and trapezius. and coracoid on the rightand
“tendemess . over the clavicle; “distal. clavrc]e AC Jomt and acromion’ ‘posterior. jOII}t line, anterior: joint: hne A

_-isuprasplnatus coracoid and: trapezrus on the left. He ‘opined that he: beheved these were exaggerated: pain
- behaviors as with repeat examination he did not have consistent areas. of p pain. He noted hehad 5/5 strength but -

for left forward elevatlen which ‘was’ 4/5 and testlng was limited secondary 1o pain; ‘He noted he had: severeiy:-'. R

exaggerated pain:on’ rnuseie testing - and 'was going to: fall over because of: exaﬁgerated movements durmg .

shoulder strength testlng Exam demonstlated orthopedtc testing t0. be. negative;. meludmg Speed's: and_' .

"O'Brien's tests, 'He did. note that* impingement syndrome was: difﬁcutt 1o test due to pain.-Exam of the left -
‘shoulder speerﬁeally demonstrated forward elevation to 90 degrees but passwely, it was. 150 degrees Dr.
- Johnson oplned that he was aetwely resisting. Dr. Johnson testlﬁed that he reviewed medtcal records meludlng :

the _ehiropraetle.i'reeords of Dr. Diekhut and Dr Bersche and noted that there were! 18 VISI‘tS prtor to his
: -eemplalnts of‘shoulder. pam followmg the May 42012 aeexdent (RX 2, p. 18) Dr.. }ohnson oplned that his left

:'shoulder comptalnts wete not causally. related to’ a May-4; 2012 accident, because the mechanism of i injury, was_'
not . a typical’ meehamsm for a rotator euff tear He also noted that there we1e no cornplamts of shouider_ '
problemsafterlt (RX2 p20) v s Sl e R R B

._-Dr Verma testlﬁed on- June 21 2017 1nd1cat1ng he isa board certiﬁed orthopedic surgeon Who E praetlee' -
: lneiuded shoulder eibow and knee (RX 4)He tesnﬁed that he evaluated Petitioner on March 8, 2017 at which
pomt Petitioner prowded a hlstory of haying g been employed as a mechanic for 16 to 18 months with an injury:
on May 4, 2012 when he was’ rear~ended with muftiple injuries meludmg the left: shoulder “He noted he

underwent shoulder surgery and ‘was piaced under permanent restrictions of 25- pound lifting. - He also noted he

had - ongomg other medical issues that included numbness, tingling‘and weakness as ‘well ‘as: dlfﬁeulty Itﬂmg :
both arms. “He did ‘report improvement in his’ left shoulder. Dr. Verina testified that he examined Petitioner
noting no’ atrophy or - deformity, well- healed ‘iricisions, preserved cervical’ -range of motion which " did. not
produge any. shoulder symptoms shoulder exam demonstrated full and symmetnc range. of motion, compared to.
the opposite side without pain,: strength was normal, there was no instability; . although he had some sub}eetlve'
complaints of numbness in the left hand.. Dr. ‘Verma opined his shoulder exam was norma} (RX 4,p)yDr.
Verma opined he had reached maximum medtcal 1mprovement and indicated that based upon the procedure he
had undergone, MMI would typxcally occur dfter six months. Dr. Verma further epmed that- Petxtloner eould
have returned to hls fuiI duty oecupatron w1th regard to the shoulder (RX 4, p 8) : A

Dr Nardone testlﬁed on February 20 2015 that he is-a board eerttﬁed neuroioglcal surgeon for the past 15
years, He 1ndrcated he’ eornpleted 529 surgeries the year prior to the deposrtron He testified that the hlstory

provided to him by the Petitioner in this matter was a 2012 car accident which resulted in. Wworsening pain,. |

_'headache and nausea theh went on to deveiop rrght arm pam and weakness for wh1eh he was seen by several
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phys101ans and tests were done. He then testified to another injury Petitioner advised him when he was lifting
an engine and that aggravated his person. When he first saw him on May 7, 2014, he noted there was some
diffuse muscle bulk that was decreased on the right arm, he had diffused weakness including the intrinsic
“muscles, wrist extension; finger extension and tnceps weakness as well as 'sensory deficits throughout the entire -
right arm: He did not believe there were any signs of myelopathy. He reviewed the MRI which demonstrated
spondylotic changes at multiple levels from C5 to Ti. An additional CT and MRI of the “cervical spine
confirmed severe degeneration from C5 to T1 causing stenosis. It was at that point he recommended a fusion.
He noted surgery became delayed due to cardiac issues. (PX 4, p.12). Dr. Nardone testified that at the time of
the last visit, he would have placed him on a 10-pound lifting restriction for the d1agn051s which was cervical
spondy1051s with radiculopathy. (PX 4, p.13). Petitioner's counsel provided Dr. Nardone a hypothetical based
upon notes in Dr. Dickhut’s records, indicating that the Petitioner was driving the same direction as the person
“who rear ended him at approximately 10 miles per hour, both hands wefe on the steering wheel and he used his
arms. to brace himself during the impact. He did not have pain at the time of the collision but then later that
night experienced nausea and headache. The headache lasted about three hours and when the nausea subsided,
he felt lightheaded. Since then he has been experiencing reourrmg headaches. Dr. Nardone testified that the
incident described mcludmg hieadache and probably neck pain as part of a whipiash injury could be related to
the accident. (PX 4, pp: 14-15). Dr. Nardone testified in response to the hypothetical of lifting a 40-pound
- cylinder, experiencing pain from the elbows and the fingertips that the remarkable osteophyte could have been
aggravated and caused more radiculopathy. On cross examination, Dr. Nardone testified he did not recall
whether he reviewed any other medical records when he evaluated: Petitioner; nor does he recali whether he
reviewed any prior diagnostic studies.: (PX 4, pp. 16-17). He noted he had some EMGs in Dr. Pegg s notes.
Dr. Nardone acknowledged that Petitioner’s condmon was . degeneranve and that degenerative conditions can
wax and wane, (PX 4, p:17). Dr. Nardone testified that in comparisont with the May 31, 2011 MRT pre-dating
the accident, and the MRI completed on May 19, 2014, the MRIs did not change much. Dr. Nardone testified
that knowledge of the chiropractic treatment prior to May 4, 2012 would be significant with respect to his
opinion regarding causal connection as would a pain rating of 9/10 in May of 2011. (PX 4, pp. 20-21). Dr.
Nardone testified that with respect to C6, Dr. Eubank’s testimony supports his opinion that there was not a true
C6 radiculopathy, but rather, that it was a more local problem in the elbow. (PX 4, pp. 24- 25) Dr: Nardone
testified that with respect to the auto accident, 10 miles an hour when one is braced for impact would not be a
major accident. (PX 4, pp. 28-29). -Dr. Nardone also acknowledged that uncontrolled hyportensaon can cause
headache. (Id.) Dr. Nardone testified that the EMG findings did not demonstrate a lot of evidence of cervical

rad1cuiopathy (PX 4, p. 30) He further acknowledoed there was nothmv acute on the MRI he rev1ewed (PX
4, pp 30 31) : :

Dr. Welhngton Hsu testified on July 22, 20k5 that heisa board certlfied orthoped}c surgeon and compieted an
initial evaluation on May 2, 2014 at which point he reviewed medical records, inclusive of records complaining
of hand pain. since 2008, an MRI of the cervical spine on May 31, 2011 as-well as a lumbar MRI and
ch;ropracﬁc visits as well as another MRI of the cervical spine in January, 2013, an ‘EMG in January of 2013,
and MRI of the cervical spine on July 30,2013. (RX 3) Dr. Hsu testified he does not utilize EMG in his practice
as: he believes they are somewhat unrehable and operator—dependent but he did' consider: it as they were
completed in this case. He stated at the time of his evaluation, Petitioner’s complaints included neck pain, right-
sided hand, wrist and elbow " pain, and some hand weakness.. -He provided a- history of a May 4, 2012
automob:le accident and then a November 20 2012 accident when lifting a cylinder out of a vehicle injuring his
' nght arm and neck again. He testified that the physical exam demonstrated full range of motion of the cervical
spine with positive Spurling's sign on the right, with no other positive: fmdmgs except weakness in the right
hand that was evidenced with abductor polhc1s brevis weakness. Dr. Hsu opined that he had suffered a cervical
strain which had resolved and. had pre- ex1stmg cervical spondyloszs (RX'3, p.11) Dr. Hsu' oplned that both
injuries whlch were descrzbed were of low 1mpact and therefore he may have suffered cervical sttains for each.

6



_Thc MRI 1cports duuonstmtcd LLI\]Ldl pon( xlcstx ‘»xhtclt vere.
opined: th 1t at the time. oi 11;~. L\s]datron dltilou"h Bis sy

Csieoid aieciion as v elis pu\, stiealiberupy vouid e e
o the pre- isting u;xlcdl sponmirt conditionz (RN/3, . 15} Dt H\ :
‘againon \pni 99 7’()1 30 IeVIEW cd 1cc01ds ot thc cumdl pme from: ?\/ ayv- 10 7()%»% 1Lwrrts of Dy \’udonc and

ruhmd that e e\dludted Petitioner -

Dr. Eubsnl\s and. ellcrtcd comj )iamts of numbncss and tingling of zhc §1<Tht hand as wellas neek: pmn Examion

this ‘occasion demonstrated | tuil range. ‘of motion of the cervical: spme ‘normal’ neuralogic exarm and- nceatwc_-.

...";Spurimws test compdtcd to: the p;;or time, Dr. Hsu opmed at- thls time; hc md 1o ncccssu} ot additrondl cdrc_"_' e
or hrs cery 1031 spiie; as; ‘there was no iunctloml d:sabrhtv on 3hvs1cal xam (RX 3; p 18) He opmed he could Col

"1thout restrlctron (1d at 19)

:. Petrtroner went on to-.ha\;e a C4 C’}’ fusrcn on 4/ 17/18 (?X 43) Petltroneralieged an allerglc reaction to thei-':"""-.'-"

: -'-hardware The mrtrai allergy testrng was negatrve (PX 46) On June 13 7018 Petrtzoner advrsed Dr Nardoue of .

o of hlS muscie groups demonstrated good strength and there was a drscrepancy between what Petltroner reported S S

“and what he was able to observe (RX 13) Pet;tloner then transferred hrs care Dr Boyer who removed the
-'hardwareon.?unel’/ 2019 S - R It i

. Conclusmns of Law

T he Arbztrator f‘ nds as folla%s wzrh respecr to (F ) Is Perztzonei s current condzrton of rll~bemg relared to t‘he"'_;'g :
' ._acczde: ofMa_y 4 201, : g g

Petrtroner was undrsputedly drrvmg a customer g _ustang on thrs date when another vehrci . ruck h1m fromi'_ o

' ".’oehlnd at an estrmated 7 1o EO mrles per hour The pohce report {PX 6). rcﬂccts there were no 1n3urles and’ the:'_ _ I_ :
-State. Farm damage payment (RX 16) reﬂect $57 9 39 pard to rermbursc what Petrtroner descrrbed as; sprdermg: o

'_of the pamt on the bumper

_-._Petrtloner testxfred that foliowmg the acc1dent he alded the pohce ofﬁcer in completmg the report He testlﬁed'

‘at the time he had no symptoms:: Petrtroner testified that within'a. couple of houts of going home, he' expemenced G
_:nausea ‘headache and vomited.: Petitioner saw chrropractor Berkey on May 8,2012. adwsmg of the accident,: -
concern about whrplash but'indicated he had no neck or upper back pain. Adjustment ‘was provrded on the rrght L
at C3 and left at Co. (RX 6) Petitioner was- seen in therapy on May 10, 2012 with no mention -of neck pam.
: Pet1t1oner was seen in therapy again on May 14, 2012 with notation of- pam in nght fower: neck. On May 15,

“2015,he was examined by chrropractor Berkey who noted a positive, compresswn test on the right and tlghtness RO

“during cervical extension. He advised Petitiorier they would put other care on hold to- get the. neck back on track.
Petitioner had 8 therapy visits which mcluded ultrasound to his cerv1c31 spine: although there were no subjectwe e
complamts noted after 5/21/ 12. (RX. 6) On 6/11/12, he underwent manrpuiatlon at’ r1ght C3 and lefi C6'with
reported soreness in the left ieck. He continued therapy through August 20, 2012 for . multrple parts of body :
‘including the cervical spine at which pomt he was noted to have reached approx1mate1y hrs pre mjury state and _
_focus changed tc hrs leﬁ shoulder in addrtlon to other parts of body under actwe care . '

Petltroner suffers from d1abet1c neuropathy Thls is documented in prror records such as EMG and biood work B
(RX 5,7,9,-10.and 15) Petitioner’s symptoms of headache and nausea can be explamed by this condition, as
can the symptoms of cold in the hands, feet, peeling skin near the’ ﬁngernaﬂs and-dryness. Petitioner had no
ccrnplamts of neck pain until May 14,2012. Drs. Li, Nardone and Hsu all testified that. _pathology in ‘his’
cervical spine was. degeneratrve in nature. Dr. Nardone and Hsu stated symptoms as'a result may wax and wane. -
c Dr Li stated that hls cervrcal symptoms were srmdar to hrs complamts in 2011 and that he attrlbuted causatlon S
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to an 11/26/12 lifting incident. Dr. Hsu testified that the mechanism of injury for May 4, 2012 would be
cornpatzble with a strain. Dr. Nardone stated his cervical complaints could be related to the accident but went on
to state he had reviewed no outside records, there was no radiculopathy, there was nothmg acute on the MRI
- and an incident at this rate of speed would not'be conszdered a'major aceident, The Arbitrator finds that based
upon the records pre—datmg the ‘accident, including the fact that chiropractor Dickhut indicated he was still

planning to administer additional care to the cervical spine, and the fact that no neck pam is mentioned until ten

days foilowmg the incident, that there is no causal connection between the cerwcal spme complamts and this
date of acmdent ' -

W}th respect to the Ieﬁ shoulder, the ﬁISt men‘uon of same was on June 13, 2012 in therapy at Whlch pomt he
stated he did not know what he did at work or at home that had caused same. It should be noted that Petitioner’s
first visit with chiropractor Dickhut in 2011 mentions a torn biceps which occurred while he worked for GM.
When he ultimately saw Dr. Eubanks, his initial complaints were not left shoulder, but on October:14, 2014,
following hand and elbow surgery, he complained of left shoulder pain spemﬁcaliy pomtmg to the bicep. Dr. Li
opined it was causally related but also acknowledged this was solely based upon Petitioner having told him he
had left shoulder pain since the May 4, 2012 accident; he had reviewed no other related records. Chiropractor
- Dickhut stated it was related as he could have pulled his shoulder while bracmg for the impact, and the cervical
problems were more promment Firstly, Petitioner testified he did not brace for impact as he was not looking
and did not know he was:going to be hit. Secondly, his pam rating with initial’ cervical complamt was a 3/10.
Dr. Brent Johnson opined there was no causal connection as the mechamsm of injury would not cause a rotator
cuff problem and’ there were 18 visits before there was any complamt to the: shoulder The: Arbltrator notes the
_ treatmg physicians’® opinions. with respect to causation which were “may have” or*could have’” do not meet the
standard of evidence required; more probable than not. The Arbltrator finds the opinions of Dr. Johnson and

evidence of treatment and complaint, or lack thereof, most persuasive and denies any causal connection
between the left shoulder and the May 4, 2012 accndent

As the Arbitrator ﬁnds no causai connection between PetltIOner S complamts and date of acmdent the i 1ssues of
medtcal blils and permanency are moot.



STATE OF‘ 'IL_LII_\IOIS_ : ) E':.- . Afﬁrm and adopt (no ehanges)
R AR AR RTRA ) S8, D Afﬁrm w1th ehanges S

_ D In_;ured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d)) '

D Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g))

.' COUNTY OF MCLEAN . ) . S D Reverse . Second Injury Fund (§8(e)]8) '
C S S - '_ et D PTDfFataI demed
s _' DMOdlfy . R _' R %N@ne ofthe abme o

B : BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION
 ?%%_   ,, 211*Ce1+:;“'

s e o o NO 15wc2124

:' :_F_red. Gr.e'\:fe's__S.eﬁf:icenterl d/b/a ‘_Ffed Groves, .

: Respondent : : A L

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Tlmely Petltlon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by the Petltloner herem and notlce given to" g
- all parties the Commission, ‘after considering the issues of accident, notice, causal connection,

- medical expenses, temporary total d1sab111ty, and permanent part1a1 dlsabihty, and belng adv1sed L
. of the facts and law,. afﬁrms and adopts the Decasmn of the Arbltrator whlch 1s attached hereto Lo

_and made a part hereof

SRR IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the DeCISlon of the |
' Arbﬁrator ﬁled March 11 2020 is hereby afﬁrmed and adopted '

FEREEON IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to |
' Petltloner mterest under sectlon 19(n) of the Act, 1f any ' : L .

_ IT ISF URTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION ’Ehat Respondent shali have credlt
for all amounts paid if any, to or on behalf of Petltloner on account of sald accxdental mjury
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No bond for removal of thlS cause to the Cll‘CUIt Court is requlred as no award for o

-' payment has been entered “The party commencing the proceedmgs for review inthe Clrcmt L

B _Court shall ﬁle w1th the Commlssmn a Notlce of Intent to Fﬁe for Rev1ew m Clrcmt Court S

-_DAT'ED:. MAR i"' 2021
o241

:.__45 i
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 NoTi E;OF " ARBITRATOR DECISION

_:-_-Q'BuFFAMG DAV!D C‘abe# *ifa‘ﬁf’ce ’fi?i“'_‘
:'.EmPIOyeefPetlt!oner S e ERPERA

TIFRED GROVES SERVICENTER D/BIA FRED
Employer/Respondent




STATEOFILLINOIS =) B
COUNTY OF MCLEAN o P . '_: - S R j D \L»onc In_;m\ Fund (Qr\{c) \) :

B i \om ot IH&, abme N

ILLH\OIS WORKERS’ CO“PENS»\TIO\ COM\HSSIO\I
' ARBITRAT!O\J DECISION - '

-'DAVID BUFFANO Case# 15 wc 02124

Employucf]’emzoner -
' v i : ' ’ - ‘o Consolida’{ed cascs

F RED GROVES SERVICENTER D/B/A F RED GROVES
'Employel’Respondent R

-An Applacatton for Aajmstment of Clazm was ﬁied in thls matter and a Notzce of Hem mg was maﬂed to each
party.. The matter was heard by the Honorable PAUL: SEAL Arbltrator of the Commiission, in the city: of’

‘BLOOMINGTON, on September 24 and October 16, 2019. After reviewing all of the evrdence presented
the Arbrtrator hereby makes ﬁndmgs on the disputed 1ssues checked below and attaches those ﬁndmgs to’ th1s

DISP ED ISSUES

E E}lseases Act? :
[:] Was there an empioyee empioyer relatlonshrp‘? - : : : :
X] Did an accident occur. that arose ot of and i 1n the course of Petrtroner s employment by Respondent‘f’ -
. What was: the date of the. accrdent’? SO o - T S
IX] Was t1me1y notzce of the accrdent grven to Respondent" o
]XI Is Pentroner s current condmon of ill- bemg causally related to the mjury" -'
Rl What were Petrtmner § eammcs"’ e o : SRR
1] What was Petltloners ageat the tlme of the acmdent‘?
) What was Petlttoner S marztal status at the tlme of the accrdent‘?

= -*“--.m' o mm Uow

pard all approprlate charges forall reasonabie and necessary medlcal servrces‘? -
. What temporary beneﬁts are'in dlspute" S . '
[:] TPD [ Maintenance ] TTD '
L. . ‘What is the nature and extent of the 1n3ury'? o
M. [] Shouid penaittes or fees be rmposed upon Respondent"
N. D Is Respondent due any credrt’7 '

0. DOther S

| ?q

- Was Respondent operatmg under and subject to the Ilhn()ls Workers Compensatron or Occupatlonal '

ICArbDec 2/10 100 . Rtmdo!ph Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60601 312/814-6611 - Toll-free 866/352-3033 - Web site: nww.iwee, rlgcn, ;
Downsrate oﬁ'ce: Collmsw![e 618/346 3450 Peoua 309/671 301‘9 Rockford 815:987 7292 Sprmgﬁe!d2]7/785 7084 B .

' . Were the medicai services that were provzded to Pet1t1oner reasonable and necessary" Has Respondent o



. . -sg Tg‘i"? 78 oy
FINDINGS 2 1 A § % %J

On this date, an.émpioyee-emﬁ.loy.er r'elationsﬁip dfd exist between Petitioner and Respondent.

Oﬁ this date, Petitioner did not sustain an accident that arose out éf and in the course of employment.
.Timeiy notice of this accident was not given to Respondént.

Pétitioner'é current coﬁdiﬁbn of iil~béing is not causally related to the accident.

In the year pfeceding the injury, Petitioner eémed $50,561 .68; the average Weekiy Wage was $972.34.
~On tﬁe date o.f accident, Petitioner was 52 years of age, sz}':gle witﬁ 2 depenéent cﬁﬂdren.-

Pe_tiﬁone_r has received all rgasonable and necessary:medical servicés.

Respondent fas paid all appropriate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services.

ORDER
Denial of benefits

No benefits are awarded.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this
decision and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the
decision of the Commission. S RN

STATEMEN_T OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the
Notice of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;
however, if an employee’s appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not
oore | AL : : TS GRVER, PR Be

March 6, 2020
Date

Signature of Arbitrator

it p.3 COMAR 112020



_-i \,UUOBLI tcstitmd hi., had plulous V bCen melomd as-an mhne and u;?o meehanu. W ;th v cmous hu,nsu dnd :
certifications. ‘He testlhed that he: had pte\;ous]y sustained an injury to-his: hands w h;l:. working for Paul and.
Mlke s Transmission 1esulimg i ca;pai tarinel. Thereafter, he did not work: ’Lo; four years but for 1. posmon for -
2 23 months.  Petitioner bneﬂy worked:. mzukm,g, {ines: for juhe but could not do if. He also ‘obtained.a CDL

f’ mdmms 0;‘ F aca‘

license but stated he had too’ much:pain-in his neck to drive. (T120-12 2y Petitloner became employed: with
: ;Respondent on August 8 2(}1 Ias a mechame AS of Octob01 13 2012 Petitxonex stated he bcg,arl to exporlence S

hand and. d}fﬁculty movmg has middke ring. and smaH ﬁngers Wlth 1ssues of peehng and loose skm wh;ch he

~“said occurred on and off. Petitioner testlﬁed he may have mentioned this t0.Sam. (T. 55-57) The Application for

'.'Adjustment for this'matter was filed. 1/22/ 18. _'Peht:oner testified when ‘he ceased: working in January of 2013, - S
~.Groves. offered him a posmon asa service writer which he refused. (T, 249- -250) Petitioner testified he sold hls'-'

'._-'own parts, caHed his own customers and. completed exténded warranties, (T 231 252) Petztloner has the same o
'symptoms m hlS rlght hand at present and that hlS right shou"ider was okay - i : oo

'_Alhed Heaith records from 10/17/ 12- 10/24/ 12.-dlseuss complamts of 1ew bac:k rxght thlgh and knee and ieﬁ_' f
“ shoulder. (PX 33) On 10/29/ 12 He adds cemplamt of numbness in the: right pmky finger. He'is ‘seen 10/31/12
“and:11/1/12 with the. same: compiamts Asiof 11/7/12 he notes coldness in his right hand.. - On’ 11/13/12;

Petitioner eomplams of discomfort in his back and neck as well as numbness in his hands. He continues with the -

‘same complamts through 11720/ 12_ On 11/26/ 12 Petmoner alleges a new hﬁmg acmdent m Wthh he 1njured S

'-:hls nght-hand eibow __neek"and_ 1ow back

_'_:Pet1t1o er: testlﬁed his’ job: dunes Wwere Cngine: repair rebuﬂd and replace transm1551on repau- 'and repiace
- computer repair approximately 55 hours per ‘week. (T. 28-30) He: testified that he worked with his hands
' _.overhead about half the day, used air and hand- tools and used his. hands the entire; day (T 30- -33). Pentloner-f :
testified he does not. have diabetes anymore (T 122} Petitioner testrﬁed he never had: high blood: ‘pressure. until
before the neck surgery: (T 123) Petitioner testified he never had the peehnU of his ﬁngers before his employ' 3
iw1th Respondent (T 139) Petltzoner testlﬁed that he had no restnctlons asa result of h1s work mJury at Pauli:-

Samuela Perez testlﬁed on behaif of the Petltloner She stated she became the ofﬁee manager sometlme 1 2012 _
or:2013. She had prevmusiy worked on’an as. needed basis. She testified she filled out the: job descnption (T.
193): She. faxed & copy to. Petitioner’s attorney - secking approval of same prior to sendmg tothe workers’
-'compensatlon carrier. . (RX 17) Petitioner testified that she" quﬁ workmg there in 2018 -and " after various

empioyment issues, beheved she had no onalty from the owner. (T.204- 205) She testified that she tumed in |

papers:-to AFLAC and also the. paperwork for the acmdents of May 4 201? and November 2012 (T 207) She
eonﬁrmed she had borrowed money from Groves S i S RRUE _

Mr Groves testiﬁed on behaif of the busmess as owner for forty years He stated he was not a mechamc but_- '
could: perform some ‘work such as oil: ehanges He stated if sormeone has an ac01dent in'the shop, they take care
of it then. (T 215 216) He. stated the job' descmption was. compieted by Sam. Groves stated he- may- not have -
realized the 1mportance of it as she asked him to sign many things and he did affix his s1gnature 10 samie. Groves

stated the description is not accurate. (T. 223- =225} Groves testified he dxstnbuted the work and ‘had Petitioner |

work on timing belts, air conditioners etc. but g gave all the heavy work to Gary. (T. 225- 226) Groves confirmed
‘he continued to pay for AFLAC and chﬂd support on Petitloner s behalf after he was no Eonger workmg there
(T 229 230) . : o S SRS :



'.Garjf Woods testlﬁed on behalf of Respondent. Mr. Woods stated he began workmg for Respondent in 1977
and learned most of his trade on the job. By 1987, he was made shop foreman. He testified he got everyone their
- work and then he did all the exhaust Work weldmg engme puihng, box trucks and motor homes Woods

on about 10 cars per day. He stated Groves would start the schedule and he would work the rest of 1t out. He
would have someone else test drive them which was often Petitionet, and sometimes Groves or the alignment
mechanic. Waods stated Petitionér was assigned light work like air cend;tmmng and brakes. Woods stated
Petitioner left early 3 days a week to go to a back physician and he was aware he had prior carpal tunnel. (RX
14 at pp. 11-12) Woods testified that Petitioner would have the tire guys pull the tires off and put them back on
for him and that he did not remember Petitioner pulling a cylinder but said that was a two-person job. Woods
stated Petmener typically worked on 2 — 3 cars per day. (RX 14 at 14) Woods testified Petitioner also used the
diagnostic scanner, put on electric motor windows which weighed about a pound; had a stool to sit on and do
brake jobs, would go downstairs for periods of time to talk and likewise into the office; and after the diagnostics
were complete, he would provide to Groves for pricing and then may call the customer with the information.
Woods testified most of the tools Petitioner worked with were within the range of 5 to ten pounds. The parts
were frequently light but could weigh up to 15 pounds. He stated a cylinder head could weigh up to 60 pounds

and Petitioner would have asked for help either from himself or one of the tire guys who were always around as

he was trying to train them. (RX 14 at 25-26) Woods testified that despite his name bemg on the bottom of the
' J()b deserlptlon his dep051t10n was the ﬁrst he had ever seen same. :

o Dr L1 rendered no oplmons relatwe to the parts of body for th1s date of alieged aceuient Hls comments w1th

respect to repetitive trauma were restricted to the ulnar nerve. Dr. Li ordered and MRI ef the’ nght shoulder
which demonstrated no pathology but was also considered non- dlagnostzc

Dr. Eubanks (PX 3) testified he was licensed in the State of Illinois in 2008 and has been Board Certified in
Orthopedic Surgery since 2011. He testified that at the first evaluation on May 9, 2014, Petitioner provided a
history of pain, weakness and numbness in the upper extremity mostly the right arm; in addition to wrist drop.
(PX3, p.7). Dr. Eubanks stated his exam demonstrated weakness of the radial nerve distribution with wrist
extension, as well as numbness in the med1an nerve distribution and tenderness over the lateral eplcondyle and
forearm: He further stated that tenderness over the lateral epicondyle demonstrated epwondyhns and he had a
positive Tinel and Phalen sign demonstrating carpal tunnel. (PX3, p.13). He testified that weakness of the wrist
was. strictly the radial nerve. (Id.) He stated that a surgery was completed on August 20, 2014 _consisting of
epicondylitis release, carpal tunnel release and posterior interosseous release. He testified that as of that date,
he would- have restricted him from work for six weeks until he could return to light duty. (PX3, pp.14-15). He
testified that as of the September 9, 2014 visit, he demonstrated improvement with respect to the radxal nerve
function.. (PX3, p. 16). Dr. Eubanks testified that on the October 14, 2014 visit, he did not spend a lot of time
“documenting his right arm because the primary purpose at that point was left arm pain. Dr. Eubanks testlﬁed
that. on January 22, 2015, Petitioner: had improved with respect to the right arm and had - full strength and
resolved wrist drop Dr. Eubanks testified that based upon the job descnption ‘{endered by opposing counsel at
the deposition (inaccurate descrlption) these job duties may have been the cause of his right upper extrem;ty
ailment.  Dr. Eubanks again testified that he did not recall anything other than minimal complaints with respect
to the epleondyle release as of January 22, 2015. (PX3, p. 38). Dr. Eubanks acknowledged that his opinions
with respect to causation were based solely on ‘what Petitioner’s counsel advised him at the deposition as well as
his discussion with Petitioner about doing things like taking 1arge parts out of cars. He also acknowledged that
he had not reviewed any medical records documentmg pre-existing condltlons reiated to the a11ments which he
prOthed care for and that this may 1mpact hlS oplmon (PX3 pp 41 42)
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Dr. \\lltlams tesutrul hdt he Is a t’mdi( u,;ntled mthopuize surecon \})Li,iuti/l‘l” in upnu e\t;emn\, and h;tt'in, :
-evaluated. Petitlonu in th;\ nmttu an OLto‘oei 9.2013, ~The history Ps,trtlonet p;m; ded Dro Willie A1ns was that he
I)x,”dn o wvork 1L)1 i"ii.,Ll UIL]\L “}LI\teL Lullu fxtn Jtht 5 ROATER N anid m\, 1:,[‘31. datc ol unpm» Wi Jammi\ i nUt 3

with & date ofi mjm) of Nov embu 76 2012, “He t{.strtxed timt his pOsmon as a Service Tednlluan inv oh ed

doing all. types. of auto repair inc udrné, engine ‘work. tmnsmt\ston work. “brake work and diagnostics, He: -
worked. from 7:30.t0.:5:00, -Monday . t hroug,t Friday, used . engine. htts hand: tools, air 1mpaet ‘tools, AC
“equipment, and- transmission equipment. He used wrenches, screw driv ers, hammers, and socket wrenches. He.
stated that he pr ev;eusly had a right carpal tunnel reledse done twice as w el as. 1eft carpal tunnel release:” He'

: _noted that on. May 4, 2012 he rn}ured his left shoulder in an automobile aemdent He then stated that.on the date: " "

_of injury: for this: problem November. 26,:2012; he was working doing. eylmder work: He was pul linga eyhnder :

“over the. fender and he fett pain fromthe. elbow to'the tmﬂertrps gettrncT it out, He: said he kept W01k1ng but ‘the .. o
“pain got worse. (RX 1 pp.7-8) He mquxred as to whether the: Pet1tioner had problems with - ‘his neck; andﬂ- Lo

Petitioner denied same.  Petitioner described lack of strength; pain in the rtght wrist, numbness tingling, ‘pins

“and needles in'the rmg and smiall. ﬁngers onty He also’said his’ hands ‘got ice cold; and he wore . gioves at night

“for sleeping. He had | pain when he’ fully. stralghtened or extended the right elbow. He complained of nighttime -
‘waking due 1o nght anm as well'as left arm: pain; compia:ned of bilateral weakness, noted he dropped things and -
“stated he had: goneto. physical therapy.. He completed a questionnaire, ‘which included the fact that he had been
a daabetle since 1997 and had diabetic neuropathy ‘He also. experienced hypertensron (RX 1,p.11) He noted
“he had: not been taking medication for th¢ last. four to five months. because he could not afford them. HIS.{
‘hobbies included building old cars; ‘and he was' rtght -hand dominant.” :Dr, Williams testified he reviewed the
‘medical records: forwarded: before the ‘exam, with the: Petitioner: himself, in order to allow the ‘individual to -
'_'eorrect anythlng that ‘was inaccurate, -as well as. after in order to get: complete detail. Dr Wﬂhams testified he
“completed an exam, Petltloner had a BMIof32.1; whrohf--piaced him at 1nereased risk for perlpheral neuropathy,“ :
* he had full cervical range of motion and eomplamed ofno. rad1culopathy, had some atrophy at the right triceps.
but not on the left, as well as atrophy on the nght hypothenar eminence on the rtght and the first ‘dorsal

interosseous on the nght (RX 1,p15) Dr. erhams exptamed that- atrophy OcCurs over a: Iong perrod of time . |

‘hot’ srmply days weeks or mont‘ns but Iong~term compression. (RX 1, pp. 16- 17) I—Ie noted he had no ev1dence:' :
‘of complex regtonal pain syndrome range of motion of the elbows was: full, range of motion of the Tight wrist
had:-40 degrees of extension, which indicated weakness in the radial nerve and this had been noted on prev;ous' L

nerve study ‘Manual muscle testmg ofthe elbow flexion strength on the rlght which he noted was inneryvated by
C5:C6, was only 3+ 1o 4+/5. On: the left it'was 4+/5. ‘Elbow extension on the ngbt ‘was onIy 4/5. compared o -

4+/5 whlch was due to weakness in'the trzeeps erst extension’ strength on the right was 0/5, and Dr: Wiihams
oplned hewas giving good effort. (RX 1, p.19). Petltloner had decreased range of motion on'the left compared :
to the right. (RX 1, p19) He had tenderness over the lateral eprcondyle on the rlght and’ wrist extensron'_

"strength could not be tested as ‘he: could not. actively extend the wiist. It was negatrve on the left. ‘Positive

Tinel's sign on the rlght negative on the left, equivocal Phalen' s on the’ rlght negative on the left, and posmve'
median nerve compression test on the right, negative on the left. ‘He did have some evidence of carpal tunnel on
the right but not on the left. Dr. Williams opmed that review of records was significant for the fact it showed he

had:a Iong hrstory of compiamts with respeet 0 his right arm. (RX 1, p.21) He noted the records of Dr.. i

Dickhut, in which during September 18,.2008 he was complammg of pins and needles in his hands ‘stabbing
pmeh strength had improved since surgery as “did his grip strength. -He again eomplamed in 2011 of. frequent: '
sharp, aching, burnmg, numbness, shooting,’ trnghng and dlseomfort 1in tight wrist, forearm, palm and so he
noted these complaints predated ‘his employ. (RX 1, pp.. 21-22) Dr. ‘Williaims noted that per Dr. Dickhut's . -
records,. Petitioner had various complamts with respect to his right hand, ruining. ‘his life, causing inability to
sleep, | had seen 13 doctors in four years trying to figure out what was ‘wrong and had been off of work, that at
the same time, noted he was enjoying riding four-wheelers on his five acres and playmg with his dogs‘and domg
yard work. " (RX 1, p.24) Dr. ‘Williams testified that diabetes prechsposes one to deveioplng carpal tunnel, and
that Petltloner had been dlagnosed w1th dlabetle neuropathy, _wh1eh notes the severlty of the dlabetes and the o
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fact that the nerves had already been affected. He also noted that individuals with diabetes who undergo carpal

tunnel surgery do not do as well because the nerves affected with diabetes 1s due to the blood supply is the outer

layer of nerves, therefore, those in the periphery get poor blood supply. (RX 1, pp- 25-26) He further noted that

“a diabetic who is not taking medication could expect their symptoms to increase:. Dr: ‘Williams also discussed
the note of Dr. Liu of January 13, 2011, noting that the Petitioner presented with hand pain which felt like a

rock in his palm, he slept wearing gloves and he had been out of work at that point for three years because he

could not do anything with his restrictions. They had been trying to use a calcium channel blocker to increase

the blood supply. (RX 1, p.27) Dr. Williams also noted another visit with Dr. Liu on February 28, 2011 in

which the Petitioner presented with bilateral hand pain, had an EMG which confirmed bilateral carpal tunnel,

had a redo of the right three weeks after the initial one and was experiencing right wrist radiating into the

 forearm and palm with his last two digits being the ring and small fingers. He also feli cold constantly and there
was a slight temperature difference between the right and left hand. Dr. Williams testified that six months prior
to his employment with Respondent, he had significant problems affecting his ring and small fingers as well as
the whole right hand due to diabetic peripheral neuropathy. (RX 1, p.29) Dr. lehams opined that Petitioner
had evidence of diabetic peripheral neuropathy, cervical rad;culopathy, and evidence of left shoulder probiems
and evidence of radial nerve palsy. (RX 1, p.34) He had high radial nerve palsy because he could not extend the
wrist’ which meant it affected the nerves above the elbow. Dr. Williams testified that he completed an
addendum report of November 27, 2013 after review of additional records. ' Dr, Williams testified the records
- described polyneuropathy, for which one of the main causes is diabetes; causing muitlple nerves to be affected.
(RX 1;p. 39) He noted that the review of those additional records. did not change his opinions relative to causal
connection which was that Petitioner’s right upper extremity probiems pre-date his employthent and are not
- ‘causally related to his work. He also noted that those job duties could not cause a radial neuropathy, firstly, due
to absence of an injury which would require direct impact to the radial nerve and secondly, that the diagnosis of

same was not determined on exam until July 29, 2013. This was over six months following end of his
employment. (RX 1, p.44)

Dr.J ohrison opined that considering the MRI of the right sheulder, Petition__er’s minimal complaints of the right
shoulder, and his clinical exam on the date of his evaluation, he would not recommend arthroscopic surgery for
the right shoulder. He also noted it demonstrated no acute traumatic pathology. (RX 2, p.24)

Co‘nclusiohs of Law

The Arbzrmz‘or renders the followmg wth respect to (C), did an acczdem‘ occur w’uck arose out of Petitioner’s
_ employ and (E), notice: - :

Petitloner tesﬁﬁed to. complam’ss of nght shoulder and nght -hand pam w1thou’t speciﬁc acc1dent The

Application for Adjustment suggests “arms, hand and other body parts,” Petitioner testified that he did multiple

types of repair, in addition to calling customers. Groves testified he tried to assign Petitioner the lighter work.
~Woods gave a fairly thorough descrlption of Petitioner’s work, aiso noting most was of light weight of less than

10 or 15 pounds, that assistance was available for heavier or more difficult tasks, to which Petitioner availed

himself, and also that Petitioner was responsible for test driving vehicles as well as procuring rental cars for

customers. He also noted Pétitioner spent time chatting with the mechanics below and the ladies in the office."
A job description form was completed by Perez, office manager, purportedly with the assistance of Groves, who
denies same and indicates it is inaccurate. Perez” bias is clearly for the Petitioner, having quit her position under
mrcumstances for which she blamed her employer and havmg sent the job description to Petitioner’s attorney
for review in advance of sharmg with the insurance carrier. The Arbitrator determmes that firstly, the written

4
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job dese 1mt1~:m dppmis mauumtu pu thu twtm‘zm _e i_ a ﬂ \,um\:\\w and that Pul oners: |0b duties a; pmud ro
be Qén mﬂ.s _\ dnud with bma&a [mm x\wl\m&{ as. i Llu.i 1'111_ ang i WeTE p;ui i naa ty 01“ lwnt \\Ll"hi S

The ~\1b;tr’1toz‘ d1%0 notu; t]nt thc wmptom«; u\pn,s\,ul in tmatmmt notes ummdmtnh a‘oliomn o tlm ftcu(km
~do not correlate. with the body. parts -alleged on: this date and that Petitioner’s treating. ph\f%mrm rendered no
_opinion, 101dt111§__) S¥ mptoms 1o this: ddtC “The A1b1tlat01 determines. Pgtstmnu dld not sustain-a work i injury on. :

‘October 15, 2012 arising out o% and in the course of cmpl@y and that notice was not p10v1dcd the Rcspondenti .
LW 1th;n 45 ddys of the dCCldLl]t as Pehtmner ’{Lstlﬁbd he dad ﬂot teil GlO\: c,b All othm 135116‘: are moot R




L STATEOFILLINOIS ) '. L . Afﬁrm and adopt {no changes) _' D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))

) SS.. . Affirm wrth changes R o . Rate Acijustrnent Fund (§8(g))

o COUNTY OFMCLEAN ) D Reverse ORI i DSccondInjuryFund (QS(e)IS) _

o ' DaVld Buffano EEETRE T

_ R .?TD/Fataldemed RO
B .MOdlfy @Noneoftheabove RN

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION

Petltloner

‘Fred Groves Servicenter d/b/a Fred Groves,

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Tameiy Petltron for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by the Petrtloner herern and notrce gwen to S

: -_alI partles ‘the Comrmssmn, aﬁer consrdermg the i issues of accrdent causal- connectron medical

- expenses, temporary total dlsabﬂ;ty, and permanent. paﬁzaI dzsablhty, and. bemg adwsed of the _

. facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts the Dec:lsmn of the Ar‘mtrator whlch is attached hereto and made S
aparthereof : . EOER R o S . . S

ST IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Deczsxon Of the:.} : :
. Arbltrator ﬁied March 11 2020 1% hereby afﬁrmed and adopted e R -

- IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY TI-IE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to_
Petltroner 1nterest under sectlon 19(n) of the Act 1f any . R

_ 1T IS FURTI—IER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credzt
' for alE amounts pald if any, to or on behalf of Pet;tloner on account of sard acmdental 1njury
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325 '-_'-_'Page 2

No bond for removai of thts cause to the ClI'CUIt Ceurt 1s reqmred as no award for

i payment has been entered The party commencing the proceedmgs for review in the Cm;u:t

'_:";f{_:o 2/4/21- MAR 1 - 2021
ERR R [BNF/wde i

- Court shall ﬁie Wlth the Commlssmn a Notzce of Intent to Flle for Rev;ew 111 CH‘CLHT. Court

| "DATED

S ar CParker £ I



. BUFFAND, DAVID Lol Case#

- ._'&mployee/Petltloner

-.;::IFRED GROVES SERVICECENTER D/BlA FRED
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' EmpleyerfRespondent : "
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CSTATEOFILLINOIS )

: S PR o e " : . B : o __.ilh{)neo[t1eabe\re
ILLH\OIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CO\I\/HSSIO\{ B
Do : ARBITRATION DECISIO’\I . :' SRS

_-'_':Emp!oyecii’ctltloner Y

: ':'V' g Consohdated cases

FRED GROVES SERVICENTER D/B/A FRED GROVES '-f: L

Empioy erfRespondent

: "-iAn Apphcarzon for Acbustmenr of Clazm was ﬁled in thlS matter and a Notzce of Hearmg was malled to each :.' .

party.. The matter was heard by the Honorable PAUL SEAL, Arbitrator of the Commission; in the city of

:;-SBLOOMINGTON Ot September 24 and October 16 2019 After 1ev1ew1ng all of the. ev1dence presented. : '
the Arbltrator hereby makes ﬁndlngs on’ the dlsputed issues. checked beiow and attaches those ﬁndmgs to- thls S

D Was Respondent operatlng under and subject to the thcns Workers Compensatxon or Ocoupanonal .
Diseases Act? - S . U T
' D Was there an’ employee-employer relationshlp‘? _ = : SRR B )
. Did an. acmdent occur that arose ouit of and n the course of Pet1t1oner s employment ‘oy Respondent’7 -: :
.Whatwasthedateoftheacmdent‘? o SRR S : e
. Was timeiy IIOUCG of the accxdent glven to Respondent? - Lo
~[X] 15 Petitioner's current condition of il bemg causally related to the mjury" -
1) What were Pet1t1oner S earmngs" i : SR
D What was Petltloner s age at the nme of the acc1dent‘?
D What was Peunoners mantal status at the time of the accndent‘? T R AP E PR
. {| Were the med1ca1 services: that were prov1ded to Pennoner reasonabie and necessary‘? Has Respondent L
pazd all approprlate charges for all reasonable and necessary medlcal ser\nces‘? :
What temporary benefits are in dlspute? . -
. [ITPD - [JMaintenance X TTD
L. D - What is the nature and extent of the mjury‘? . -
M. [] Should penalties or fees be 1mposed upon Respondent‘? _
N. D Is Respondent due any . credlt" E : :
O. DOther SRS - =

?‘_

1CArbDec 2/10 100 W Rando{ph Slree! #8-200 Ciucago IL 6!)6!}1 3 i 7/81'4 G611 Toll-free 866/35 2-3033 . Web site: www.iweeil.gov
Downsmte oﬁ‘ces Collmsvti[e 618/346- 3430 Peoria 309/67] 3019 Rockﬁrm‘ 815/98? 729’ Sprmgfel’d 217/}’85 ?()84 Lo




FINDINGS

On 6/25/2012, Respondent was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

On this date, an emploj/ee'-etﬁployef reiationéhip did 'exist.!.aetwe'en Petitioﬁer aﬁd Respondent.

On this dafe, Petitioner did not sustai.n. an accident that arose out of and in the. course of employmeni‘

Timely ﬁotice of this accident was not given {o Résﬁon&ént.

Petitioﬁer‘s current condiﬁon of ill-being is not causally related to the accident.

In {hé Yeér preceding the injury, Petitioner earned $_49,060.44; the avefage weekly wage was $943.47.

Qn the date of ﬁccident, Peﬁtioner Waé §2_ years 6f age, single with 2 dependent_ chiidren._

Petitioner_ 'h'.as_ fe_ceived all reasonable aﬂd necessary 1nedi§a1 services. |

| Respondeﬁt hm;w paid all a’iﬁpro’priate charges fof all rea.so.nable .aﬁd' 'necesséry_ mediéai sewiéés.' K

Dénial of beneﬁts

No benefits are awarded.

| RUL.E'S. REGARi)EﬁG AI_’I"EIALS Unless a party files a Petition Sfor Rew’éw wi{hin 30 days after r_ecei.p't of this
decision and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the

decision of the Commission. ' o ' '

STATEMENT oF iNTEkEST RATE if tﬁe Commi;ssioﬁ réviéws this award, iﬁterésf at the rate set forth on the

Notice of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;

howevet, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not
accrue. ' ' ' : - '

i

» - =
i o
T i SRR

March 6, 2020
Signature of Arbitrator : . Date

ICArbDec p. 2. o

MAR 11 2020
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: Petmonu oeoame emp oyed wrth {espondent on Aug,ust 8 ’){)I Prror to same Petmonu had 1ot W orked tor
several years: foliowrno a work injury at Paul and Mike’s transmission other than a brief peuod J.U.L.LE. which

‘he: estunated was 2 months duration- when he. realized he physwaliy could not do it. Petifioner. testrﬁed that he
was a-mechanic with certificates in auto, air and welding. (T.-18:20) Petrtroner testified hrs job: duties for

; Respondent IncIuded heavy engmes brakes computers and ev erythma. else. for.a"car or.truck. (T‘ 28) Petitioner:

-'Sfarefrie'm"'-bf Fgctsi SR

“had been involvedin a minor automobile colhslon on: May 4,2012.:He wis allegedly actlvely seeking medical
fattentlon with: ehrropractor Dickhut on June 25, 2012 Petitioner ‘had been seeing. chrropractor Dickhut for =
- various complamts since May 9,2011. Petitroner does’ not allege a specrﬁc injury on June 25, 2012 to the left - =
._'--shouider but states ‘he proba‘oly mentioned this complamt to Perez.the office ‘manager. Aecordmg to Perez, -

“injuries were supposed 10 be reported to her and Groves. (T. 176-177) She further stated that on June 25, 2012, .

“if Petitioner advised her of shoulder probiems she would not necessarﬂy have reported to. Groves as he has el

“been. havmg problems for:a while and she did not beheve 1t Was 1mpaetmg hrs work.- (T..1 78) Groves testzﬁed'_ TR

work aemdents were to be reported _dlrectl' -to: h:m

Gary Woods testlﬁed on behaif of Respondent Mr Woods stated he began Workmg for Respondent n. 1977;'-_ o
‘and learned most of his trade on the job; By 1987 he was made shop foreman He testified he got everyone their -
“work and then he drd all-the exhaust ‘work, welding, engine’ pulling; box trucks: and motor homes:. -Woods

“testified. Petrtioner was: pr;mardy hired to-do dragnostrc work. (RX 14 at 8) Woods stated he personally worked

~on about 10 cars: per day. He stated Groves would start the' schedule and he would work the rest of it out. He

wouid ‘have someone else test ¢
' . ‘Woods stated etrtxoner

ve: theni Wthh was often _Petltzoner and sometlmes Greves or the allgnment"_ S

Petrtroner'left ear]y 3 days aweek to go to a baek physrc1an and he' vas a aware he had prlor carpal tunnel. (RX o

“14-at pp. 11-12) Woods testified that Petitioner w Ve : guys pull the tires off and put them back on -
< for ‘him.: Woods stated Petitioner typrcaﬂy worked on 2 - 3 cars per day: (RX 14 at 14)  Woods testified - -
' _Petltroner also used the dlagnostrc scannet, put-on electric motor windows which weighed about a pound, had a"
“stool to sit on and do: brake jobs, ‘would go downstairs for pemods of time 1o talk.and hkemse into the off ice,

and after the: dlagnostlcs were. complete he would provrde to ‘Groves for 1 pnomg and then may call the customer o

with the rnforrnatron Woods testified most of the tools Petitioner worked with were within the range of Stoten
pounds The parts were: frequently light but could weigh upto 15 pounds He stated a cylinder head could: Wergh L
up 10.60 pounds and Petitioner would have asked for help either from himself or one of the tire guys who were
always around as he was trying to train them. (RX 14 at 25-26) Woods testrﬁed that desprte hrs name berng on .
the ‘oottom of the JOb descnptron, h1s deposrtron was the ﬁrst he had ever seen same R _ RS E

Chzropraetor Drokhut evaluated hrrn on June 13 2012 noung comp}alnts of 1eft neok pam mto the 1eft shouIder -
indicating he could not pinpoint anythmg he was dorng drfferen‘dy at'work. The note on June 25,2012 mdzeated '

“his left shoulder bothers him,”'but were only a passing mention in a plethora of other symptoms. (PX 33). As
of }uly 2, 2012, Petmoner complamed of ‘an: achrng in- the ieft 'shoulder: whlch he rated . 7/ 10.: Exam G
demonstrated mcreased muscle tone at the left trapezrus There was no mention of left shoulder pain on 7/9/12,

7/12/12, 7/26/12; 7/30/12 -but on 8/13/12 he mentioned - achrng and burnmg which was 8/10 and - exam
demionstrated reduced abduction with- pectoral minor spasm. (PX 33) On’August 15, 2012 he cornplamed of-
shoulder-pain with lateral raise. On August 20, 2012 due to ongoing complaint chrropractor chkhu’s orders'an
MRI. As of. September 24, 2012, Dickhut said Petitioner was frustrated with his left shoulder as he needed to -
keep. workmg 10" pay bills-after being off for:so long in the past. (PX 2, p.20).Dickhut testified that his’ left
shoulder complaints ‘were: causalIy related to the May 4, 2012-aiito acc1dent ‘because Petitioner stated he was -

holdlng the steermg wheei wrth hzs leﬁ arm,’ he had new complamts m the Ieft shouider cornpared to pnor care. . .
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"Dr. 1 first evaluated Petitionier on September 4, 2012 and due to exam, that demonstrated 4/5 strength and
limited range of motion, he recommended an MRL (PX 26) The MRI demonstrated a full thickness rotator cuff

tear, increased signal at the biceps labral anchor and osteoarthritic change. On January 11, 2013 Dr. Li

recommended arthroscopic surgery. Dr, Li testified that the left shoulder related to the auto accident of May 4,

2012 and noted that he relied on the history provided by Petitioner. He stated the only other medical record
he possessed other than diagnostic testing in his own chart is that of Dr. Dickhut of 08/20/12. PX 1 at 25)

Dr. Eubanks testified he was licensed in the State of Illinois in 2008 and had been Board Certified in Orthopedic
Surgery since 2011. He testified that at the first evaluation on May 9, 2014, Petitioner provided a history of
pain, weakness and numbness in the upper extremity mostly the right arm, in addition to wrist drop. (PX3, p.7).
He testified that as of the October 14, 2014 visit, Petitioner complained of left shoulder pain pointing to the
biceps tendon as the primary source. He testified that he completed a partial rotator cuff repair and biceps
tenodesis. (RX3, pp.21-22). Dr. Eubanks testified that he was doing well postoperatively and as of November
13 he would have allowed him to return to light duty work. (PX3, p.23). Dr. Eubanks testified that-on January
22, 2015, Petitioner continued to have some tenderness in the shoulder, slight loss: of range of motion, some
stiffness in the neck, but had improved with respect to the right arm and had full sttength and resolved wrist
drop. He imposed a 30-pound lifting restriction for the left arm. Dr. ‘Eubanks noted he was intended to return
fhree months for anticipated final check of the left shoulder. Dr. Eubanks. testified that based upon the job

 description tendered by opposing counsel at the deposition (inaccurate description) these job duties may have

been the reason for the disease process in the left shoulder. He further stated that the automobile accident may

have been the cause of an aggravation to the left shoulder. (PX3, pp.29-30). Dr. Eubanks testified that
evaluation of the shoulder iricluded exam such as Empty Can test, part of which: was - objective; and part
subjective based on the examiner and also the patient’s response. (PX3, pp.34-35). Dr. Eubanks acknowledged
that his opinions with respect to causation were based solely on what Petitionér’s counsel advised him at the
deposition as well as his discussion with Petitioner about doing things like taking large parts out of cars. He
also acknowledged that he had not reviewed any medical records documenting pre-existing conditions related to
the ailments which he provided care for and that this may impact his opinion. (PX3, pp.41-42). - .~

Dr. Brent Johnson evaluated Petitioner on behalf of Respondent on March 27, 2013 and testified on February
19, 2014, noting that he was an orthopedic surgeon specializing in the treatment of knee and shoulder injuries.
Dr. Johnson testified that the history provided to him by. the Petitioner was.that he was in a motor vehicle
accident on May 4, 2012, was rear-ended, and initially experienced pain in the left: shoulder and neck that
evening. Dr. Johnson testified that examination demonstrated positive findings: of the bilateral shoulders
including tenderness over the mid-clavicle and trapezius and coracoid on the right and tenderness over the
clavicle, distal clavicle, AC joint and acromion posterior joint line, anterior joint line, supraspinatus, coracoid
and trapezius on the left. He opined that he believed these were exaggerated pain behaviors ‘as with repeat
" examination he did not have consistent areas of pain. He noted he had 5/5 strength but for: left forward
clevation which was 4/5 and testing was limited secondary to pair.- He noted he had severely exaggerated pain
on muscle testing and "was going to fall over because of exaggerated movements during shoulder strength
testirig.”. Exam demonstrated orthopedic testing to be negative, including Speed's and O'Brien's tests. He did
note that impingement syndrome was’ difficult to test due to pain. Exam of the left shoulder specifically
demonstrated forward elevation to 90 degrees, but passively, it was 150 degrees. Dr. Johnson opined that he
~ was actively resisting. ' S o - .

Dr. Verma testified on June 21, 2017 that he is an orthopedic surgeon specializing in sports medieine which
included shoulder; elbow’ and knee. He testified. that he evaluated Petitioner on March 8, 2017 at ‘which point
Petitioner provided a history of havirig been employed as a mechanic for 16to 18 months with an injury on May
4, 2012 when he was rear-ended with multiple injuries including the left shoulder. He noted he underwent

2



' 'shouldu sur Guy dnd u,as pldccd undcr pumdncnt zestuctlons of 73 pound ]ﬁtm" - _H_e'_ dlso notcd hc had-.' S
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no atrophy . or deformity, well- healcd incisions, pzcscned cervical range of motion which did not ploduce aiy

- shoulder: symptoms shoulder exam’ demonstrated full.and. symmemc range. of ‘motion compzned to the opposite
's;dc wﬁhout pain, s‘{renﬂth was normal, there was 1o mstablhty, alihoug7 hhe had some subjective complamts of -
_;numbness in the. 1Cft liand. Dr. Venna opmcd lus shoulder exam ‘was noz‘mai (RX 4 p.7) Dr.Verma opmed he - -

| “had reached maximum’ medlcal 1mprovement and. mdlcated that based upon the’ procedure he had under,g,one -

- "MMI would typlcally occur after six months.’ Dr. Verma: further oplned that PGUHOHBT could have retumed to o '_ |

:ﬁ _f '.has qu duty occupatlon wﬁh respect to_the shoulder : '-(RX_4 p 8) S

Condlusionsof Law

The Arbztmtor rendefs z.‘lze follomng mtlz respect to ( C) cz’zd an acczdent occur nhzch arose out of Petztzoner 5 :: SR |

:-"5employ and (E) notzce

:The Arbltrator determlnes Wlth respect to notice that tnnely HOHCS of the' acc1dent was not prowded W]thm 45-._" e
- days’ of the accident as:the Apphcatlon was ﬁled in March of 2015 Petltxoner did not teli Groves but rather'_ o

~“only. Perez, who admitted she: did not share this mformation with: Groves asit had been going on for some tlme e |
" The Arbitrator determines per Groves. and Perez, notice was. to be tendered to Groves and therefore proper
-"'_notlc' ofan accndent Was not provided. " S e e L L

itrator notes a specﬁi ceident is not. aHeged'for 6,"25/ 12 but rather zt s1mp1" '_ co1nc1des _v1th a: assmg’"l-":

o complam .'ojf shouider discomfort"by Petitioner to-his -_chlropractor who 15 rendermg care’ for a- number of other

- body ‘parts.” The Atbitrator notes that Dr.- “Johnson was not: presented a ‘scenario. of - repetltxve trauma by
Petitioner af the exam; or Petttloner"
_'ﬁled Dr. Johnson.- does express’ some concern for Pehtmner s exaggeration ‘of symptoms’ onexam. The
Arbitrator finds in best lzght Petitioner is.a poor hlstonan as Petitioner testified and advised various phys101ans' '
“he no. 1onger suffered from dzabetes despxte testmg to the contrary, ‘that he did not have h1gh blood 1 ‘pressure,
‘which was noted by Dr, Thain i in 2014 as well as on other occasion, and contradicted himself and the medical
“records regardmg 1mposat10n of restriction as'a result of hlS work accldent at Paul and Mikes. The Arbztratorﬁ
“considers the phy51c1an OpInions ‘with respect to repentwe trauma. and notes: Ch1ropractor Dickhut | associates the
_'-_complamts with “the’ 5/4/12 accident. The ‘Atbitrator notes ‘the op1mons of Dr. Eubanks. regardmg repet;tlve-
trauma are based solely ona conversat;on with Pétitioner that suggests e does heavy work; and. preparatzon by
counsél regardzng the written }ob descnptzon Dr. Eubanks opines- there may be: causation’ thch 118" not the -
_. evzdentlary standard. The Arbltrator speczﬁcaliy finds. the }Ob description unreliable and notes: same was_' '
prepared by Perez, the office manager, who acknowledged she is not. only. friends with the Petitioner, but also
forwarded it for approval first ‘to’ Petitioner’s. attorney. ‘Woods signature -also - appears at. the bottom’ and he

'S counsel at the depos;‘uon and the Apphcatlon aHegmo same had yet to be

testzﬁed thlS was not his 31gnature The Arb1trator also determined: the }ob descrlption maccurate based upon

testimony by Woods and Groves and even Petitioner. hlmself to some extent,- which depict lighter ‘weight
involved, minimal overhead work with- light welght and variance of tasks. “The Arbitrator determines that the
job duties and medical ‘evidence do not support a finding of an accident ansmg out of and n the coursc of
Pe'ﬁtloner 'S employ on June 25 2019 A]l other 1ssues are moot - : R S




' STATE QF ILLINOIS SIS _ . . Afﬁrm and adopt (no changes) - In;ured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d)) g
o S S ) SS_- ' 5. D Afﬁrm w1th changes _' Lo D Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g))
_COUNTY OF McLEAN ) D Reverse R _ P EI Second Injury’ Pund (§8(e)18)
T S | o DPTD/’Fataldemed
RIS D Modafy C SIS IE Nonc ofthe above o

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION
DaVidBUffaHO A Lo
v, 21IWCCO

| Frecl Gr_'dves" S._er\'/jc'enter d/b/a Fred_Gfdve_'s, |

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

RS _ Tﬂnely Petlnon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁied by the Petltioner herem and notme glven to o
~all, par’aes the Commlssmn after conmdermg the issues of acmdent notice,: employer—employee S
' relat10nsh1p, causal connection, medical - eXpenses, temporary “total disabihty, and permanent
partial disability, and being advised of the facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts the Demsmn of the
- 'Arb1trator Whlch 18 attached hereto and made a part hereof :

IR IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Dec1s1on of the _'
: :_- Arbltrator ﬁied March 11 2020 15 hereby afﬁrmed and adopted -

| z'r 15 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE CO‘VIMISSION that the Respondent pay to
- Petltloner mterest under sec‘uon 19(n) ef the Act 1f any ' - :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shai] have credit _
for all amounts pazd if any, to or on behalf of Petltloner on account of sa1d acc1denta1 mjury '



: 15 wc 2126

No bond for removal of thls cause to the Circult Ceurt is requlred as no award for o

payment has been entered The' party commiencing the proceedmgs for review in the Clrcuit N
Court shall ﬁle w1th the Commlssmn a Notlce of Intent to Flle for Rev1ew 1n Circuat Cou:rt

MR -0
- DATED: T
'.O 2/4/21
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COnsohdated cases

FRED GROVES SERV ICENTER D/BIA FRED GROVES

: Employcr Respondent

' 'An Applzcatzon for Adjusrment of Clazm was ﬁled in thIS matter and a Not:ce of Hearmg was malled to each S
- party.: The matter was heard by the Honorable PAUL SEAL, Arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of
'BLOOMINGTON, on September 24,2019 and October 16,2019, After reviewing all of the evzdence :
-_-presented the. Arbitrator hereby makes ﬁndmgs on the disputed 1ssues checked below and attaches those L
--_ﬁndmgs to thls document ' b _ - . S : S

: Dis_ ED ISSUES

. Was Respondent operatmg under and subject to the Illzncns Workers Compensatlon or. OCcupationai

D1seases Act? _ - - : - : : :

. Was there an empioyee employer relatlonship? : S

. Dld an acc1dent occur that. arose out of and m the course of Petmoner s employment by Respondent"

[ | What was the date of the accident? .~ S : S

- Was tlmely no’nce of the acmdent glven o Respondent‘?

- Is Petltloner s current condmon of 111 bemg causally related to the mjury?

D What were Petmoner s eammgs‘? O o

- What was Petmoners -age at the t1rne of the acmdent? B o

1 What was Petmoner s marltal status at the time of the aec1dent’? SRR : O

Ez] Were the medical services. that were provxded fo Petitioner reasonable and necessary’? Has Respondcnt :
pald all appropnate charges for all reasonable and necessary medlca} serwces" :

What temporary benefits are in dlspute" .
E] TPD [} Maintenance - & TTD

L; Eﬂ What 18 the nature and extent of the mjury‘? _
M.- D Shouid penalties or fees be nnposed upon Res;)ondent‘?
N. D Is Respondent due any cred;t‘?

0. DOther

?‘-".2-* tE _Q _rrj_ mo -.0. gj_ : _':

W
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FiV})INGs

On this date, an employee -employer relanonshxp did not exist between Petitioner and Respondent

: On this date, Petitioner did not sustaih an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment.
Timeiy notice of this accident was not given to Respondent.

Petitioner's current condition of ill-b.einv is nof causally related to the accident.

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner eamed $50,953.76; the average wcekly wage was $979.88.
On t‘ne date of accident, Petitioner was 53 ye'irs of age, wngle with 2 dependent children.

Petitioner h'as reeeived all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Resp_ondent has paid all appfopriate charges for all reasonable and ne.cessary medical services.

_ ORDER
Denial of benefits

No benefits are awarded.

RULES REGARDIL\G APPEALS Unless a party files a Perition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this

decision, and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then thls decision shall be entered as the
de01s1on of the Cemm1331on

STATEVIENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award interest at the rate set forth on the
Notice of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;

however, if an empioyee s appeal results in either no change or a decrease in thls award, mterest shall not
accrue.

g
e
March 6, 2020
Signature of Arbitrator Date .
ICArbDec p. 2

MAR 11 2000
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P K.I;UOULL tuuhui he was -emiploved as @ mech anic for Resp omiem ' ourmmw xv mt '\' N”)i D oPétitiongr
testitied he saw Dr.'Li-on January 11, 2013 and provided notice to Sam, though he did not state nome of whato
(T.66- 69) On cross ¢xam, Petitioner e‘mted he did not kno\x what accident W a3 being uiuonu,d and it is clear
notice wasinot. pioud{,d {T 135): Pezu ‘office thanager, ad\nouhdtful she was aware of 1o Llalmui clLleLﬂt‘) i
aftu PLUUOHEI Ceased W o;kmur (T. 1 97 ]%) Petlilonu test;hed he ceased w Olklﬂ” for- Rs.bponda,nt el Janual\, _
2,2013 and never tetumed to work, Dr.Li’s eimrt note of Janmty 11; 2013 is an exam and recommendation
for sur gexy at Petitioner’s request for the Teft rotator cuff tear. {PX 14): Petitioner had left shoulder: complaints
~and an MRI of the left shoulder pre- -dating this office visit. Dr. Li attributed the deft shoulder commplaints to the'
j._auto acoldent of ) \/Iay 4;2012. Dr. Johnson’ cvaluated Petitioner at. reqoest of Rospondent on March: 27 2013' e
_and was provided a: history of ]eﬂ shoulder complamts as. the resuit of an’ auto aemdent on I\/Iay 4 2()1 2. "

| Sf(ffé??f’éi?ff n"f "F ac_is'_ (o

3-I)r Eubanks testlﬁed that as of the October 14 2014 V131t Pe‘ationer oompiamed of Ieft shoulder pam pomtmﬂf.
to the bicep tendon as the. prlmary source. (RX 3) He testified that he. completed a partlai rotator cuff repair and--
biceps: tenode31s (RX3; pp.21-22).. Dr. Eubanks testzﬁed that he was doing well postoperata\eeiy and as of
'_November 13'he wouid have aliowed him to return'to hght duty work . (PX3 p:23). Dr: Eubanks: testlﬁed that
On’ January 22 2()15 Peutloner contmued 10 have some’ tendemess in the shouider shght loss of: range of
‘motior, some: stlffness in the neck; but had 1mproved with: respeot to the right arm ‘and had full strength and'
‘resolved ‘wrist: drop He 1mposed a 30- pound lifting Testriction for the left arm: Dr. Eubanks noted he was’

Jintended toreturn three months for antlclpated final check of the 1eft shoulder. Dr. Eubanks testified that based o .

".upon-- th_e._gob deseﬁption tendered by opposmg counsei at the deposmon (macourate description); these job.
“duties may. have been the cause of his right upper. extrezmty ‘ailment. He' further testified that the job. descmptzon
‘may. ‘have also been the reason; for the disease process in the. left shoulder ‘He further stated that the automobile -
-_'acmdent may. have been the cause of 2 ggravation to the left. shoulder (PX3 p. 29-30) ‘Dr. Eubanks -
testified that evaluation of the shoulder included exam sueh as Empty Can test, part of which was: o‘ojectwe and
patt subjectlve based on the examiner and the patien’s s response (PX3 PP 34- -35). Dr.:Eubanks admitted that
‘he was® unfamlhar with the mechamsm ofi mjury for the auto accident. (PX3, p. 35) Dr. Fubanks’ acknowiedcred 3
‘that his: opinions ‘with respect to’ causation were based: solely on what Petitioner’s counsel adwsed him at the
deposﬂzon as well as his discussion with Pet;tloner about doing’ thmgs like taking large parts out of cars. He °
also acknowledged that he had not revzewed any medical records documentmg pre~ex1st1ng conditions related to.
the ailments which he provided care: for- and- ‘that this’ ‘may impact his opinion. ~(PX3, pp.41-42).. ‘When'
presented - with the information relative to ‘the ‘automobile -accident compieted by Dr. Dickhut’s: office, he
testified that a7 to 10 mph collision is unhkely to have caused the mjury in the 1eft shoulder glven the very slow B
speed Iow velocxty and low xmpact colhsmn (PX3 p43) Ry - . - .
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_The Arbitrator renders the following with respect to (C), did an acmdent oceur whlch arose out.of Pet1t10ner S
employ and (E) n0t1ce :

Petitmrier did not testlfy toa spec1ﬁc accident on this date. If Petztloner is claiming this as a manifestation date
for repetitive trauma, the Arbitrator notes the testimony of Woods and Groves were that Petitioner did lighter
work and that overhead work was limited to occasional. Additionally, Petitioner’s treating physician, Dr. Li,

attributes no causation to this daté nor did Petitioner make mention of repetitive trauma to the examining
physician, Dr: Johnson. Dr. Eubanks, who acknowledged he had not reviewed any outside records other than
diagnostics, testified that the written description of job duties may have been the reason for the disease process
in the left shoulder but does not specify a date this would have been evident, {tilizes the job description which
the. Arbitrator finds unreliable and additionally, Dr. Eubank’s opinion is not in the required standard of
evidence. The Arbitrator determines an accident did not oceur on this date which arose out of and in the course

of Petitioner’s employ and notice of an accident was not pr0v1cied w1thm 45 days of the aiieged accndent All
other 1ssues are therefore moot. :



| STATE _QF II‘_LINOIS. e ) - e . Afﬁrm and adopt {no changes) D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d)) ;-
o ...;: i .: .': ) S8, [:I Afﬁfm With ehanges g ".:': : Rate Adjustment Pund (QS(g)) B
: COUNTY OF MCL.E_AN E ) : DReverse R o . D Second In}uryFund (QS(e)IS)
- TR B . D DPTD/Fataldemed o :
: D MOdlfY X ;'. - o &None ofthe above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

s Petltlone}., _: | ._ 2 1 . .?g § € @ R

'. ; ._Fr__ed Groves Servwenter _d_/b/ a Fretl G_rotf_es_,_'. R

o Respondent -

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW : g
Tlmely Pe’ntlon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by the Petrtloner herem and nottce glven to
'alI partzes the Comnnssmn after. consrdermg the issues of accident, notice; empioyer-employee' -
‘relationship, ‘causal” _connection, medical expenses temporary ‘total disabrhty, and permanent

- partial disability, and bemg advrsed of the facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts the Deels10n of the -
: Arbltrator Wh1ch is attached hereto and made a part hereof SR _ _

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Dems:on of the'_' ._: o

E : Arbltrator ﬁleé March II 2020 is hereby afﬁrmed and adopted

S TT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to
' ._Petltloner 1nterest under Sectlon 19(n) of the Ac’t 1f any ' . :

- IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shail have credlt' -
' for all amounts paid If any, to or on behaif of Petltloner on aceount of said acmdental tnjury '
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No bond for removal of this cause to the Cll’Clnt Court 18 reqmred as no award for
' payment has been entered. The party commencing the proceedmgs for review in the Clrcmt

o Court shall ﬁle Wlﬂl the Comrmssmn a Not:ce of Intent to Fﬂe for Rewew m CII‘CU.II Court
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Consohdated cases

' :FRED GROVES SERVICENTER D/B/A FRED GROV ES

: Emptoyen Respondent

: ,An Applzcanon for Aq’;ustmenf of Clazm was leed m thiS matter and a Notzce of Heaf mg was maﬂed to each
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable PAUL SEAL; Arbltrator of the Commission, in the city of

“BLOOMINGTON, on &:_ptember 24 and October 16,2019 After. reviewing all of the evidence presented

' the Arbltrator hereby makes ﬁndmgs on the dlsputed lssues checked below and attaches those ﬁndmgs to thzs

';::DISP ED: ISSUES :'- oy

': i>

D1seases Act‘? 2 : -
- IE Was there an employee empioyer relatlonsth‘?

. What ‘was the date of the acc1dent‘7 e

- Was timely notice of the acc:1dent given to Respondent" :

E Is Petltloners current condxtlon of ill- bemg causaily reIated to the mjury" '
. What were Petlttoners earnmgs" o o Lo

1] What was Petitioner's age at the t1me o of the acmdent‘? i

] What was Petltioners mantal status at the time of the acmdent‘?

'_ eemo = mtv .O'.w‘ -

pald all. approprtate charges for all reasonable and necessary med;cal serv1ces‘? _

. What temporary benefits are in dzspute” o

S [dTpp . [[] Maintenance - E] TTD
L. D . What 1s the nature and extent of the m}ury‘? L

M. D Should penaltxes or fees be nnposed upon Respondent”
N. D Is Respondent due any cred1t‘7 ' .

O. DOther

Was Respondent operatmﬂr under and subject to the Ilhnms Workers Compensatlon or Occupatlonal i': . :

K1 Dld an acc1dent oceur, that arose out of and in the course of Petltmner s eznp}oyment by Respondent‘? '- :

Ez] Were the med1ca1 servzces that were prowded to Petltzoner reasonab}e and necessary° Has Respondent s

ICArbDec 2/10 100 W, Rarzdo{a/r Street 55, 200 Clucago 73 1506()! 312/814- 6611 Toilfee 866/353 3{)33 Web site: www.iwcee. Ilgov ;
Downstare oﬁ"ces Col/msw!!e 618/346 343() Peorra 309/671 3019 Rocfgford 8]_)/987 779’ Sp)mgfe!d 2i7/783 7()84 L N
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On 1124/2013 Respondent was operet1ng under and subject to the pr0v1s1ons of the Act

.On this date, an emp‘toyee employer relationship dtd not ex1st between Pe‘nuoner and Respondent
On thrs date Petltroner did not sustaln an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment
Tlmeiy notice of this accrdent was not given to Respondent

Petitloner s current conditlon of 1ll~be1ng is not causally related to the accrdent |

In the year precedmg the m}ury, Petmoner earncd SSO 953 76 the average weekIy wage was 8979 88.
On the dete of accrdent Petltioner was 53 years of age, smgle w1th 2 dependent chr!dren

_ Pet1t1oner has recerved all reasonable and necessary medical services.

_ .Respondent has pald ali approprlate charges fm all reasonable and necessary medtcal servrces
' ORDER
Denial of beneﬁts

No benefits are awarded.

RULES REGARDI\G APPEALS Unless a party ﬁies a Petttzon for Review w1th1n 30 days after receipt of this

decision and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules then thlS decrsion shall be entered as the
dec;smn of the Comm1ss10n -

STATE"\IENT OF I‘\ITEREST RATE If the COITHTHSSIOI’I reviews thrs aw ard interest at the rate set forth on the
Notice of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;

however, if an emptoyee s appeal results in e1ther no change ora decrease in thrs award 1nterest shall not
: accrue ' _ : : :

5 - March 6, 2020
Signature of Arbitrator _ Date

{CArbDec. p. 2

MAR 11 2020
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: On Jaﬂuar}, 74 702 3, Petlt[onel Lmdu W Lnt an E’\/IG W 1{l1 D1 PLEE llCUIOlO”ib‘[ due to Com )lamts of d;seomtmt

. radiating down the nabt arm; Petitioner: Descnbed it being on- the. undc.131de and then exiendzno 1o the medial .
:’aspect ofthe forearm -he found it difficult to do thmfrs and his g gD ,g,ettmrr Wwas w eak Dr. Pemrr notcd MRl of- "

- cervical s spine falled to 1eveal evidence supportmﬂ C8~Tl radlculopathy Petltionm felt thereis a dlffe} ence over .

“the 4”‘/5‘“ fingers with: ‘pin: pnck but no difference in ulnar: d1st11but10n The EMG demonstrated eudence of SRR

. fulnar nerve entrapment and reszdual slowmg from pnor carpal tunnel

: ;Petmoner dld not testIfy to a spe01ﬁc mjury for thiS date and in fact stated that he was unaware of an ac01dent . L
- Petitioner. ‘had ceased workmg for. Respondent as: of January 2, 2013 and tesuﬁed he never: returned o work

" Perez also. testified she was prov1ded no.notice for: acc1dents after he ceased workmg Groves testlﬁed ‘{he only S
'-.acc:ldent for wh1ch he rece1ved notlce was May 24 2012 ' S I s

An EMG was completed on 1/24/ 13 w:zth Dr Pegg whtch demonstrated cubltal tunnel on the rlght (PX 73) _
A subsequent EMG complete by chlropractor Berkey on 8/ l/ 13 no longer demonsirated ewdence of cubltal_-'

: . zd not test;fy to a mamfestation for cubltal tunnel on tlllS date He dld testify that he beheved the hftmg':' :
.acc1dent of 11/26/2012 could. have aggravated his’ pre—exzstmg ‘condition. He also testified that based upon the'
written. job descr:ptlon ‘these ‘were the types of activities which' could cause cubital ‘tunnel;’ ‘specifically, -
- continuous - reachmg overhead and ‘at shoulder level as weil s ait’ tools Dr Li: said h1s d1agn051s of cubltal i
“tunnel was based upon the EMG, and acknowledged they are not always accurate, as well as his physical exam =
"whlch demonstrated decréased sensation at. CS-Tl ‘which 1s: the ulnar nerve, (PX i p 54) Dr Ll acknowiedged o
'that dzabetes could Impact the ulnar nerve {PXl p74) S R

Dr. Eubanks testiﬁed he was heensed in- the State of Hlmcns in 2008 and has been Board Certlﬁed in Orthopedm :
“Surgery since 2011 (PX 3). He testlﬁed that at the first evaluation on May. 9, 2014, Petitioner provided a.
" history of pain, weakness and numbness in the upper extrexmty mostly the right arm,’in addition to wrist drop L
(PX3, p.7).  Stated his exam demonstrated weakness of the radial ‘nerve distribution  with wrist extension, as

well as numbness in the: med1an nerve distribution and tenderness over the lateral epxcondyle and forearm. ‘He -

further stated. that tenderness over the lateral eplcondyle demonstrated eplcondyllus, and he had a- posdwe Tlnel L

“and Phalen sign demonstratmg carpal tunnel. (PX3,p. 13) ‘He testified that weakness of the wrist was’ strictly' _
the radial nerve: {Id.) He stated that a:surgery was completed on. August 20 conmstmg of epzcondyhtls release,

carpal tunnel release and: postenor interosseous release,  He testified that as ‘of that. date, he would:have
restricted h1m from ‘'work for six. weeks until he could retum to light duty (PX3 pp.14-15).- ‘He testified that as .

of the September 9, 2014 visitshe demonstra’sed 1mprovement with respect to the rad}al nerve function.’ (PX3,
p.16). .Dr. Eubanks test1ﬁed that ‘on Ianuary 22::2015, Petitioner continued to have some tendemess in-the
shoulder shght loss of range of motion, some. st1ffness in the neck, but had 1mproved with Tespect to the right
arm -and had full* strength and- resolved wrist drop. Dr. Eubanks testified that based upon the Jjob- descnptlon'
.tendered by opposmg counsel -at .the deposmon (maccurate description), these Job dutles may have been the -
cause of his nght upper. extremzty allment .Dr. Eubanks: testified that the primary causes of radial nerve palsy
include fracture, fraumatic: m}unes mcludmg surgwal procedures and acknowledged that he - ‘was. aware ‘the
Petitioner had undergone ] prior carpal tunnel surgery, but ‘he did not have the specifics. (PX3 op. 32-33) Dr.
_-_Eubanks testlﬁed that he dld not evaluate the wnst aﬂer he began exammmg the Shoulder as hls rzght Wnst and
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elbow were domg very well.. (PX3 p 37) Dr Eubanks again testified that he did not recall anything other than
minimal complaints with respect to the epicondyle release as of Januvary 22, 2015. (PX3, p.38)..

Dr. Williams testlﬁed Pet1t10ner s cubital tunnel was not supported by physmal exam. Pet1t10ner provided no
hlstory of repetltive trauma to Dr Williams.

Gary Woods testtﬁed on behaif of Respondent Mr. Woods stated he began workmg for Respondent in 1977
and learned most of his trade on the job. By 1987, he was made shop foreman. He testified he got everyone their
work and then he did all the exhaust work, welding, engine pulling, box trucks and motor homes. Woods
téstified Petitioner was primarily hired to do diagnostic work. (RX 14 at 8) Woods stated he personally worked
on about 10 cars per day. He stated Groves would start the schedule and he would work the rest of it out. He
would have someone else test drive them which was often Petitioner, and sometimes Groves or the alignment
mechanic. Woods stated Petitioner was a531gned light work like air eondltlomng and brakes. Woods stated
Petitiorier left early 3 days a'week to goto a back physician and he was aware hie had prior carpal tunnel. (RX
14°at pp. 11-12) Woods testified that Petitioner would have the tire guys pull the tires off and' put them back on
for him. Woods stated Petitioner typically worked on 2 — 3 cars per day. (RX 14 at 14) " Woods. testified

: Petltzoner also-used the diagnostic scanner, put on electric motor windows which weighed about a pound, hada

stool to sit on and do brake jobs, would go downstairs for periods of nme to talk and likewise into the office,

“and after the d1agnostlcs were complete, he would prov1de to Groves for pricing and then may. call the customer

with the information. Woods testified most of the tools Petitioner worked with were within the range of 5t ten
pounds. The parts were frequent}y light but could weigh up-to 15 pounds He stated a cyhnder head could weigh -

up to 60 pounds and Petitioner would have asked for help either from himself or one of the tire guys who were

always around as he was trying to train them. (RX 14 at 25-26) Woods testified that despite his name being on
the bottom of the _]Ob descnption his deposition was the first he had ever seen same

Groves testlmony with respect to Petitioner’s 30b du‘ﬂes mciuded dkagnostics and hghter work He stated the

_ wnt’sen _]Ob descrlptlon was not accurate. -

Petmoner testlﬁed to use of his hands constantly but also noted he made caHs pr0v1ded warrant1es etc. He did

not testify, as had the others, as to the amount of time he spent driving cars, chattmg or that heavy work was
comp1eted by other empioyees '

Concluswns of Law

The Arbitrator ﬁnds as follows w1th respect to (C % d1d an acc1dent oceur whlch arose out of Petmoner s employ

- and (E) notlce

The Arb}trator notes that n0t1ce was not provided Wlthm 45 days of the alieoed acmdent as admitted by
_ Petitioner and Perez and confirmed by Groves. The Arbitrator notes Petitioner was unaware of a manifestation
_date of January 24,2013 and a spec1ﬁc mJury was not alleged for this date.” The Arbitrator notes that altiiough
Dr. Li providesa causai connection opinion, it is based upon a written job description which the Arbitrator finds

to be inaccurate per witness testimony as his job duties were lighter and more varied than depicted on the form,

'Add1t10na11y, Dr. Li aftributes the cubital tunnel diagnosis to the EMQ, which he acknowledged is not always

accurate; as well as decreased sensation on exam at C8-T1, which was in fact not detected on the EMG. The
Arbitrator notes that Dr. Eubanks opined relatlve to the sarne job description, but also diagnosed epleondyhtls

not cubital tunnel. A later EMG of August I, 2013 o longer demonstrated cubital tunnel; which calls. into’
question the accuracy’ of the. earlier test. Dr. Wﬂhams did not appreciate any findings of cub1ta1 tunnei on exam

_and comimented on the second negative EMG. The Arbitrator, after considering the aforementioned; determmes

an accident did not arlse out of and in the course of Pehnoner s employ o1l January 24, 2013 All other issues
are moot ;



o STATE OF ILLTNOIS ; ) S % Afﬁrm and adcpt (no changcs)
RSN BESTIEAS ")_._SS_- : Afﬁrmmthchanges -
COUNTY OF MCLEAN ) DReverse

o DModxfy

In_]ured Wcrkers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
D Rate Adjustment }"und (§8(g))

Second Injury Fund ($8(:)18)

. PTD/FataI denled '

K’ None of the above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION

.Dav1d Buffano, i .

Pctltioner _'; LTI

s _?reti_G_'r.c."_/es_.S_'er\?ice'r:aft_er'_'dfb/.a F.r'e_d.G.rQ\._/"e'::s,’.' SUNER

" Respondent.. SR

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Tlmely Petztlon for Rewew havmg been ﬁied by the Petmoner herem and nctlce gwen to _

_ ﬁ-all parnes the Commiission, after con31der1ng the issues of aecndent notice, emp]oyer~ernp10yee -
i relatzonshlp, wages, ‘benefit rates, causal connectlon ‘medical expenses, tcmporary total disability, -

and permanent partial- d1sa‘c1hty, ané bemg advised of the facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts the_ '
5 Deaswn of the Arbltrator whlch is attached hereto and made a part hereof R

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Declslon of the |

i _.Arbltrator ﬁled March 1 1 2020 is hereby afﬁnned and adopted

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that thc Respondent pay to

_ 'Petltloner 1nterest under Section 19(n) of the Act 1f any

T IS FURTHER ORDERED BY TI—IE COMMISSION that Respondent shail have credlt
for all amounts paid, if any, to or on behaIf of Petltmner on account of said ac01denta1 1n3ury
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N No bond for removal of thls cause to the Clrcmt Court is requlred as no award for U
: _payment Thas been entéred.: The party commencing the proceedmgs for rev1ew in the erc:mt:_ o
: Court shali ﬁle w1th the Comnnsswn a No’szce of Intent to Flle for Revxew in ercuzt Court '

. -'.DATED : MAR i“"’ 282!

oo
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ILLWOIS W ORKERS’ COMPENSATION CQ\I\HSSIOI\
S ;-_ . ARBITRATIONDECISION
DAVID. BUFFANO, Cqse#ls we 09;39

: Emplovechtztlonu RN

Syl E Consohdated cases

: .-FRED GROVES SERVICENTER D/B/A F RED GROVES

B Employct i/ Respondent

:An Applzcarzon for Aajrustmenz of Clazm was ﬁled m thts matter and a Notzce of Hearmg was malled to each
_party. The matter was heard by the Honorable PAUL SEAL; Arbttrator of the Commission, in the cityof ..
-fBLOOMINGTGN on September.24 and October 16,2019 After reviewing all of the ev1dence presented T
. the Arbnrator hereby makes ﬁndlnos on the dtsputed 185Ues checked below and attaches those ﬁndmgs to thts S

A . 'Was Respondent operatmg under and subject to the Ifhnms Workers Compensa’non or Occupational

- Diseases Act? " ; : SR : : :

EKJ Was there an ernployee employer relationsth‘? _ SR - S S =

- I Did an acczdent occur that arose out of and in’ the course of Petrtzoner S employment by Respondent‘7 o

[ ] What was the date of the accident? : S B - - S

_ - Was tlmely notxce of the: acczdent g:ven to Respondent" _ s :

. Is Petltloner S current condltlon of 111-be1n0 causally related to the 1njury‘7

T What were Petttioners earnmgs" LT SRIPICH N

1 What was Petitioner's age at the time of the acadent‘? o

D What Was Petltloner S marttai status at the t1me of the acmdent‘? : : : . _

- & Were the medical services that were provided to PCHUOI}BI reasonable and necessary‘? Has Respondent _
= patd all appropriate charges for all reasonable and ; necessary medlcal semces‘? :

- J What temporary beneﬁts are in dlspu_te"’ R
[JTPD . [ Maintenance .~ [X] TTD

L. % What is the nature and extent of the m}ury‘? -
M. D Should penalties or fees be 1mposed upon Respondent‘?
N. D Is Respondent due’ any credxt‘7 :

O. D Other

[CAfbDec 271 100 W Randmﬂvh Street #8 -200)- Clncago i 6060[ 31278 14- 661[ Toll-free 866/352-3033 . Web site: www.hwee il gov
Dounslaleoﬁ'ces Collmsm!!e 618/346 3430 Peorta 309/671 30!9 Rockj”ordS!j 987 7292 Spfmgf‘e!d 2]7/7357(}84 sl
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On 1/29/2013, Respondent was operatmg under and subject to the prowsmns of the Act.

On this date, an employee—employer relationship did not exist between Petitioner and Respen.d.ent.. ..
On this date, Petitioner di(f net sustain an accident that arose out of and iﬁ the course of employment.
Timely notice of this accident was not given to Respondent.

Petitioner's current condition of ill—.being is not causally related to the accident.

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner carned §; the average weekly wage was $.

On the date of accident, Petitioner was 53 years of age, single with 2 dependent_chi_ldren.

Petmoner has recewed all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent has pald all appropmate charges for ali 1easonable and neceseary medleal serwces
QRDER .

Denial of benefits

No benefits are awarded.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this

decision and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then th}s decision shall be entered as the
demsmn of the Cornmlssmn '

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the
Notice of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;

however, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in thlS award, interest shall not
accrue.

March 6, 2020
Signature of Arbitrator Date .

ICADDee p. 2. - MAR 1 1 ZH‘ZB
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"wo with Dz Pu g, nu{ujo} umr dw_ to u,n ;m R

Fiirdirags {)f'_:}?aer : SN

Or Iai Ll_if& “) .,Ul_ﬂ W as L\a{e 1&6 h Do Ly m lomw a

of discomtort 1ad atmw down _the n'fht anr' I’entronu ducubcd it hczm on lhi., undc ..uie and ihpn L\h.ﬂd]ﬂ“ to: .

the medial aspect. o “the forearn: he found it diim.u!t to-do thitigs and hs\ erip getting wis w cak; D} Pegy noted
_\/IRI of (,Ll\]t,dl spzne éalicd to’ reveal evidence suppoztmw C8-TI radreulopatm The. EMG dcmonsnarcd_f'

_v1dcnee of . ulnal nuvc eonapznent and ‘residual \lovx nw tto;n pno; Ldl‘pd] tunnd D_r L; thcrcto;e'___-_ '
'.1cc01nmendcd Ldnar nu / transpomtlon and dceompxcamon SR DT e : A R

::_".Pentloner had ceased workmg f01 Respondent as ot January 2 2013 and testiﬁed he never returned to’ work

Perez also testified’ she was provrded o notice for aceldents after he ceased Workmg Groves testlﬁed the onlyi_--' s

'-accrdent for which he recewed IlOtICB was May 24 2012 S

' ..An EMG was completed on 1/24/ 13 w1th Dr Pegg wh:.ch demonstrated cub1ta1 tunnel on the nght .(PX 23) E
A subsequent EMG Complete by eh1ropractor Berkey on: 8/ 1/ 13 no Ion er demonstrated evrdence of cubltal -'
.tunnei ;- S O e B R S B g

__Dr .ELl"_dld not testzfy to a. mamfestanon for oubltai tunnei on: this date He dld tesnfy that he beheved the hft;ngs-' o B

‘accident of-11/26/2012could have aggravated hrs pre- exrstmg condition; He aIso testified that based ‘upon the -

- written j(}b descnptzon these_ 'Were the. types of: activities: w_h chiconld: -cause . cubltal tunnel; spemﬁcally, R '.

“continuous: reachlng overhead and at shoulder level as well as
"_tunne] was based upon the EMG, which he: acknowledged Were not: always accurate, as well as his physroai'{';‘.'
“exam which demonstrated decreased: sensati at C8-T1 -which is’ the3 "'inar nerve (PX 1 p 54) Dr Ll-_'_'
acknowledged that daabetes could 1rnpact the ulnar nerve (PX 1 p 74) e

-'Dr Eubanks test1ﬁed he was hcensed in the State of thms in 2008 and has been Board Certlﬁed in Or’shopedrc

Ir'; toois Dr L1 sa1d hrs d1agnosrs of ‘cubital .

Surgery since 2011 (PX 3).. He testified that at the. first evaluation on May 9, 2014, Petitioner. provided'a

_.hrstory of pain, weakness. and numbness in the’ upper extremity mostly the right arm, in &ddi'ﬂOn to wrist drop.
(PX3,p.7). Stated his exam dernonstrated weakness of the: radial nerve distribution with’ ‘wrist extension; as.
‘well. as numbness in the' rnedran nerve distribution and teniderness over. the lateral eplcondyie and forearm He
further stated that tenderness over the lateral epxcondyie demonstrated epicondyhtls and he had a posmve Tlnel_
and Phalen : 31gn demonstratmg carpal tunne} (PX3 p.-13). He testlﬁed that weakness of the wrist was strictly
the radial nerve. (Id:)-He stated that a’ surgery was. cornpleted on’ August 20 consxstmg of eplcondyhtls release, -

carpal tunnel release and posterior interosseous release. He testified that as of that date, he would have =

restricted him from work for: six weeks until he ‘could return o 11ght duty (PX3, pp 14- 15) He testified that as L
of the September 9,.2014 visit, he demonstrated 1mprovcment with respect to the radial nerve function. (PX3 o
p.16). Dr. Eubanks testrﬁed that on January 22,2015, Petitioner continued to have’ some tenderness inthe
shoulder, slight loss ‘of range of motion; some stiffiiess i 1n the neck, but had. 1mproved wrth respect to the r;ght §
arm and had full’ strength and resolved wrist drop Dr. Eubanks testified that based upon the Jjob. ‘description
tendered by opposmg ‘counsel ‘at" the’ deposmon (inaccurate descr1ptzon) these 30b duties: may have been the -
cause of his right upper extrernlty ailment. Dr. Eubanks testified that the primary causes of radial nerve ‘palsy
1nclude fracture, traumatic m}urles mciudmg surg1ca1 procedures, and acknowfedged that he was aware the -
Petitioner had undergone prior carpal tunnel surgery, but he did not have the specifics. - (PX3 Pp.32- 33) Dr.’
Eubanks testified that he did not evaluate the wrist after he began examining the shoulder : as his right wrist and -~
clbow were doing very well. (PX3 p. 37) Dr. Eubanks agaln testified that he did not recall’ anythmg other than '
_mmlmal compiamts W1th respect to. the epicondyle release as of J anuary 22 2015 (PX3 p 38) . S
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Dr Wﬂhams testlﬁed Petitioner’s cubltal funne! was not supported by physical exam. Petitioner prov1ded no
hlstory of repetltlve trauma to Dr. Williams.

" Gary Woods testlﬁed on behalf of Respondent Mr. Woods stated he began Workmg for Respondent in 1977

and learned most of his trade on the job. By 1987, he was ‘made shop foreman. He testified he got everyone their
work and then he did all the exhaust work, welding, engine pulhnOr box trucks and motor homes. Woods
testified Petitioner was pnmanly hired to do diagnostic work. (RX 14 at 8) Woods stated he pe1sona11y worked
on about 10 cars per day. He stated Groves would start the schedule and he would work the rest of it out. He
would have someone else test drive them which was often Petitioner, and sometimes Grovés or the alignment
mechanic. Woods stated Petitioner was assigned light work like air cond;tiomng and brakes. Woods stated
Petitioner left early 3 days a week to go to a back physician and he was aware he had prior catpal tunnel. (RX
14 at pp. 11-12) Woods testified that Petitioner would ha\fe the tire guys pull the tires off and put them back on
~for him. Woods stated Petitioner typically worked on 2 - 3 cars per day. (RX 14 at 14) Woods testified

Petitiorier also used the diagnostic scanner, put on electric motor. windows which weighed about a pound, had a
stool to sit on and do brake jobs, would go downstairs for periods of time to talk and likewise into the office,
and after the diagnostics were complete, he would provide to Groves for pricing and then may call the customer
with the information. Woods testified most of the tools Petitioner worked with were within the range of 5 to ten
- pounds. The parts were frequently light but could weigh up to 15 pounds. He stated a cylinder head could weigh

up to 60 pounds and Petitioner Would have asked for help either from himself or one of the tire guys who. were |

always around as he was trying to train them. (RX 14 at 25- 26) Woods testlﬁed that: despite hiS name bemg on
the bottom of the }ob descmpnon, his deposmon was the first he had ever seen same, .

Groves tesumony w1th respect to Petltaoner S Job dutxes mcluded diagnosncs and 11gh’ter work He stated the
written job description was not accurate.

Petitioner testified to use of his hands constantly but also noted he made calls, provided warranties ete. He did

~ not testify, as had the others, as to the amount of time he spent dnvmg cars, ohattmg or that heavy work was
_completed by other employees

Concluswns of Law

The Arbitrator ﬁnds as follows with respect to (C) d1d an acoldent oceur whxch arose out of Petitloner s employ
arid (E), notice: :

The Arbltrator notes that notice was not prov1ded within 45 days of the alieged acmdent as “admitted by
Petitioner and Perez and confirmed by Groves. The Arbitrator notes Petitioner was unaware of a manifestation
~ date of Ianuary 29, 2013 and a spec1ﬁc mjury was not alleged for this date. The Arbitrator notes that aithough
- Dr. Liprovides a causal connection opinior, it is based upon'a written job deseriphon which the Arbitrator finds
to be inaccurate per witness testimony, with Petitioner’s job duties consisting of lighter weights less frequency
and more variation. The Arbitrator notes that Dr. Eubanks opined relative to the same job description, but also
~ had dxagnosed epicondyhns not cubital tuninel, and there existed no dzagn051s for. eplcondyhns on this alleged

date of accident. Additionally, Dr.. Lt attributes the cubital turmel dlagnos1s to the EMG, which he
acknowledged is not always accurate, as well as decreased sensation on exam at C8-T1, which was in fact not
detected on the EMG A later EMG of August 1, 2013 no longer demonstrated. cubital tunnel, which caiis into
‘Guestion the accuracy of the earlier test. Dr. Williams did not appreciate any. findings of cubltal tunnel on exam
and commented on the second negatwe EMG. The Arbitrator; after considering the aforementloned determmes

an acoldent d1d not anse out of and in the course of Pe’n'ﬂoner $ employ on January 29 2013 All other issues
are moot - : :



o ._S_TA-TE OF I:L:L_I_N-OIS ) | % Afﬁrm and adopt {no changes) : D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d)} _
.' RS _ c B R ) SS ' D Affirm with changes . e _ Rate Ad}ustment Fund (§8(g))
COUNTY OF MC_L'E.AN_ ) B DReverse R —_ . Second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
R R SRR [ Ll proFaa deniea
D Mochfy ol '_ S . None of the above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION L

Petltloner . _:- 2 i E ﬂ%? C ﬁ i

' vs S NO 15WC27175

' Fred Groves Servzcenter d/’o/a Fred Groves s

Respondent o

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

: Timely Petltlon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by the Petltzoner herem and notlce gwen fo '
- all parties, the. Comrmssmn “after considering; the issues of acmdent notice, causal conmnection,
R ‘medical expenses, temporary total disability, -and. permanent pamal disability, and belng advised _
. of the facts and law, affirms and adopts the DeelsIon of the Arbltrator whlch is attached hereto_ .
and made apart hereof BRI > SRS : '

: TS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Demsmn of the'-' L
Arb;trator ﬁIed March 11, 2020 is here‘oy afﬁrmed and adopted ' e e

) IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to
Petitloner 1nterest under Sectlon 19(11) of the Act 1f any . . : -

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shalI have credlt.
for all amounts paid if any, to or on behalf of Petitioner on account of said accidental i mjury
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S ' No 1oond for removal of this cause to the Cn‘cmt Court is) requlred as 1o award for : :'_
' __payment has been entered The party commencing the proceedings for review in the Circuit

S 'Court shall ﬁie w1’sh the Commlsszon a Notzce of Intent to File for Rev1ew n Clrcult Court

041

S mt—zw e
SDATED: . . . NS

BNF/wde o

cborah L. Simpson /)




zi L!NO&Q wowf‘as C{J PE

NQT!CEO ,J-‘x B

'li"._u ;5,‘4 {3 "EAV i “'3

' f:mploycefr’etltloner

FRED GRGVES SERVICENTER DIBIA FRED

"GROVES
' '_'1'Employer/Re$pondent

i" a...i n.::

o8 wmm;,s mj_"_ L

?\TO DE(‘i 3{}“4

ZIIWCCOOQQ

A f'\a‘{;,gjf;.




2it @§ 

' S{\HOiHlI\O}S - ._:-) AN __ EEL T R El %n;tuﬁ \:\kil\bl\.B\,nLii{ %t:tttl(\4{o)}
CO[IN{YQ;{'MQLEAN. _ ) _: o R ' .3. - ; U Sebond. Iﬂ_}ll}\ lum ( t\(c-:_}'i.?s.') L

X} \onu of tu dbO\L o

ILLI}\OIS WORKERS’ COMPE\SL\TIO\ COMMISSIO\
' ARBITRATIO\ DECISIO\ il

- _.'nQ&V'I'D'-BU'FFA-NO;*{.._ e '-.:: & _f e f Case # 15 WC 27175 |

- Employee/Petitioner: o

» i o Consohdated cases: aa

FRED GROVES SERVICENTER D/B/A FRED GROVES
Employer/Respondent il

: An Applzcatzon for Acijmstment of Clazm was ﬁled 1n thls matter and a Notzce of Hearzng was mai Ied to each
_party. “The matter was heard: by the Honorable WILLIAM GALLAGHER, Arbztrator of the Cornmzsszon m__ o
“the city of BLOOMINGTON, on September 24 and October 16,2019, ‘After 1 reviewing all of the: evxdence o

“presented, the Arbltrator hereby makes ﬁndmcs on the disputed xssues checked below and attaches those R

. ﬁndtngs to thts document

-.;DISPU £p _SSUES

._ _Was Respondent operatmg under and SHb_}GCi to the thozs Workers Compensatton or Occupattonai
‘Diseases. Act‘? : S R e : St :

. Was there an employee employer relattonshtp BEy : - i :

. D1d an acmdent oceur; that arose. out of and in’ the course of Petltloners empioyment by Respondent"

- X] What was the date of the acc1dent‘? : o S S e

X Was ttmely notice of the accident ; gtven to Respondent" Lol

His Petitioner's current condition of ill-being causalIy related to the mjury? i

- What were Petitioner's earnmgs" & SRS R SRS PR -

D What was Petitloners age at the ttme of the acc1dent‘? B

- [] What was Petitioner's marital status at the time of the acmdent‘? B - - __

. { Were the. medlcai seryices: that were prov1ded to Petltloner reasonable and necessary” Has Respondent' o
paid all appropnate charges for all reasonable and necessary medtcai sermces? -
What temporary benefits are in dtspute° IR R =
JTPD 0 Mamtenance e I TTD C

L. IE What is- ‘the nature and. extent of the mjury‘? o

M. D Should penaltles or fees be 1mposed upon Respondent"

N. []1s Respondent due any credlt‘? : :

0. [] Other ) . |

| “* f‘-*-?fa .c;‘)" m Uow

{CArbDec 2700 MO W Randolph S[reet #8- 200 Cfucago [L 650601 3!2/8]4 661'1 To.’.’f Fee 866/352 3033 Web site: www.iwee, .rlgov ]
Downsm!e oﬂ' ces: Coilmsnf!e 618/346 3450 Peama 309/671 3()]9 Roc!g%;d 815/987 7292 Sprmgf‘ eld 717/785 7084 00 :
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_ On 11/26/2012 Respondent was operating under and su‘ojeet to the prox isions of the Act.

On this date an employee«employer relat1onsh1p did exist between Petitioner and Respondept

On this date Petmoner did not sustain an acc1dent that arose out of and in the course of employment.
Timely notice of thlS accident was not glven 10 Respondent

Petitioner's current condition of 111‘be1n0 is not causally related to the a001dent

Inthe year precedmg the mjury, Petitioner carned $31, 87 08; the average weekly wage was $986.29
On the date of accident, Petitloner was 52 years of age, smgle with 2 dependent chﬂdren

Pet1tzoner haa recewed all reasonable and neeessary medical serwces

Respondent has patd all appropmate charges for all reasonable and neeessary mechca} serv;ces

Denial of .b_eneﬁts'

No benefits are awarded.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Uniess a party ﬁles a Petztzon for Revzew w1thm 30 days after reoeipt of his

decision and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules then th1s decmon shall be entered as the
dec1s1on of the Comm1ss1on

STATE\IEI\T OF IVTERLST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the
Notice of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;

however, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, inferest shall not
accrue. :

W}

”‘} ww:;ﬁ*w:*’

March 6, 2070
Signature of Arbitrator : . _ Date

ICAbDec p. 2

WAR 112020
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_Petmonu testzhed that h(, begsn uorkmw roz Respondenr on J\ULUS’{ S ’)(} Pet;tionez ‘iLbllllLd he hd(l _
- previously been empl()} ed as an fmlme anch auto mechanic, with v arious. hu,nsc,s 'md Cel'tlflC‘ltl()l}S He testn‘led' o
that he had plL\iO{lSl} sustained an’ injury to his hands &\hxle working. ro; Paul and. \/hl\e 5 Transmlssmnf |
1esultmg in Carpal tunnel: Thereafter, he did not work for fom years but. fo; 1 position for2 -3 ‘mionths 1’r’1'ark1ng,."

.'lmes for J. U1 LE: but eould not. do’ zt ‘He also obtamed a CDL: lleense but sta‘ced he had too m’ uch pam inhis®

- nieck to drive. (Tl”O 1’72) Pet1tlonet testified that on’ No»embei 26, 7012 he was. pullm ‘a cyhnder on'a Ford”

- truck that . weighed between 75 and 80 pounds His body was bent over the fender st the. waist-and he pulled o

~with both hands when he felt a snap in his right elbow as well as. experleneed neck, shoulder and | ‘hand pain. (T. -

- 59- 60) Petltloner testified he told. Sam: and that it was his’ understandmg that he was to report it to her as’ the -
- office manaoer Perez tes‘uﬁed that she - was: fnends ‘with the Petltzoner wrtnessed the ‘accident and _tha_t it

oceurred pnor_ o'}'Thanksgrvmg (T 180) She testlﬁed he mjured his left shoulder neck and had cold in his -
hands (T. 179) Groves testified on behalf of Respondent advrsmg he'was never prowded not1ce of an. accrdent.- g

- on this: date Woods testified he worked in the same area and talked with Petitioner every: day and was never-j; '-

' '_made aware of the acc:dent The Apphcatlon for Adjustment in thIS matter was not ﬁled untll 8/2 1 / 1 5

'.Pet1t1oner testiﬁed that hrs d1abetes had: ong .been controlled Petmoner testlﬁed that he went perrods of tlme""_': o
without medlcatzon (T 122- 123) This is contrary to the medwal records (RX 5, RX 7 RX 15) Petitioner ©

N test1ﬁed he was never-dzagnosed WIth hlgh blood pressure pmor until just prior to h:s neek surgery (T. 123) This -

'-:_3'1s contrary to the medical records. (RX 5 and RX 10) Petitionier'stated Dr. Henry was an opinion only physaclan o o
~ibut yet he' had several visits and stellate’ ganghon blocks. (T 115, RX ) Petitioner testified: ‘he never had___-'-_ '

_-'..'_fpeelmo* around his ﬁngerﬁaﬂs before May 4, 2012 but this appedrs to be inaccurate. (T. 139, RX' 5) Petitioner
*testified he had no restmetlons before startmg hls employ-:_ 1th Respondent (T 1 18 164) Th1s rs contrary to the .
"_'medlcal records (RX 5) ' T e 2 : S

'_Petltroner had already been complammg of symptoms in hlS nght hand wrth pam 6/ lO coldness and adv1sed

ch1ropractor Dickhut-on 11/7/12 that he beheved his carpal tunnel was commg back: (PX 33) On November 13 _
‘2012 he had- complamed of increased discomfort inthe neck and increased numbness in hls hands (_} He
._rated h1s rzght hand pam as an 8/ IO on November 15 2012 and a 6/ 10 on November 20 2012 N A

"-Petmoner had a long h1story of nght-hand pam dat;ng ’oack to a earpal tunnel d1agnos1s in the early 1990 per. Dr =
- Steffan on 1/19/07. At that time Petitioner advised his phys1c1an he did not want permanent restrictions as there
were no other optzons for Work (RX 5) Petitioner underwent carpal tunnel release with Dr. Dustman‘on July 9,

2007 and due to ongoing complamts re- expiorahon on July 25, 2007 at whlch time Dr. Dustman commented |

‘concern. that he was. diabetic and had been unable o take care of it due to- Ainsurance: problems (1d) Asof -
Oeto‘oer 29, 2007 Petitioner adv1sed Dr Dustman he had burnmg and. coldness inall. ﬁngers on the right hand

and was using hot water and a glove, (,__) He was referred to a pain clinic for possible development of o

complex reglenal pain syndrome and as of’ August 4,°2008, was advised he should: undergo an FCE ‘and
recommended ‘against return to is jOb (1d) He returned to Dr Dustman on October 30, 2008 noting both hands
and feet were cold, turned white, had dry eczema and he was referred to rule out systemic disease. (Id) On
January . 14, 2009, Petitionet was evaluated at Illinois Regional Pain Institute complaining of cold and pain in

fingers and toes, right wrist pam burnmg pain‘in rrght neck and shoulder with radiation to the hand. Dr. Brown
opmed he had ‘neuropathic pain in the right upper extremity -and administered right stellate: gangllon blocks'.
which .were unsuccessful. He was recommmended to try . Mayo Clinic: (__) Petitioner completed an FCE on

October 19 and 20, 2009. PetItloner failed 12 of 20 tests for maximal effort and tested in the light to medium l o
:demand level thch was not a match for hls posmon as a mechamc (__Q On February 2 2010 per request of SRR
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his _atté'f‘_r_iey in that case, he _Was__seeﬁi_by Dr. David Brown who obtained a history, noted pain with Tinel over
the volar aspect of the wrist and recommended and EMG. (Id.) On March 25, 2010 Petitioner was evaluated by
~ Dr. Phillips noting he was diagnosed with diabetes in 1997 but he states his blood sugar normalized. He denied

riumbness in his feet. The EMG démonstrated some slowing of the forearm and elbow, right median neuropathy -

but now recordable as opposed to previously absent. Lower extremity exam demonstrated reflexes that were

depressed in stocking glove pattern. The impression was diabetic peripheral neuropathy. (Id.) Following same,
Dr. Brown opined that he would not benefit from additional surgery but indicated the restrictions in the FCE
would be reasonable given the deficit in the median nerve distribution and weakness; he did not recommend he
return as a mechanic. (Id.} o ' ' R ' o

On June 12 and 25, Petitioner was seen at OSF St. Joseph for elevated blood pressure and sugar, noting he
¢ould not fill his medication. (RX 9) Petitioner was seen at OSF Fort Jesse on January 13, 2011 noting he had
been out of work for 3 years as he could not do anything with restrictions he had. He was complaining of cold
hands. (RX 7) He was again cvaluated on March 3, 2011 complaining of bilateral wrist pain with right pain into
the forearm and last 2 digits as well as cold; medication and injection were discussed. (Id.) On March 14, 2011
he went for a DOT physical and was advised to follow up with his physician for hypertension. (Id.) On April
19,2011, he corhplained of neck and shoulder numbness with shooting pain down the right arm. (Id.}
On May 9, 2011, Petitioner presented to chiropractor Dickhut with: sharp neck and low back pain, numbness and

tingling that goes down both arms noting he had double carpal tunnel surgery and the right wrist was operated
twice. The left hand felt better, but stated the right hand was much worse and ruined his life for past 4 years. He
reflected that he had been off work for the past 4 years and went to get his CDL but couldn’t get a job due to
pain. He also said he hurt biceps years ago in a work injury at GM where he tore a biceps muscle. Chiropractor
Dickhut stated symptoms related to cervical segmental dysfunction muscle deconditioning and atrophy as well
as CTS in both wrists. (RX 6) An MRI of the cervical spine on May 31, 2011 demonstrated severe degenerative
change from C3-7 including osteophyte complex and facet joint arthropathy. (RX 7) Accotding to Petitioner,
his cervical symptoths improved as of July 2011, but records reflect he continued to receive DRX and
adjustments for same through 10/4/11 at which point DRX was moved to low back. (RX 6) On 10/15/12
Petitioner stated his neck was doing better. : T L o

Petitioner continued to have right hand complaints throug_hout 2011 _and into early 2012. (RX 6) As of January

11, 2012 his low back complaints became more prevalent and care focused on same with notation on January

16,.2012 that he was seen in the ER and was recommended emergency surgery but was concerned he would
lose his job. ' o o e AR -

Petitioner continues to be seen at Allied Health on a regular basis between November 26, 2012 and January 31,
- 2013, which was the first time Chiropractor Dickhut seemed to be aware of an incident on November 26, 2012,

though it is riot specifically described and he states that the right shoulder complaints could come from this as
opposed to overcompensating for the left. (RX 6) Petitioner had been complaining of right hand and left

~shoulder pain before this date. The first mention of right wiist, shoulder and forearm pain is December 10,2012
" and the first mention of elbow pain is December 20, 2012. The first complaint to the cervical spine following -

same is December 26, 2012. (RX 6) On January 7, 2013 Petitioner is seen at OSF Fort Jesse with a history of

right shoulder pain when lifting a tire. (RX 7) On January 11, 2013 he is seen by Dr. Li and reports lifting a
heavy object on November 26, 2012 resulting in neck pain and radiation down the arm. Dr. Li orders a right

- shoulder and cervical MRI. Same. are' completed - on January 15, 2013 with results from. the cervical

demonstrating severe osteophyte complex contributing to foraminal stenosis C4-7. (PX 22) The right shoulder
is non-diagnostic. Dr. Li testified that the lifting accident of November 26, 2012 aggravated the cervical spine
and right shoulder. -~~~ -~ ST e e e
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-Dl azdone testmed on Februrn\ 20, "’(H 5 ﬂ at l‘i\_ s a bmxd ~certil ud newo}o,zua} «uraeon a:";d has been 1‘0; S
.'tlm ;nst l‘s years. - Hr, tufmed thai dk } \to'x & mx n eﬁ to hiln by mr, P Lt;uenu i this matior was a 2012 car.

B T ¥ . § . .
RSP TS H [ECT TR RoTy \». P Vel i 1.._, il Uu i u 1\..; SR TR TE W RGP DALY i \..u \.‘llL i _' U\.\LAU}J ;ie,i El LlllU l)dill dliU

'H(.dl\ﬂi.\“) rm W hleh he was seen by sev. cral phx siclans and tests were: done. He Lhkﬂ testified to anothu injury

Petitioner advised him when he was hft;m7 an'engine and that aggravated his puson ‘When he firstsaw himon

May 7, 2014, he noted there was some dt‘rfube muscle bulk that was decreased on the right arm; he'l ad diffuise

-weaknees including the intrinsic’ musoies wrist extension, finger ‘extension and rueeps WL&I\YI@SS as: weH as’
SENSOrY - “deficits throughout the entire right arm. - He did not belrew there were.any signs,of mjyelopdthy He . -
reviewed the MRIwhich demonshated spondyiotxc changes at’ multrple levels from CD to T1: An additional CT -
‘and: MRI of the eervreal ‘sping: confirmed severe. decreneratlon from G5 to 11 causing’ stenoms At was at that' '
point he. zecommended a fusion. “He noted sur, gery became delayed due to car d1ac issues. (PX 4,p:12)0 Dr.

“Nardone testified ‘in 1esponse 0 the hypothehcai of: hﬁmg 2 40-pound eyhnder expemenemg pain: from ‘the

“elbows and the. ﬁngerhps Dr. Nardone testified the remarkable osteophyte complex could have been aggravated_
-and caused ‘more radlculopathy On CIOSS | exammation Dr. ‘Nardone testified he did not recall whether he’ L
.-rev1ewed any. other medical records. when e evaluated Petitioner, nor does he recall: Whether he reviewed any . -
prior dragnostle studies. (PX 4, pp. 16- 17) ‘He noted he had some ‘EMGs in'Dr. Pegg s notes. Dr; Nardone S

acknowledged that Petitioner’s condition was degenerat;ve and that degeneratwe conditions ¢ can wax and wane.
(PX 4,p.17).Dr. Nardone testified that in comparison with the May 31,2011 MRD pre-datmg the accident, and

the. MRI compieted on: May 19, 2014, and noted that' c’ressly, the MRIs did not change much. :Dr. Nardone- o
testified that knowledge of the chrropractlc treatment prlor to May:4, 2012 woiild be. srgmﬁcant wrth respect o
'hIS opinion regardmg causal connection as-would a: pam rating of 9/ 10in. May of ZOH (PX 4, pp: 20~ ~21). Dr.:

Nardone testified that with respect to €6, Dr. Eubank S testrmony supports his opinion, that there was not 4 truc -

: .:C6 radmulopathy, but rather, tha‘r 1t was a more local lproblem in the elbow (PX 4 pp 24- 25) Dr Nardone e

_ZEMG _:ﬁndin.gs.:fdrd ino‘r:.*dernorlstrate'a "iot of ev1denee of cerv1caI radlcuiopathy (PX 4 p 30) He furtherfl_lf.

'_acknoW}edged there Was nothmg aoute on the MRI he revzewed (PX 4, pp 30 31)

Dr. Johnson testrﬁed that exammatlon demonstrated posmve ﬁndmgs of the bdaterai shoulders 1neludmg;: |
tenderness over the mid-clavicle and trapezzus -and coracoid on the: right and tenderness over the clavicle, distal -

¢lavicle, AC Jomt and acromion’ postenor joint line, anterior jOHlt line, supraspmatus coracord and trapezms on

the left; He. opmed that he beheved these were: exaggerated pain-behaviors ‘as with repeat examination he did .'
not have consistent ‘areas ofy pain.. He noted he had 5/5 strength but for left forward eIevatlon which was 4/5 and -

testmg was hmrted secondary to pain.- He noted he had severely exaggerated- pain on muscle testing and "was
‘going to fall over because of exaggerated movements during shoulder strength testing." ‘He also had some’ slight

-atrophy of his: trlceps on the right-arm’ compared to the left: "(RX 2; p: 13) Dr: Johnson opmed that takrng into-

account the MRI of the right shoulder;’ and his clinical exam on the date of his’ evaiuatlon ‘March 27,2013, he

would ‘ot recommend arthroscoplc surgery for the r;ght shoulder as-he was not havmg any szgmﬁcanﬁ .
complaints at.that point and had a normal exam. He also noted it demonstrated no acute traumatic pathology. -
(RX2,p24) Dr Johnson testified Petmoner only provzded a hzstory of a motor vehlcie accrdent and made no

mentlon of an mjury on November 26 201 2.

Dr Wllham test1ﬁed he is.an orthopedlc surgeon who specnahzes in upper extremlty and that he evaluated
Petitioner in this matter on October 9, 2013. The history Petitioner provided Dr, Williams was that he began to
work for-Fred Grove Service Center August 8, 2011; and his last date of -employ was:J anuary 2, 2013 witha
date of injury of November 26, 2012 ‘He testified that his position as a Service Technician mvolved domg all

types of auto repair including engine work, transmission work, brake work and dlagnostlcs ‘He worked from -

7:30 to :5:00, Monday through - Friday, used enging lifts, hand- tools, air .impact: tools, AC equipment, -and

transmission. equipment. -He used wrenches, serewdnvers hammers .and socket wrenches. - He stated that he -
prevrously had a right carpai tunnel release done tw1ce as weli as Ieﬂ carpal turmel release He then stated that IR

B S A ok o A g



~ on the date of injury for this problem, November 26, 2012, he was working doing cylinder work. He was

pulling a cylinder over the fender and he felt pain from the elbow to the fingertips getting it out. He said he
kept working but the pain got worse. (RX 1, pp. 7-8) Dr. Williams inquired as to whether the Petitioner had

problems with his neck, and Petitioner denied same. Petitioner described lack of strength, pain-in the right - -
wrist, numbriess, tingling, pins and needles in the ring and small fingers only. He also said his hands got ice
cold, and he wore gloves at night for sleeping. He had pain when he fully straightened or extended the right
elbow. He complained of nighttime waking due to right arm as well as left arm pain, complained of bilateral
weakness, noted he dropped things and stated he had gone to physical therapy. He completed a questionnaire,
which inctuded the fact that he had been a diabetic since 1997 and had diabetic neuropathy. He also
experienced hypertension. (RX 1, p.11) He noted he had not been taking medication for the last four to five
months because he could not afford them. His hobbies included building old cars, and he was right-hand
dominant. Dr. Williams testified he reviewed the medical records forwarded before the exam, with the
Petitioner himself, in order to allow the individual to correct anything that was inaccurate, as well as after in
order to get complete detail. Dr. Williams testified he completed an exam, Petitioner had a BMI of 32.1, which
placed him at increased risk for peripheral neuropathy, he had full cervical range of motion and complained of
no radiculopathy, had some atrophy at the right triceps but not on the left;, as well as atrophy on the right
Hypothenar eminence on the right and the first dorsal interosseous on the right. (RX 1, p0 15) Dr. Williams
- explained that atrophy occurs over a fong period. of time, not. simply days, weeks or months, but long-term .
compression. - (RX 1, pp. 16-17) He noted he had no evidence of complex regional pain syndrome, range of
motion of the elbows was full, range of motion of the right wrist had -40 degrees of extension, which indicated
weakness in the radial nerve and this had been noted on previous nerve study. Manual muscle testing of the
elbow flexion strength on the right which he noted was innervated by C5-C6, was only 3+ to 4-/5. On the left it
was 4+/5. Elbow extension on the right was only 4/5 compared to 4+/5 which was due to weakness. in_the
triceps. Wrist extension strength on the right was 0/5, and Dr. Williams opined he was giving good effort. (RX
1, p.19) He had decreased range of motion on the left compared to the right. (RX 1, p.19) He had tendemess
over the lateral epicondyle on the right, and wrist extension strength could not be tested as he could not actively
extend the wrist. It was negative on the left. Positive Tinel's sign on the right, negative on the left, equivocal
Phalen's on the right, negative on the left, and positive median nerve compression test on the right, negative on
the left, He did have some evidence of carpal tunnel on the right but not on the left. Dr. Williams opined that
review of records was significant for the fact it showed he had a long history of complaints with respect to his
right arm. (RX 1, p.21) He noted the records of Dr. Dickhut reflect during September 18; 2008 he was
complaining of pins and needles in his hands, stabbing pinch strength had improved since surgery as did his
grip strength. He again complained in 2011 of frequent sharp, aching, burning, numbness, shooting, tingling
and discomfort in right wrist, forearm, palm and so he noted these complaints predated his employ. (RX 1, pp.
21-22) ‘Dr. Williams noted that per Dr. Dickhut's records, Petitioner had various complaints with respect to his
right hand, ruining his life, causing inability to sleep, had seen 13 doctors in four years trying to figure out what
was wrong and had been off of work, that at the same time, noted he was enjoying riding four-wheelers on his
five acres and playing with his dogs and doing yard work. (RX 1, p.24) Dr. Williams testified that diabetes
predisposes one to developing carpal tunnel, and that Petitioner had been diagnosed with diabetic neuropathy,
which notes the severity of the diabetes and the fact that the nerves had already been affected. He also noted
~ that individuals-with diabetes who undergo- carpal-tunnel surgery do-not do as well because the nerves affected. .-
 with diabetes is due to the blood supply is the outer layer of nerves, therefore, those in the periphery get poor
blood supply. (RX 1, pp. 25-26) He further noted that a diabetic who is riot taking medication could expect
their symptoms to increase. Dr. Williams also discussed the note of Dr. Liu of January 13, 2011, noting that the
Petitioner presented with hand pain which felt like a rock in his palm, he slept wearing gloves, and he had been

out of work at that point for three years because he could not do anything with his restrictions. They had been

trying to use a calcium. channel blocker to increase the blood supply. (RX 1, p.27) Dr. Williams: also. noted

another visit with Dr. Liu on February 28, 2011 in which the Petitioner presented with bilateral hand pain, had
an EMG which confirmed bilateral carpal tunnel, had a redo of the right three weeks after the initial one and -

.4.
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Cwas c\pcnu;cm” ;iﬂht \\mt mdia ting mn the io;ea mand palm w ;tl Lis iast tvo digits bcint the' llnw “and
ntil 1;1 SETS. l—lc mso felr url l constantly ml there was 2 \l wlat i npu ature.d ll'lt.,lcl e lvctﬂ Feen fl\-; right and
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'_ it dididvia .A/x Sy iitic ditin L iUnil An.u Lli i 5:\ }.U' Jz iliwx g 1 in ‘-..iil 3i U&—illuil ST 1\&,\} O ild\- i1 had: \5”1 ;lii ng
plOl’)l\.lﬂH affecting his ring and small fing rers as well as the whole ll"lll hand due’ 1o diabetic pmpmml
neuropathy.  (RX L . 79) Dr. Williams Omed that Pcimonez had L\i(lLil(.L of diabetic pul; vheral. neuropathy,
“cerviecal. radlculopathv and evidence of left shoulder. problems and evidence of radial neryve palsys. (RX1.p34) -
‘He had. high radial nerve palsy because he could not extend the wrist which meant it affected the nerves abo»e"_.
the “elbow. - Dr. Williams: testified  that Petltmmr did not attribute: his hand complamts to the May . 4,.2012.

.-_lnc1dent but rather, solely his left slloulde; In regard to the November 26, 2012 injury he complamed m'unly L

- of his right hand with numbness and . tms_lmg wlnch had béen. thc1e prewously, and: therefore Dr: Will;ams :
: '-'opmed that neither-of the accidents had:caused. or aggravated - any “Lype: of. problem of whtch he cumently._-' I
5-'.';complamed (RX I, P. 35) Dr: Williams testified tllat cubital tunnel was not. supported by his physacal exam.. .
C(RX 114D Dr Wilhams testified that he completed an addendum report of November 27, 2013 afterreview of ©
-~ additional records. Dr. W1ll1ams testified :the records: described polyneuropathy, for. whlch one of the: mam-l_'

" causes is diabetes, causing: multlple nerves to be affected ARX 1;p. 39)-He: noted: that the: Teview: of those
_"-addltlonal records did miot change his opinions. relatzve to. causal connectmn Dr, Wilhams test:ﬁed 0N CTOSS .

exam; the _]Ob dutiés desenbed by Petitioner could cause cubital’ tunnel’ Syndrome in the: absence of his other "

ﬂ__prevmus complaints (RX 1 p 43) ‘He also noted that. those job duties could: not cause ‘a radial ;1europathy,' S
firstly, due to absence of an injury wlnch would require direct impact to the radial nerve and secondly, that the -
‘diagnosis of same was not determmed on exam unttl J uly 29 2013 Tlus was ov er six months followmg end of -
'h1semployment (Rle44) A TR L

Dr Wellmcton Hsu tes’oﬁed on July 22 201 5 that he 1s a board cemﬁed orthopedzc surgeon and completed an
*initial evaluatlon on May 22014 at which pomt he rev1ewed medical records mcluswe of rccords complaminﬂi_ e
~of hand ‘pain 'since - 2008""'an’ ‘MR of the cervical ‘Spine on May 31, 2011 as. ‘well as a lumbar- ‘MRIand -
'chlropractlc visits ds well as’another MRI of the cervical spine in: January, 2013 an EMG i in January of 2(}13 o
and MRI of the cervical spine on July 30,2013 Dr. Hsu testified he doés not utiltze EMG in ‘his practice as he'
_'beheves they are somewhat tnreliable. and operator—dependent but he did consider it as they were completed in -
this case. He stated at the time of his evaluation; Petitioner's. complamts mcluded neck pain; right-sided hand,
wrist and elbow pain, and some hand weakness. He prowded of a:November 20, 2012 accident when liftinga - -
' cyhnder out.of a vehicle i injuring his nght arm and. neck again. He testified that the physwal exam demonstrated o
full ‘range of motion -of the cervical spine: with positive Spurlmgs sign on the tight, with no 'other positive -
findings, except weakness in the right hand. that was evidenced with abductor polhms brevis weakness. Dr. Hsu
opined that based upon ‘the mechanism of i injury he may have suffered a cervical strain which had: resolved he -
‘had -pre- -existing cervical spondyloms (RX3; P 11) Dr. Hsu opined that both - injuries which were descnbed_ :
were: of low impact,-and. therefore he’ ‘may have  suffered cervical strains for cach.  The' MRI Teports.
demonstrated cervical spondylos1s Wthh Wwere 1n no. way related (RX 3,p.13)Dr. Hsu. opmed that at the time *
of his evaluation, ‘although his symptoms were unrelated to the work accxdents that a steroid i injection-as well as:
physical therapy would be reasonable to tréat his pain. . ‘He noted that this was related to the pre-existing
cervical spondylitic condition. (RX 3, P 15) Dr. Hsu test1ﬁed that he evaluated Petitioner again on April 29,
2015, reviewed records of the cerv1cal spine from May: 19,2014, records of Dr. Nardone and Dr. Eubanks and
elicited complamts of” numbness and. tmglmg of the ri ght hand as well as nieck pain." Exam on this occasion’
demonstrated full: range of motion ‘of the cervical spine, normal neurologm exam and negatlve Spurlmgs test
compared to the prior time. Dr. Hsu opined at this time, he had no necessity of additional-care for his cervical
spine, as there was no ﬁmcuonal dlsabzlxty on physxcal exam (RX 3 p 18) He opiaed he could return to work '
wzthout restncnon (Id 2 19) ' _ L S . SRR



Petitioner ultimately underwent cervical fusion with Dr. Nardone and alleged an allergic reaction, so had

hardware removed by Dr. Boyer. Petitioner states his neck feels the same, pointing to the left side of his neck,
parallel to his ear. - | -
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Conclusions of Law

The Arbitrator renders the following with respect to (C), did an accident occur which arose out of Petitioner’s
employ and (E), notice: '

The Arbitrator notes that there is a discrepancy as to when the alleged accident occurred as Perez stated prior to
Thanksgiving and Petitioner testified November 26, 2012 which was after Thanksgiving. She also alleges this
involves the left shoulder, which is not the contention of Petitioner, The Arbitrator notes bias which is reflected
in the ackriowledgement not only of their friendship, but also her more recent disgruntlement with Respondent.
Petitioner repeatedly advises his physicians he needs to continue working due to financial concerns from his
long stint of unemployment following his work accident with Paul and Mike Transmission. Petitioner alleges a
specific incident and therefore is required to establish time, place and location. Petitioner at best, is a poor

historian, He testifies to various conditions and denies they pre-dated his employ which is directly contradicted
by medical records. He further testifies that when he presented to'Respondent for work, he had no restrictions,-
which is again contraty to the medical records, Petitioner is aware ‘of same- as he discussed them with
Chiropractor Dickhut. Woods who works in the same area as Petitioner, testified he did not know anything
about this alleged work injury. Woods testified that he knew about Petitionier’s ongoing medical care when
Petitioner started including his prior hand problems and tried to steer him lighter work. He also noted Petitioner
routinely asked for assistance with heavier work either from him or the other employees. ~Although Petitioner
had routinely been seeing Chiropractor Dickhut, there is no mention of this incident until the end of January to
him and until January 11, 2013 to Dr. Li. Petitioner’s symptoms immediately pre-date the injury but for the
elbow and cervical spine for which complaints do not appear until weeks following the alleged incident and are
recurrences of conditions previously alleged in: other accidents. The  Arbitrator also notes there were several
comments about Petitioner’s veracity of effort and symptoms; both in contemporary exams such as Dr. Johnson
and Dr. Pegg, as well as in the FCE completed in 2009. The Arbitrator determines based upon a preponderance
of the evidence, Petitioner failed to prove an accident an accident arose out of and in the course of his employ
on November 26, 2012. All other issues are moot. - SRR ' EEEE

.ThéAfbitmto'r_ ﬁrtdsz the fbﬂowing with respéc_r.ro (Fj causal connection:

Petitioner was diagnosed with diabetic neuropathy prior to his employ with Respondent and despite denial of
same, clearly has symptoms associated with ongoing nerve damage resulting in circulatory issues in both the
hands and feet. Petitioner had been under active care for the right hand immediately prior to this alleged injury.
Petitioner did not voice complaint with respect to the right elbow; shoulder and neck until two weeks after the
incident, and had been under active caré in recent months for all these symptoms. Dr. Dickhut only attributes
_____the__ﬁghtf:ShOuldér'i'O__I_hﬁ.iﬁcidef_??__‘f‘f’hi?h he had previously opinied was from overuse arid there was no mention
‘of the incident until January 31, 2013, Dr. Li, who had reviewed rio outside records, opined the incident
aggravated the neck and right shoulder. Dr. Hsu testified the mechanism of injury could be consistent with a
strain but did not aggravate the underlying disease. Dr. Nardone acknowledged no acute findings on MRI, and
in fact 1o real change compared to the pre-employ and no radicular component. Dr. Johnson opined he had
exaggeration of symptoms but a normal exam and MRI of the right shoulder. Dr. Williams testified that the
accident did not cause or aggravate his previous condition which was caused by diabetic neuropathy. The
Arbitrator finds.that based upon the fotality of the medical records, and the opinions of the physicians, that Dr.
Johnson and Williams are. the most persuasive and therefore that there is ‘no causal connection between
Petitioner’s symptoms and alleged work injury. The Arbitrator so finding, renders all other issues moot. .
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. STATE OF ILLINOIS B ) . D Afﬁrm and adopt (no changes) [:I Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
R S )88 & Afﬁrm w1th changes Lo . Rate AdJUStmth Tund (t;S(g))
o COUNTY OF COOK i Yo - Reverse : S . Second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
RN ST o SRR DPTD/Fataidemed R
E DModEfy B SRR @ None ofthe above _' n '

BEFORB THE iLLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

:_:-;aﬁnesrqdva%;éf;,‘:i{zeefl.[ff“

" Wmm%     ; QEEQQ@G‘
Respondent i e s i

DECISION AND OPIN ION ON REVIEW PURSUANT TO 519 ( B) AND SS(A)

T 1me1y Petmon for Rewew havmg been ﬁled by Respondent hereln and notlce given to'_ o -

all partles “the Commlssmn after con31der1ng the issues of accident, ‘causal:connection, ‘medical
. expénses, ._temporary total disabahty and’ prospectwe medical care; and. bemg advised of the facts- '
and law, affirms-and. adopts the Decision of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made a_

| part: hereof with: the changed made below “While' afﬁrmmg and adoptmg the Demsmn of the ' R
' -Arbltrator the Commission writes: add1t10nally on the issues of accident and causal’ connection. - -

The ‘Commission further remands this ‘case to the Arbitrator. for further proceedmgs for a

. determmatlon of a further amount of temporary total ‘compensation or “of compensation for

- permanent dlsablhty, if any, pursuant to 1 homas v. Industrzal Commzsszon 78 Il} 26 327 399 '
_N E 2d 1322 35 1L Dec 794 (1980) ' - SR - '

On June 22 2018 Pet1t1oner a 61 y/o plumber foreman Sustamed an mjury to h1s nght
knee as a result of traversing sta1rcases multiple times while carrying.tools and equipment
welghlng up to 70 Ibs. Petitioner’s treating orthopedlc physmlan Dr. Fuentes, recommended he
- undergo a total knee replacement.  Petitioner’s retained expert, Dr. Tonino, agreed that procedure
would be appropnate and opined that Petitloner S stalr chm’omg activities at work aggravated his
: pre-ex1st1ng condltlon ' : : - CL :
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o Respondent S retamed expert Dr Lle’oer, oprned Petmoner had reached MMI a few
: weeks after his work injury, and that hrs subsequent knee symptorns were eausaﬁy related to his

wmmgtrmg@w,

_ : pre-eXIStmg knee COI’ldltiOﬂS The Arb1trator found the oplmons of Dr; Tonme more: persuaswe_'_._ : .
L _'than the oprnlons of Dr. Lteber awarded Petlttoner 16 weeks of TTD (July 18, 2018 through -+~

o ‘November 5, 2018), his unpa1d rnedrcal blIls and prospectrve rned1ca1 care in the form of a total" L

i 'rlght knee replacement

Whlle afﬁrmrng and adoptmg the Decuuon of the Arbltrator the Commzssron aiso notes--.. R

SR : that after the Arbitrator rendered a Deczsmn in this case;’ and after the' part1es su‘ormtted their - s
S arguments to the Commlssmn the thors Supreme Court 1ssued an’ oplnton in McAllzster LANKHEN

- llinois. Workers’. Compensanon C’omm n, 2020 1L 124828, In that case; the: ‘supreme court
“found the ciarmant’s kniee i injury * ‘arose out ofan’ employment-related risk because the evidence . |
S -estabhshed that at the time of his occurrence, hlS mnjury was ‘caused ‘oy a risk dtstmctly assoc1ated i
: -.;wrth his employment as'a sous- chef 1d. 9§ 47. The court. further ruled that Caterpillar. Tractory. -

- X Indusmal Comm’n, 129 1L 2d 52 (1989) prescnbed the proper test. for analyzmg whether an"_'- o

S m;ury “arises out of”’ a claimant’s employment when the claimant-is mjured while. performmg -

“job. dutles 1nvolv1ng commoil bodﬁy movements,. or routrne “everyday activities.” Jd. 9 60, The |

Lol court found that, “{o}nce it is established that the i injury is: work related,. Caterpzllar Tractor does < _
“not requxre clalmants 10 present addrtronal ev1dence for. work-related 111_]111’165 that are caused by.-’ SN

B -';_-'-.eommon bodﬂy movements or everyday act1v1t1es ” Id

LT = _-'___.In thzs case, Petxtroner m}ured hlS nght knee on June 22 2018 whlle traversmg starrs in a ST
-'_ 'eommercral ’ouﬂdrng without elevators ‘while carrying heavy tools and equ1pment That aet1v1ty

::'Was incidental 1o his asszgned dutles and was an act which his: employer would have reasonabiy;_
_ _'expected him to petform. Aecordmgiy, the Commlssmn finds and .affirms that Petitioner’s injury -

- arose out of hrs employment because it was caused by a nsk drstrnctly assoczated w1th hls ) _
employment . o : s : SRS

S IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the__
: Arbltrator ﬁled November 26 2019 is hereby afﬁrrned and adopted w1th the changes stated _
'herern :

':Arb1trator for further proceedmgs ‘consistent with this Dec1810n but .only aﬁer the latter of . -
expnatron of the time for filing a written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has explred -

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that thls case be rernanded to the N

without the filing of such a wntten request, or. after the tlrne of completron of any 3ud1o1a1 o

: proeeedmgs if such a wrltten request has been ﬁled

. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall pay to
Petlttoner 1nterest under §19(n) of the Act, if any : '
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY T HE COMMISSION ihat Respondent shall have cred1t '
--for all amounts pald 1f any, to or on beha1f of Peutmner on account of S&ld acmdental 1nJury

_ Bond for removal of thls cause to the Circult Court by Respondent is. hereby ﬁxed at the L _'
' sum of $400.00. The party commencing the proceedings for review in the Cn'cmt Court shail ﬁie_. RIEI

o -w1th the Commlssmn a Notlce of Intent to Fﬂe for Rev1ew m Circuzt Court AT

DR _Mmecp

BarbaraNFiores BT T
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NOTICE OF ARBITRATOR DECISION

__'.‘NOVAK SR JAMES o Case# 19wc;000539

- :'_EmpioyeeﬁPetntloner

: -'-_Q‘MVP PLUMB[NG

5 :Emp!oyerlRespondent




CSTATEOFILLINOIS = 0 )
COUNTYOFCOOK =y =

. Second In un Fund (QS('_e) I8y oo FOEER

@None otne aboxe R

ILLI\IOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION cox ._*IISSION S
ARBITRATION DECISION s :
_ 8( A) N

'_ _'-.Employee!Pent:oner

Consohdated cas_

. & "Employer/Respondent :

! i‘_:An App[zcatzon for Aajvustment of C!mm Was ﬁled m thls matter and q- ]\; tzce of Hearmo was malied to each
. party..'Th_e matter was heard _by the Honorable Molly Mason Arbitrator of the Comtmsszon in the c1ty ot 1

. - Diseases ' ;
. Was there an employee employer-reiationshlp‘?

. What Was the date of the acc1dent‘? e

. Was tlmely notlce of the accxdent glven to Respondent‘? _ S
. Is Petltloner S current condmon of :11~be1ng causaily reiated to the mjury? - |
. What were Pet1t1oners earnmgs" 2 e B i
D What was Pet:txoner s age at the tnne of the accxdent'? g _

. What was Pet1t1oner s mantal status at the tlme of the acc;dent" o

: pald alI appropmate charges for all reasonab}e and necessary medlcal serv1ces‘? BRI
K. . Is Petmoner ent1t1ed to. any prospective medlcal care‘? ' ol L d

L. ]X What temporary beneﬁts are in dlspute" R

' []TPD . N Maintenance . TTD |
M D Should penaltles or fees be 1rnposed upon Respondent‘? -
N. . Is Respondent due any credlt'? ' L R

I_O D Gther

E} Dld an acczdent occur that arose out of and in the course of Petmoner s emploment by Respondent" 4

EZ?J Were the med1ca1 serv1ces that were prov1ded to Pet1t1oner reasonable and necessary‘? I—Ias ReSpondent 2 '_ S

ACArbDeci9h} fof) H)() W Rana’olp!r S!reet #8 2()0 Cfucago H_ 606()/ 31‘ 7/81-)' 661[ Toﬂﬁee 866/352 303’3 - Web site: u’uw mr:c 11 gov
-'-_Dounsta!e oﬁ‘ces Col'!mane 618/346 345() Peoua 3()9/671 3019 Roclgford 813/987 7’97 Sprmgf'e[d 21'7/785 708«! e
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FINDINGS S 21 & d ’Ug@

On the date of eccident, June 2'2,' 201 8; Respondent was oper'ating under and subject to the provisions of the
CAct

On this date, an employee employer relatlonshlp did exist between Petitioner and Respondent
On this date, Petitioner did sustain an accident that arose out of'and in the course of employment.
Timely notice of this accident was given to Respondent. '

Petitioner's current condition of ill-being is causally related to the accident.

In the year preceding the i 1n]ury, Petitioner earned 8102 250. 23; the average weekly wage was $2, 018 20
On the date of acc1dent Petltloner was 61 years of age, married with 0 dependent clnldren

Respondent has in part pald reasonable and necessary charges for reasonable and necessary medlcal services.
RX 3. _

Respondent shall be given a credit of $21,527.52 for TTD, SO for TPD, $0 for mamtenance and $0 for other
beneﬁts for a total credit of $21,527.52.

Respondent is entitled to a eredlt of $0 under Section 8(j) of the Act

ORDER _

The Arbitrator finds the care rendered by Parkview Orthopaed1c Group (Dr. Fuentes) to be causally related to
the accident as well as reasonable and necessary. The bills in PX 6 reflect balances of $145.00 and $157.65.
The Arbitrator awards the Parkview Orthopaedic Group bills, subject to the fee schedule and with Respondent
receiving credit for any payments it has made. RX 3. The Arbitrator declines to award the claimed bills from

Greater Chicago Specialty Phy31c1ans (PX 6) because they relate to rheumatolomcal treatment rendered before
the acc1dent

The Arbrtrator finds that Petitioner was temporarily totally disabled frorn July 18, 201 g (the day after his initial
visit to Dr. Fuentes) through November 5, 2018, a period of 16 weeks. Respondent is entitled to credit for the
$21, 527 521in temporary total dlsablhty beneﬁts it paid. Arb Exh I.

The Arbltrator awards prospective care in the form of the r1ght total knee replacement recommended by Dr.
Fuentes

In no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent heanng and determination of an additional amount of
medtcal beneﬁts or compensatlon fora temporary or permanent disability, if any.

RULES REGARDNG APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Revzew wrthrn 30 days aﬂer rece1pt of this

decision, and perfects a review in accordanee with the Act and Rules then thrs decision shall be entered as the
decision of the Cornnussmn : :

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commrssmn reviews th1s award, 1nterest at the rate set forth on the Notice
of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however,
if an employee's appeal results in either no chanoe ora decrease in this award 1nterest shall not acerue.



-7 Signature of Arbitrator L o T Dt
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" He began_wo'_r:king atj'a'differ"

B ._'James Novak Srov MVP Plumb
- 19WC 539 e

L '_Summ_ary'_of 'Disputedtissues" Eh

PeUtroner a 61—year—old piumbrng foreman who made an excellent recovery from accadent- :

: related r;ght knee surgery in 2004 and saw a rheumatologlst for. arthrms in 2017 and 2018 clarms aright = -

: '._l(nee cumulatrve trauma ln;ury of}une 22 2018 Petltloner testrfred he began experrencsng rrght knee
- _strffness and swelilng wh:le usrng stasrs ata multr~story robsrte ona Thursday and Fnday in: latedane:

- 2018, He test;fred there was no eievator at thrs Jobsrte He was_'requlred 10! use stairs to travel betWeen_:. -

__'-::ﬂoors six: and eaght ‘carrying heavy_rtems such as hls tool bucket and a propane tank on some of hIS trrps._' e RO '

nt:si e, where he drd not have to use stairs; the follow_rn_'

' 9 2018_ he saw’ Dr. Wrona his:primary: care physrcran for a prevrously scheduled annual examlnation

oAl : porte_ nght knee symptoms secondary to overuse ten days earlrer He began seerng Dr Fuentes o
“an orth'opedlc surgeon on }uEy 17,2018, with the doctor tak;ng hrm off work and oitrmately

."':'.."recommendrng aright total knee replacement on October 11, 2018. He underwenta Section 12 - L
- examinatioh by Dr Lreber on October 24, 2018 He resumed workrng for Respondent a_fter temporary
: ftotal drsablhty beneflts were drscontrnued in eariy November 2018, At hrs attorney request, he’

o ;underwent an evaiuatlon by Dr Tonrno in March 2019 ‘He'was: strll working: for Respondent as of the |
o hearmg He testrfred that as a foreman he 15 able to prck and choose wh:ch physrcal actrvrtles he

i The dlsputed rssues rnclude accrdent causal connectron nnedrcal eXpenses temporary total
yand. prospe 'trve surgery Arb Exh 1 At - - :

: '_ '_ Arbltrator s_Fmdmgs of Fact

o At the begmnrng of the hearmg, Petrtroner s counsei amended the Appircatron on |ts face to
; _change the date of accrdent from june 23 2018 to 3une 22, 2018 Respondent drd not object to thrs SR
-_'-amendment . SN : R . S ;.

_ Petatloner testrfled he began workmg as a pEumbsng foreman for Respondent in 2001 He _. _
' '._pramanly works in commercral and rndustnal settrngs LT : e

Petrtloner acknowledged mjunng has nght knee at work on January 6 2004 He felt a pop in. has
rlght knee atithe trme ofthis injury. ‘He subsequentty saw Dr. Burra who' operated on hlS right knee on .
' january 22, 2004. Dr. Burta’ documented chondromaiacra in his operatrve report Petrtroner underwent _
_ therapy for hrs nght knee postoperatrvely Dr Burra released Petitioner to full duty in March 2004 S
-~ Petitioner. testif;ed he resumed hls usual dutles for Respondent and contrnued performmg those dutres .
ther‘eaﬂet‘ X R . . R : : X : K

Dr Burra s note ofianuanj 9 2004 describes Petrtroner as-a new patlent A patrent encounter
form” reflects that Petrtroner reported feeirng a pop and’ parn in his right knee while working on January

o 6 2004 Petltroner :dentlfred Respondent as hrs employer ona separate form PX 1, pp 3-4.

- In his mrtlal note ofJanuary 9 2004 Dr Burra descrrbed Pet:troner S galt as antaigrc On rrght
_ knee exammatlon, henoted a moderate effusron SJgnrﬁcant Iatera! ;o;nt line tenderness and fimited _
T flexlon He obtarned rrght knee X- rays whrch showed a very well preserved Jomt space and no loose e
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bodies or fractures, He dlagnosed a lateral meniscus tear. He prescribed tbuprofen, physrcai therapy
and a right knee MRL PX1; pp. 5-7.. “The MR, performed the same day, showed a complex, bucket-
handle type tear of thé lateral meniscus, a horizontal oblique tear of the posterior horn of the medial
meniscus, a medial Baker's cyst, a central distal femoral contusion, a joint effusion and synovms and

“deep chondral erosions with subtle subchondral osseous edema” on the weightbearmg surface of the
lateral femoral condyle. PX1, p. 8. - :

Petitioner returned to Dr. Burra on January 12, 2004, having started therapy in the interim. The
doctor discussed the MRI results and various treatment optaons with Petitioner, noting that Petitioner
elected to undergo surgery. PX1,p. S

In his operatlve report ofJanuarv 22, 2004 Dr. Burra documented a comp!ex lateral meniscus
tear, a minor radial tear of the medial meniscus, a linear area of Grade i chondromalacia tnvolvmg the
center of the trochlea, Grade It and 1l changes involving the lateral femoral condyle and scattered Grade

It changes on the lateral tibial plateau. He indicated that the quahty of the ttssues did not permit him to
repair the meniscal tears. PX 1, pp. 10-11.

At Dr. Burra's drrectron Petitioner underwent physrcal therapy and work condrtromng
postoperatively. On March 7, 2004, Dr. Burra noted that Petitioner denied any symptoms On re-
examination of both knees, he noted no effusion, a symmetric range of motion, no instability and no
joint line tenderness. He described Petitioner as having made an excellent recovery He released
Petitioner to full duty He released Petitioner from careona PRN basrs PX 1, p 14, '

There is no evidence indicating that Petitioner returned to Dr Burra after March 7, 2004,

Petitioner testiﬁed he settled his January 6, 2004 right knee injury claim with West Bend
Insurance on June 17, 2004. He represented himself in this claim. West Bend contacted him via

telephone and letter. The settEement was in the amount of $19,266.45. it represented 17.5% loss of
use of the right leg. : :

Petitioner testifEed he was fully recovered and working for Respondent as of June 2004.

Petitroner testified he typically underwent annual phys:cai examinations by hrs pnmary care
physician. Atthose examinations, he alerted his primary care physaczan to any problems he was
experiencing. He is diabetic and takes medication for that condition. -

Petitioner offered into evidence records from Dr. Wrona; his primary care physician. PX 4,
These records date back to June 2002. With the exception of a handwritten entry dated February 26,
2004, which mentions the recent right knee surgery, none of the notes predatingjuiy 9, 2018 mention
any knee problems, They document treatment for varrous health conditions, including diabetes,
hypertensron and gout. PX 4, pp. 13-27. The note concerning Dr. Wrona’s June 12, 2017 examination
describes Petitioner as feeirng “okay.” Dr. Wrona noted a full range of motion on extremrty
examination. He did not record any knee related compiarnts PX 4 pp..13- 16

Petitioner testiﬁed that in September 2017, his primary care physrcaan referred him to a
rheumatologist because he was experiencing swelling and stiffness in his hands.



Records in PX 3 ref ect that on September 14 2017 Petxtroner saw Dr C!aud ia Vergara as a’

S M new patient referred by Dr: Wrona for evaluatton of paln in JOIntS and stn‘fness oD Vergara nated S
- that Petitioner’ compiained ot non- radaatmg achmg and stiffniess in his hands and knees-of oneyears

. 'duratlon She: de5cr|bed Petatroner s’knee pain as’ ‘worse W|th kneeilng " She noted that Petltioner
- 'reported takrng Ad\ni for: pam She also noted a: history of gout in both feet for whach Petltloner '
: reported takmg Ailopurinot S : SRR B S

On exammatuon Dr Vergara noted swol en and tenderjomts in both hands 2 I mrted range of :._ _

' '; motion in both wrrsts :a good range: of motaon in the elbows: and shoutders "bony changes and crepttus R

._.'m [both] knees wath “1o effusaons warmth or tenderness and no: h;p pam on ”Eog roEIm" . She

' '.__"_;ordered Iaboratory studies mdrcatlng her dlfferentral dragnoses included gout; hyperthyrordrsm SRR
1 ;'-rheumatord arthﬂtls and other rnftammatory arthrrtrs She also. obtamed bllaterai hand and knee X rays." PR

: -'The br]aterai knee X rays, obtamed on September 30 2017 showed no' acute fractures or diS]OCa‘ttOF)S

o ¥ mild tncompartmenta! degenerative changes chondrocalcmos;s smali osssﬂc bodres at the posteﬂor
.+ aspectof the right knee and-a small rsght knee Jomt effusson “PX:3, p.17. The radiclogist. found the"

"_b|iateral hand X- rays performed the same day, “ concernmg fora pyrophosphate arthropathy 2 He B '
_'_recommended foiiow up PXS p 18 ; R . A SRR

Pet:t;oner"returned to Dr Vergara on October 3 2017 The doctor s note of that date

o -_documents compiamts of chromc;oxnt pain in the: hands, ‘not tmproved with' Meloxrcam’ " Her S

" exammataon fmdmgs were unchanged She revrewed the results ofthe: Iaboratory studtes and X-rays

S w1th Petrtloner She descnbed the X: rays as showmg evrdence of srgmﬂcant DID wath chondroca!cmosrs

j "_'at wnsts, MCPs and knees She prescrrbed Colchlcme and addrt;onai iaboratory studres She
S encouraged Petrtioner to exer €. PX 3 Pp. 11 13 i SR

Petltioner saw Dr Vergara agam on January 24 2018 The doctor noted that Petrttoner

o complamed of mrld achmg in his back and hands.. She aiso noted that Petitioner reported some relnef of

“morning: stszness in his hands secondary to the Cotchncme Her exam:nation frndmgs were unchanged _
~ ‘She recommended a trial of Predmsone but noted that Petltioner wrshed to wart on thrs ‘She performecl :
- -ultrasounds of both hands She reﬁlfed the medrcatron and drrected Petrtroner to return in two months

Dr Vergara started Petatroner on Predmsone on March 7 2018 after notmg persrstent i
g _-symptoms in both hands an pp '5- 7 : e R

: On March 29 2018 Dr Vergara noted that Petatroner 5 hands remained symptomatlc but that
-~ he reported shght |mprovement with the Prednrsone taper She started Petitroner on Plaquemf and :
-.Suifasaiazme PX 3, pp 2 4 : e R P :

No subsequent notes authored by Dr Vergara are in ev;dence PX 3

_ Pet:tloner testifled that Dr Vergara prescnbed medncatron for arthrrtls but that he drd not take |t
“due to side effects. Pet:troner further testlﬁed that Dr. Vergara drd not recommend any specn‘rc o
_ treatment for hrs knees : S : a '

_ Petatroner testlfred that during the year precedmg June 22 2018 he typu:at!y worked for .
: .Respondent at smgie story structures B S R o
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Petitioner testified that, in late June 2018, he worked for Respondent for two days at an eight-
story structure consisting of four stories of parking and four stories of retail. The job started on a
Thursday. He set up on floor seven and performed work on the sixth, seventh and eighth floors. The
“structure lacked an elevator so he had to use the stairs. On both Thursday and Friday, he used the stairs
between the three floors between three and five times. On some of these trips, he carried his tool

bucket, which weighed between 45 and 50 pounds. On other trips, he carried both the bucketand a
propane torch that weighed 20 pounds. '

Petitioner testified that, as he worked on Thursday and Friday, he began noticing swelling and
stiffness in his right knee. He denied experiencing similar symptoms between the time he recovered
from the knee surgery in 2004 and that Thursday and Fnday

Petlttoner testified he finished the multi-story job on Friday. The followang Monday, he began
working ata dlfferentjobsﬂe where there were no stairs.

Petitioner testified he applied ice to his right knee during this time period but the swelling did
not go down.

Petitioner testified he saw his primary care physician for purposes of an annual physical
examination on July 9, 2018. He had scheduled this appointment before the accident. He complained
of right knee pain to his prlmary care physacnan and told him what he thought the pam stemmed from

Dr. Wrona's note of July 9, 2018 reflects that he saw Petttloner foran annual exammatlon and
medication refill. In contrast with the previous year, he noted that Petitioner admitted to feeling
“rarrible.” He described Petitioner as complaining of “chronic R knee pain” and requesting an

orthopedic referral. He indicated that Petitioner was applymg ice and takmg Ebuprofen but not finding
these measures helpful :

On examination, Dr Wrona noted mild nght knee warmth and positive compressson testmg He
indicated these findings seemed consistent with a meniscal injury. He refilled Petitioner’s medication
for hypertension, diabetes and gout and prescribed a right knee MRL

Dr. Wrona noted that Petitioner described his right knee problem as an “an overuse injury” that
“occurred 10d ago.” PX 4, p. 11.

Petitioner testified that, after he saw Dr. Wrona, he completed an accident report using an
accident date of June 23, 2018. He now recognizes that June 23" fell on a Saturday. He is sure he used
the stairs ata Jobs:te ona Thutsday and Friday although he is not sure of the exact dates

On July 17, 2018, Pet!tloner saw Dr. Fuentes, an orthopedic surgeon afﬂ[lated with Parkview
Orthopaedic Group. Petitioner testified that his primary care physician referred him to Dr. Fuentes. Dr.
Fuentes described Petitioner as a 62- -year-old: p!umber “who complains of pain about the anterior
medial and lateral aspect of the right knee since about 3 weeks ago, associated with swellmg anda
!lmp " He noted that Petitioner had unclergone a rlght knee arthroscopy in 2004.

On initial nght knee exammataon Dr. Fuentes noted mitd swelimg, a mild effusuon pam on
patella compresston medial and lateral joint line tenderness, positive McMurray’s and Apley testing and
no instability. He obtamed right knee X- rays He mterpreted the films as showmg marked degeneratave
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changes of the ?aterat Jomt compartment wnh Almost bone on bone deformrty mrid degenera t
changes of the patellofemorai jomt and mtraartrcular Ioose bodles He daaonosed osteoarthrltls of the
ngnht knee with patel otemorai pain and possrp e medial/iaterai menrscal tears He admm stered a. L
' cort;sone ;njectnon He prescrrbed physrcai therapy and took Pet troner off work PX 1, p 21 i

: Petttroner testlfred he began rece ylng temporary totat drsab:l ty beneﬁts after seemg Dr
.-_'Fuentes onJuiy 1? 2018 ' L B S SR

- Pettt;oner underwent an mrtnai physma[ therapy evatuatlon at Functtona! Therapy & o
7 '-Rehabmtat;on on }uiy 19, 2018 The eva!uatrng theraprst noted a complalnt of nght knee pam srnce June S
o 24 2018 He recorded the foIEowmg account of the work accsdent o Z- . w M e L

Patrent states the knee swetted srgnrfrcantiy w:th pain after workang_
at a Job S|te in whrch he was ambulatrng 7:8 firghts of starrs whrte el
hoidmg bags of toots muitrple times per day for at least 3 days SR

-'PX:{ p 46

Petrtloner retumed to Dr Fuentes on August 9 2018 and reported no rmprovement from the

"rnjectron and therapy The doctor ordered an MRI and piaced therapy on ho]d He dlrected Pet:ttoner o

g '_to rema;n offwork PX1 p 25 _

L The right knee MRt performed wrthout contrast on August' 14 2018 showed adyanced

= oste_ arthritss especraiiy of the lateral -trbiofemoraf compartment extensrve cornplex tears of both the
_ "-medlai and Eaterat memscr' with extrusro'n a Jomt effusron a Baker 5 cyst multeple ioose bodres and
S 'mucmd degeneratton ofthe crucrate irgaments PX}. pp 28 29 TP

S On August 16 2018 Dr Fuentes mformed Petnttoner of the MRI resu!ts and recommended a : N
' ser;es of Orthovrsc ijCtiDnS ‘He |nd=cated he pianned to obtam approvaE from the catrter to start these o
mject:ons He drrected Pet;t:oner to remam off work PX 1 p 30 S S : g c

- Dr Fuentes admmtstered Orthovssc mjectsons on August 23 August 30 September 6 and
_ ;September 13,2018. on September 13,2018, he’ reieasecf Pettt;oner 10’ hght duty as of Monday, _
_ September 17, 2018 wnth no kneehng, squattmg or Iadder chmb;ng untrE the foliowmg off;ce wsrt PX 1

Petitioner téstiﬂe"d 'thet-the brthoyisc'injections.did not h'e'}p. o i

_ Petitloner returned to Dr. Fuentes on October 11 2018 The doctor noted that Petltroner S
_'descrabed h|s knee as feeimg only somewhat better” after the four rnjectnons He'also noted an -
- upcoming mdependent med:cal exammatron He recommended a total knee replacement and
' '.contmued the work restnctrons PX 1 p 40 o - :

At Respondent’s request Dr Lieber conducted a Sectron 12 examrnatlon of Petltroner on
October 24,2018. in his report of that date, the doctor noted a history of the 2004 rlght knee scrgery
and a work event of}une 22,2018. He mdicated that Petltroner reported developmg mcreasrng rzght '
- _knee pam whife usmg statrs at a multz-story Jobsrte for three days : ~
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On right knee examination, Dr. Lieber noted a range of motion from O to 150 degrees, with pain
at the extremes, no effusion, no atrophy, 5/5 strength, no medial joint line tenderness, lateral joint line
tenderness, positive McMurray’s and negative instability testing..

 Dr. Lieber interpreted the July 17, 2018 right knee X-rays as showing “valgus deformity with

. bone-on-bone degeneration of the lateral joint line.” He interpreted the MRI as showing evidence of
degenerative joint disease. He indicated he reviewed Dr. Burra's operative report, Dr. Wrona's note of
July 10; 2018, physical therapy notes and records from Dr. Fuentes.

Dr. Lieber assessed Petitioner as having bone-on-bone degenerative osteoarthritis of the right
knee. He found Petitioner’s history of injury to be consistent with the complaints noted in the
treatment records. He found no causal relationship between Petitioner’s degenerative condition and
the alleged events of June 22, 2018, He related Petitioner’s complaints soléiy to pre- exiéting
degenerative osteoarthritis. He saw no need for treatment refative to the alleged work injury although
he indicated that Dr. Wrona’s initial evaluation might have been of benefit. He found that, with respect
to the work injury, Petitioner reached maximum medical imorovement as of the July 9, 2018 visit to Dr.
Wrona and could resume full duty. He twice stated that Petitioner “sustained no isolated injury to the
right knee.” Lieber Dep Exh 2, p. 4. He agreed that Petitioner required treatment for his degenerative
condition but indicated this need had no relationship to the alleged work event. He did not specaficaliy
cormment on Dr Fuentes’ surglcai recommendation, lieber Dep Exh 2. '

Petitioner testiﬁed that, on November 5, 2018, he received a letter indicating his temporary
total disability benefits were being discontinued as of that date. -

Petitioner testified he resumed working for Respondent at this point. As a foreman, he can pick
and choose what work he performs.

Petitioner returned to Dr. Fuentes on November 29, 2018. The doctor noted that workers’
compensation did not approve the recommended knee replacement based on Dr. Lieber’s causation
opinion. He told Petitioner he would have to use his private health insurance if he wanted to undergo

the replacement. He allowed Petitioner to continue full duty, noting he was doing so at Petitioner’s
request. PX 1, p. 42.

Dr. Tonmo testn‘ted by way of evidence deposition on July 15, 2019 PX 5. Dr. Tenino identified
Tonino Dep Exh 1 as his current Curriculum Vitae.

Dr. Tonino testified he has heen board certified in orthopedic surgery for about thirty years. He
is chief of sports medicine at Loyola. Most of the surgeries he performs involve the knee and shoulder.
E, p. 5. He teaches residents about knee and shoulder surgery. PX5, p. 5. He performs
approxnmately four knee surgeﬂes and four shouider surgerues per week. PX 5 0. 6,

Dr Tomno testified he does not mdependen’dy recalE Petnt;oner and thus needs to rely on his
notes while testifying. PX 5, p. 6. In connection with the examination he performed he reviewed

records from Dr. Burra, Parkwew Orthopaedncs, Prtmary Care Heaith and DuPage Medtcai Group. PX5,
p.7.

_ Dr. Tonino testified that Petitioner reported having worked as a plumber_for'thirty years.
Petitioner also reported experiencing right knee pain on June 23, 2018, while climbing up eight stories
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_approxrmately seven trmes a day for a couole of days Petrtloner ndrcated he was not typ callv expected

Cto perform this kind of c[rmbing PX 5.p: 7. ?he event was not. wrtnessed Petrtroner reported seeing:
s L éllldl\/ cdre pnysrcadn on July: g, Aué_o and tnen 5ee ng Dr. ruentes an or{nopedxc surgeon or‘r july
_'17 2018 Dr ?uentes admrnlstered an: mjectioo on that date PXS pp 7 8 ; TR :

Dr Tonmo testrfred that he revi ewed the raght knee MRI performed on August 14 2018 He

i .usually revrews the images as. wellas the Teport. He: lnterpreted the MRIas showrng tears of the medzal SR

R r".'replacement woufd be a reasonable alternative to the arthroscopy he recommended. PXS,p.11.Dr.
o ::Burra s 2004 operatwe report documented chondromalacra That condrtron canbe purely degene _atwe i
€ /frau p.12; The stai chmbing and carry:ng Petlt:oner:-: R R

e and lateral menrscr, Ioose bodles and some arthr;trs of the taterel compartment PX5, p 8. S

e -Dr 'Tonmo testifted that Petrtroner complamed of nght knee pam and Weakness He suspected
. .that Pet;taoner had some sort: of mechanrcal symptoms such as a menlscai ptoblem or a loose body
L “krnd ofcatchmg inhi knee_ PX_S p.8 : : ; N S

. Dr. Tonrno testlﬂed he obtarned werghtbeanng X-rays whrch showed "some degeneratwe' " '

o "i"-'-..:changes but not any bone-on-bon: changes " He: recommended an. arthroscopy based on the fact that wahe

Petrt;oner had “some but not terrlbl: arthrttrs ln tns-l(nee @ PX 5 3p, Qi

Lo {Dr. 'Tonmo testlfred that the symptoms Petrtloner reported were, at: least m part related to the _' ; .
N actrv;ty of stair chmbmg He has not seen’ Petrt:oner sance March and would have tore: examrne h;m to
comment on’ the quest;on of whether physrcaltherapy is: approprrate PX 5, p: 10. _A-total knee FER s LA

. Dr.Tonino noted that, m March 2004 Dr Burra descrlbed Pet:_ oner: as: makmg an excelient
recovery from the: knee surgery There is no evrdence that any physzc:an prescrlbed an MRI; thera py,

L m;ectlons ora replacement for Petstloner s rrght knee between March 17, 2004 and June 23 2018 PX 5 S

'_p 14. Dr Vergara did not- recommend any knee treatment in September 2017 PX 5; p. 16.. The rrght _ o
~knee X- ~rays: of September 30 2017 did not show: pathology requrrmg knee replacement PX5;p. 16 At T

. least part of Petltloner s nght knee MRI fmdmgs of August 2018 predated the starr clrmbsng mcldent PX o
':5p18 ' L . el S ;

-or. Tonmo testlfred he does not recall seetng any records between 2004 and June 2018

'docdmentrng srgmflcant right knee swellrng PXS , P 19 He IS not’ sure whether Petrtroner’s arthrrtls S

.'-was truly rheumatoxd arthritis. PX 5 p.21

Dr Tonmo testrﬁed that the changes shown on the August 2018 MR! would not have developed L

-W|thrn two' months but that the stair clrmbmg Petltioner described would have placed forces onthe knee "
- joant equrva!ent 1o three to four trmes Petrtroner 5 body we;ght Those forces could have aggraveted
: Petrtroner 3 condltion PX 5, p 21 ol : : - S -

: Under cross-exammatron, Dr Ton:no test;fled he is in the process of recertrfyrng He was last
certrfred in orthopedlc surgery. nine or ten years, ago. PX5, p. 22. He acknowledged that Petltroner has.
o Type 2 diabetes and gout He. also acknowfedged that Petitioner is obese. He is not aware: of- any imk
' 'between dsabetes and knee pem Gout and obesrty can affect the knees.: Rheumatoad arthntss can
’affect the joints. PX 5 Pp. 23 24, Petltioner Was 62y years: old as ‘of hts examlnatron Advancmg age can o
B be a nsk factor for knee parn Px 5 p 24 Chondrocalclnos;s is:a cond:tron li’l whrch ca!crum forms



crystals that build up in the cartilage of a person’s joints, including the knee jomts Chondroca!cmosrs
can cause a person’s knee to become red, hot, swollen and stiff. Chondrocalcinosis is sometimes called

“pseudo gout.” PX5, p. 25. Dr, Burra's 2004 operative report shows that Petitioner had Grade Il and
Grade Hl changes. It |s'p0551b|e but not hecessarily likely that these changes would: worsen overtime.
PX 5, p. 26. The 2004 MRI did not show loose bodies but the 2018 MRt did. He does not specrﬁcaEly
recall whether he reviewed the images of Petitioner’s 2018 MRI. PX 5, pp. 27- 28. If loose bodies get
caught up in the knee joint, they can cause pain, swelling and reduced motion. PX 5, p. 28. The 2018
MRI showed a Baker’s cyst. A Baker’s cyst is “kind of like a ganghon cyst of the knee joint. " It results
from degeneration of the meniscus. PX5, p. 30. The rrght knee X-rays he obtained did not show bone-
on-bone changes. PX5, p. 30. When he examined Petitioner, he did not note any right knee effusion or
instability. He noted a svmmetric range of motion in both knees. PX5, p 31:

Dr. Tonmo acknowledged it is difficult to say which part of Petitioner 5 chdndr'omalacia was
aggravated. If a doctor had a patient with an MR like Petitioner’s, he would probably want to have the
patient avoid a lot of stair work because going up and down stairs can aggravate the chondromalacia
under the kneecap. PX5, p. 32. Hypothetically, Petitioner’s right knee pain.could have gone away a
couple of days after the stair usage. Some of the chondromalacia pre-existed the stair usage. PX 5, pp.
32-33. He noted no right knee warmth or redness when he examined Petitioner. PX 5, p. 33. Absent
any history of trauma, Petitioner’s complaints could be just the chondrocalcmosrs actmg up. PX5, p. 34.
He does not know what type of equipment Petitioner carried while using the stasrs Plumbing
equipment could consist of a wrench. PX5, p. 34. From his perspectwe just gomg up and down stairs
was enough. Stair usage creates forces on the knee jomt equwa!ent to three to four times a person’s
body weight, PX 5, p. 35: He did not impose any work restrictions on Petitioner. A sensataon of:
weakness or giving way in the knee can be caused by meniscal tearing or loose bodies. PX5, p. 36. He
charged $1,500 for examining Petitioner. PX5, p. 36. He also treats patients pursuing workers’
compensation claims. He charges $2,000 for a two hour deposition. PX5, p. 37. When he examines an
individua! he typrcaily does not operate on that individual. PX'5, p. 38. He sent hisreport to Petitioner’s
counsel and'no one else. PX 5, p. 38.- He did not speak weth any physician affiliated with Greater
Chicage Specialty Physicians relative to Petitioner. PX5, p. 40. Patitioner was taking several -

medications, including Allopurinal for gout, before June 2018. PX5, p. 40 The stair usage could have
caused a temporary aggravatron PXS D, 41,

On redlrect Dr Tonino testrﬁed that Petitioner’s symptoms drd not improve after une 2018.
Gout can be anywhere in the body, |nc|udmg the feet and hands. PX35, p. 42. Loose bodies can go inside
a Baker's cyst. In Petitioner’s case, some of the loose bodies are inside the cyst and some are outside it.
PX5, p. 43. If Petitioner carraed a 40-pound bucket on the stairs, that would increase the stress on the
knees. PX5,p. 45. The hlgher the stress, the more likely the aggravatron PX5, p. 46. About 70% of the
examinations he performs are for insurance compames PX 5, p. 46. When it comes. to. rendermg b=
causation opinion, it makes no difference to him who is paying him. PX 5, p.47. He rnformecE Petitioner
that there no physacaan patlent re{atlonshrp exrsted PX 5, p. 47,

Respondent 5 counsel made several Ghere-based ob;ectlons durlng Pr. Tonino's testrmonv The

Arbitrator was unable to rule on those ObjECtiOﬂS since Dr Tomno s examination report is-not in:
ewdence '

Pet:ttoner retumed to Dr. Fuentes on August 1, 2019, The doctor noted that Petitioner
compiamed of persistent right knee pain, mostly over the lateral. aspect of the knee. He described -
Pet:tloner as exhlbitmg a moderate limp: On exammataon he noted mild swellmg and effuszon He .
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obta ned repeat ngnt knee X rays wh|ch showed marked narrowrng of the %aterai jOI!’]t compertm ent
“with almost i}one on- bone deforrnlty " He admzmstered 2 repeat cortrsone m;ection lnto the nght knee o

.;oint and aUam recommended a toral knee arthropiasty ex 2 p 8

Dr Lreber testrﬁed by way of evi dence deposrtron on August 7 2019 Dr. Lreber testrfred he

: obta;ned board certrﬂcatron in orthopedrc surgery in 1990 He has srnce been recertrfred RX1, p 6.,

'1987 and 1988 he underwent fellowshrp trarnlng in: sports medrcme arthritls and }omt rep]acem ents

e specaﬂcaily the hrp and knee. RX.1,p.6. He has’ pz‘rvrleges at Good Samarrtan and E%mhurst Hospitals L

. _RX 1 p 7 He identrfled Lleber Dep Exh 1 as h[s current CV RX 1, p 7

E e 9 When he conducts an exammetron, nt rs hrs practice to RO
- _".examanee He: tnen goes in, repeats the quest:ons : nd rev Ws’ the exammee s sub;ectwe comp!amts RS B ) _'
oL iHethen performs a physrcal examrnatron He: revrews whatever records have been prowded formulates_'-’ AR
g "-a dlagn051s and typrcafly responds to ques‘nons RXE:'l':p 11 - RPN

Dr Lreber testn‘red he examrned Petltroner-zonce He ldentrﬂed Lreber Dep Exh 2 as the re port he- L

' 've one' of hIS assrstants :ntervrew the

Dr Lreber te'st;fled he was able to obtarn a hlstory from Petltloner Petltloner retated

o developing rlght knee parn after. chmbmg stalrs at a Jobsate SiX or seven trmes a day for three days (R
R Petrtioner rndrcated he was prevrousiy parn free RX 1 p 11 12 ER A

Dr Lreber testrfred that Petrt;oner denred pam wrth waikrng but mdrcated he expenenced pam o

'_.'_:','whe "usrng stairs and at mght Petrtroner aiso compiamed of: knee swe!lmg, staffness weakness and -

: “popping: He. rndicat'
._starrs and: ladders work overh' d, kneel and irft up fo 75 pounds RX _pp 12- 13

hls pfumberjob requrred hrr_n to: waik bend push and pu]t heavy ob;ects '-c_ _mb: o

e Dr Lleber testrf:ed that on rsght knee exammatron he noted a fufl range of motron, wrth paan at'-- e

K j-the extremes, no ewdence of swelhng, erythema, atrophy or effusron good strength inthe: quadrlceps :- i
-and hamstrmgs tenderness about the iaterai joint line; posrtave McM urray s and Sternmann s; norma! '
.stabrirty testing and no tenderness about the patel[ofemorai;onnt Petrtioner 5 ga;t and hip motson were i

riormal. RX1; p 13 X—rays taken on July: 17 2018 confrrmed a vaigus deform;ty with bone-on- -bone’ e g -' L

':'_degenefatlon of the lateral joint line. The MRI images showed degenerative joint ¢ disease. The MR

: report. documented multiple fmdangs, mcludang degeneratrve osteoarthrrtrs of the Iaterai tlb:aE femoral : _ '
: Jo;nt space compfex teanng of the Eatera! and- med;ai menisc: anda Baker scyst RX 1, pp. 14- 15 He SR
rewewed the: actuaE X-rays and MRI rmages RX i,p. 15. He also reviewed Dr; Burra 52004 operat;ve o
s report Dr Wrona s note ofJuIy 10 2018 phys:cal therapy records and Dr ?uentes records -
- Burra 'S report documented a pre extstrng abnormalzty RX 1 p 16 BRI

Dr i.reber testrfred he dragnosed degeneratave bone -on- bone osteoarthr;trs of the rlght knee

_ -Petrtroner s subjectlve comptamts correlated wrth thrs dragnosrs and wrth the ob}ectrve testrng he -
-_performed RX 1 p 16 L : . R

Dr Lseber found no ca usaE reEationshrp between Petrtroner 5 sub;ectrve compiarnts and the

work- reiated stair.climbing he performed in June 2018 He found no evrdence ofanythmg object:ve

occurnng while Pet:troner was ‘using the’ stairs pEus there was e\ndence of sagmfrcant pre-existing’ right

knee abnormaht:es RX1,p: 17 Dr. Lreber also found no causa! reiatlonshrp between Petitioher’s
'degeneratlve osteoarthrltrs and the stair. cirmbmg Dr Burra $ operatrve report a!ong with the 2018 X-



rays and MRi confirmed the existence of abnormalities that would cause a person to be symptomattc on
a regular basis. RX 1, p. 17

' Dr. tieber testified he fourid ho objective evidence that the stair chmbmg permanently
aggravated the structural patho!ogy in Petitioner’s nght knee. He has no real problem with Dr. Wrona's
initial evaluation of July 9, 2018, since Petitioner complained of symptoms associated with the stair
climbing and “deserved an evaluation by a physician.” No treatment was warranted beyondthat
evaluation, however, relative to the stair climbing. By the time he examined Petitioner, Petitioner had

“reached his pre-injury state and could go back to work without restrictions.” Petitioner reached
maximum medical 1mprovement after his July 9 2018 visit to Dr. Wrona. '

Under Cross- exammatlon, Dr Lleber testtfled that i)r Burra documented chondromalacaa in his
2004 operative report but he (Dr. Lieber) did not make a note as to the grade or extent of that
condition. Even if Dr. Burra did not assign a grade to the chondromalacia, the finding was very
significant. There is no treatment for chondromalacia although Dr. Burra “might have debrided it
slightly.” RX 1, p. 21. The chondromalacia was not Grade IV, for sure, but it could have been Grade |, Il
or lll. RX 1, p. 21. He is not aware of Petitioner having been released to full dutyas a plumber on March
17, 2004 but this would not surprise him. RX 1, pp. 21-22. He did not see any’ records between March
17, 2004 and July 17, 2018 indicating that a physician assessed Petitioner as having osteoarthrms of the
right knee with patellofemoral pain and possibly meniscal tears, Nor did he see any recorcis from the
same time penod lndlcatmg a physician offered Petitioner a rlght knee cortisona m}ectlon RX 1, p. 22.
He saw no records between ‘March 17, 2004 and July 19, 2018 indicating that a provider noted
significant right knee pain and swelling secondary to working at a job requiring walking up and down
flights of stairs. He has no evidence that Petitioner underwent care for right knee swelling during the
two years before the accident. He has no reason to doubt Petitioner’s statement that he developed
right knee swelling during that particular three-day job. RX 1, p. 24. There is no evidence indicating any
physician offered Orthovisc injections or recommended a right knee replacement before June 23, 2018.
Me does not know whether there was anything in the records from 2004 showing that a doctor told
Petitioner he would have nght knee problems in the future. RX1, p 24.

- Dr. Lieber testiﬁecf he retained the cover Ietter he received but not the records. RX 1, p. 26. He
felt it was reasonable for Petitioner to see Dr. Wrona on July 9, 2018. He does not recall what

Petitioner's symptoms were the day before or the day after this visit. He assumes Petmoner was pam
free as of June 19, 2018 RX 1, p- 27.

Dr. Lteber opmeci that osteoarthrztxs cannot be aggravated by trauma Aggravatron isa iegal not
a medical, term. RX 1, p. 27. Osteoarthritis that is quiescent can become symptomatic with trauma. RX
1, p. 28. When Petitxoner was usmg the stairs, he may have been carrying nothing or objects weighing
upto 75 pounds itis more d:ffacuit to control your body wetght when you are stepping down as
opposed to up because the muscles are not trained to fire in the same way. Osteoarthrst;s and. .
- degenerative joint disease can become symptomatic due to overuse. Degenerative Jomt disease can
a!so become symptomatlc when patred w1th trauma RX1, p -29.

Dr. Lieber testifred he receaved no mformation from co- workers mdtcat;ng that Petitioner had a
right knee probiem between lanuary 1, 2017 and June 20, 2018. He is aware that Petitioner worked as a
union piumber but he does not know how long Petitioner worked in this capacity. RX 1, p. 29. No one

prov:ded him with evidence indicating Petitioner cou|d not perform his 1ob due to rlght knee probiems
prior to June 20 2018 RX 1, p.30.
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.t:me He ‘has to hoid the rarlmg while: usmg stairs. :He denied. havmg 1o do thzs before the

s -_ %j%;; %@ | .. |

_ Dr Lleber testlfaed he dld not evaluate Petat:oner for the purpose of determ nrng the pro £ari ety"' SO
of the recommended knee repiacement He: evaluated Petrtioner ia address causatlon He knows 3
.'_Pet troner had a: werght prob!em ‘and that m:ght ar would have prevented him’ from recommendtng a: i
_ replacement He feels uncomfortable addressang the need fora repiacement at thls pomt Froma
o '.textbook standpomt Petrt;oner certamly had some pathology whrch cou!d potentraliy benef t frorn a e
: ._totai knee replacement RX 1, p 31 s R R AN

S Gn redxrect Dr Lleber testn‘led he noted no nght knee sweilang when he exammed Petitloner -
- ;'.Petrtloner was stili complammg of pam at the tlme of his exammatzon ‘RX: 1 : - R

Petrtroner testn red hIS nght knee pam is progressweiy_worsemng He wears a knee brace all the L
cadent He

" how tries to’ work off of ilfts 50 that he can. avord havmg to climb Iadders ‘He was able to clsmb ia dders :

' "'.j-j._'-before the accsdent Hei is. able to kneel but hls right! knee hurts when_

does this and he has to puli

B :-"hzmse!f back up to a: standmg posrtlon"’He isa e'to. mow his lawn becalise he has a: rrding mower He

EELE therr house but someone else'hasto 'us_h her on ‘this ramp He}

' '_has 10 pay somecme to edge his. Iawn H;s W|fe rs”d'rsabled and in j:wheelcharr They have a ramp; at

Bt :to brake He feeis pa;n if he tries to move hrs right foot from the as. pedai o the brake He drd not use ; .

B his left foot to brake’ before the accrdent He saw Dr. Tonino on March 18, 2019, at the request of his*

s '-.attorney He wants to undergo the knee replacement that Dr i:uentes recommended Before the work _: .

|sfme Hels rxght h' ded..

' -.'accrdent no 'ne fecommended a knee replacement.--: He rs als ) '_penencmg back ISSUES but has not RN

: .f._Lrebe '.'had hrm walk : at a tabie bend hls knee and twrst h _ ot He experrenced pam when he bent S
his knee and tw:sted 13 foot Before June 2018 no one d:agnosed hrm wrth osteoarthr;tls HiS Ieft knee S

. Under cross—exammatlen, Pet:troner testlfred that the settEement he rece;ved in connectlon i
N w;th hrs 2004 mjury represented 17.5% of his nght Eeg He has no- 1dea whether there are other terms
~that mean: the: same thingas osteoarthntis 1If his 2004 operatwe report showed. changes cons;stent W|th :

L -chondromaiacna he wou!d not dlspute thlS but no one expEamed thrs to him. He was born on June 26,

- 1956 and is now. 63 years old. He is currently a member of Local 130 His union benefits have not been
'suspended durmg the last f;ve years He. has group health instirance through Biue. Cross/BIue Shreld He -

s drabet:c and has been dragnosed with: gout ‘He: denred havmg brEaterai knee pam durang the last three

years ‘He does not. specrfscaiiy recall’ his- September 2017 appomtment wath Dr Vergara He remembers

o seeang a femaie rheumatologist for: hzs hands He wouid not dlsagree w:th the doctor S records n‘ they

: :show she: noted creprtus in his knees He underwent nght knee X- -rays on September 30, 2017 ‘He does '

' .not understand the vanous medrcal terms ancludmg chondromaiacra loose bodres and effusron that -

appear m the X ray report Dr. Fuentes released hsm to full duty work in November 2018.Dr. ‘I“onmo
~did not. rmpose any. restr:ctrons in"March2019.. The buildmg where he worked onJune 22,2018 was in
s Chscago near O’Hare, but he cannot recall the exact address He was a foreman before the accrdent and

'stdf works |n that capacrty

On redlrect Petitroner testlﬂed he saw a rheumatoiogrst m September 2017 because he was
..exper;encmg swel!mg in ‘his hands. The rheumatologust ordered X- -rays of his hands and knees. After he
L underwent these X- rays ‘the rheumatoioglst did not recommend any knee treatment The doctor .' .
L 'performed uEtrasounds of hss hands but not hrs knees He East saw the rheumatoiog;st on March 29

able to dr;ve but now uses his’ ieft foot ST ADEE
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2018. She did not recommend any right knee treatment or restrictions on that date. He was not
wearing a brace on his right knee at that time. Before the accident, he was & feet, 1 inch tall and

etghed 235 pounds He rode a stationary bicycle for exercise before the accident. He has gamed 15
pounds since the accident He'i is Iess active and no longer rldes the statlonary blcycle

Under re- cross, Petltloner was asked about a note dated March 7,2018 that described. htm as
weighmg 269 pounds. He has no recollection of being at this weight.

in addition to Dr. Lieber’s deposition, Respondeot offered into evidence a response it filed to
Petitioner’s petition for penalties and fees (RX 2) [Petitioner did not place penaitses and fees at issue at
the hearing, Arb Exh 1], a print-out of the medical payments it made (RX 3) and a letter its counsel sent

to Petitioner’s counsel on September 10, 2019, denymg paymenis reEatsng fo Petittoner s August 1, 2019
visit to Dr. Fuentes {RX 4} :

Arbitrator’s Credibility Assessmen't_

Petitioner’s lengthy tenure and supervisory role at Respondent weigh Eh h_is favor, credibility-
wise, : '

The Arbttrator finds cred:ble Petitioner’s description of the stair usage and carrymg he
performed at a multi-story construction site in late June 2018. No one affiliated with Respondent
contradicted Petitioner’s testimony that this site lacked an elevator and that he was thus required to
frequently climb stairs while working on three levels, sometimes while carrying his tool bucket and/or a
propane tank. Also credible was Petitioner’s testimony that he started a new job that did not involve
this unusual activity the following Monday and that, as a longtime foreman, he was able to limit some of
his physacat tasks durmg the perlod between the accident and the hearsng

Dr Vergaras tmttai pre- accsdent note of September 14, 2017 reﬂects that Petltloner
complained of his knees as well as his hands. PX 3, p. 14. At the hearing, Petitioner recalled seeing Dr.
Vergara for hand rather than knee complaints. He did not, however, take issue thh the knee
complamts documented in the doctor’s records.

_ Two exammmg physacaans Drs, Tomno and Lieber, commented on causation in this case The
Arbitrator finds some deficiencies in thenr understand:ng ofthe underlymg facts. On darect examination,
Dr. Tonino was asked to assume more intense stair usage and more consistent carrying than Petitioner
uittmateiy testnfted to. This had the potenttai of undermmmg the vahdlty of his causation opmlon but,
under crosss exammatlon he clarified that stair climbing alone places force equwaient to three to four
times one’s body weight on the knees and could aggravate an under!y;ng degenerat;ve condltnon PX 5,
p. 35.. Petitioner questioned some of the notations his doctors made about his weight but no one wouid
dispute that heis a Iarger individual. Dr. Lieber testnﬁed that Petitioner reported traversing stairs ata
mutlti- story structure sixor seven times per day over d three-day peﬂod RX.1,p.11. He expressed no
awareness of Petitioner carrying anything on some of these trips.. For the most part, he based his
causation opinlon ona legal rather than medical concept in his report, he emphas;zed that Petitioner

“sustained no isolated injury to the knee.” Lieber Dep Exh 2. The absence of a specific traumatic event
does not preclude the Arbitrator from fmdmg causation.. Under cross- examlnatlon Dr. Lieber conceded
that overuse can cause an underiymg osteoarthntlc condltion to become symptomatlc
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o Oyerall the Arbrtrator found Dr Tomno more persuasrve than Dr Laeber As noted above Dr.
Lreber premrsed hrs causatron opin on on a toncept outsrde his; area of expertrse ie. the lack of _
evadence of an rsolated m ury to'the knee Dr. Lleber conceded that rt was reasonable ror Petitio; ner to

o seek ‘care wrth Dr. Wrona on July 7, 2018 yet opmeci that somehow Petrt:oner returned to his prern;ury B .

n status and Was capable of resumrng full duty asap lumber: Whrie there is’ evrdence rnd catmg

B Petrt;oner resumed hrs supervrsory duties in early November 2018 after Respondent discont nued hrs
: i'benefrts he credrbly testrfled to s;gnrf;cant ongoing rrght knee complamts that require hrm to wear 8

B liij__'compensabie'ac dent. While itiis
" ithedays, Dr_-. Tonmo test:fse_d_ that sta;r usage alone wrth no assocrated carrymg, places aforc

. _-'-brace and modrfy his: work activities: The Arbrtrator is unable to 1frnd that Petitroner regarned hrs
' -.prevrous ievel of funct;on after the accrdent : L S T -

'Arbit'ra'to"r's 'Conciusioﬁs of 'taw L

' ".'_Dld Petrtroner sustam an acczdent on lune 22 2018 arrsrne out of and in the course of hrs empiov ment? :

" 'Did Petitioner. establrsh a causa! coanectton between the accrdent and hrs cEarmed current rrght knee FC N

o -:'condrtron ofrlE besng__

The Arb!trator f;nds that Petrtroraer sustarned an’ accrdent on .lune 22 2018 secondary to

: : -cumuEative trauma “Noone contradacted Petrtroner s testrmony that the multr story structure where he B 8
'_:-worked lacked an elevator and that he was reQurred to traverse seyeral sets of stairs, sometrmes wh:le :

L carrying: heavy materrals, to perform hrs assrgned taskson the days in questron 'i'he Arbrtrator fm ds that o
these carcumstances created a_rrsk of mjury umque to Petmoner £ employment T

i : Respondent mamtams that Petrtroner
at Petrtroner d:d not:test'fy to usmg starrs thr

' '-equrvalerlt to: three to four-t;mes one ’s. body werght on the knees He went on o testify that' carryrng

actrvrtres were rrot sufﬂceently repetstrve to constltute a o . S
ghout' each of el e

. objects whrie us:ng starrs rncreases that force The: chmbsng, descendlng and carrymg Petttloner et S

o performed dur;ng a compressed perlod was cumulatrve rather than repetatwe m nature

As for causatron Petrtroner is a larger, oEder ;ndrvadual who whrle able to perform hrs regular

= pEumber dutres for years before the accident; had a degeneratrve condrtlon m his rrght knee prior to.

- June: 2018, as. Dr. Tontno acknowledged based on the August 2018 lVlRI lt is axiomatic that employers
R take their employees as they find them Baegett v Industr;ai Commlssron 201 Ill Zd 187 199 (2002)

'-'knee to become painfui and swollen He was abie to get by, before Dr Fuentes took him- off work on’
.Iuly 17, 2018 because he began workmg at a drfferent Jobsrte where there ho- statrs the foilowrng
--Mooday, and because ‘asa foreman he had’ the author:ty to: lrmrt his physrcal tasks The Arbrtrator

views the accidentas aggravatmg an underlymg condrtron and causinga change in Petrtroner’s ability to o :

_ _h.mctron ‘Asthe Appellate Court recently noted in Schroeder vi IWCC, 2017.ill. App. LEXIS 350 (4™ Dist.”
' 2017) |fthe Ellrnozs courts were to hold that the. cnam of—events principle * oniy applred wherea .
‘claimantisina condttron of absolute good health that holdtng would contradlct years of l!l;nois

' '_precedent concerramg pre exrstmg condrtrons

_is Petitioner’entitied to reasonable and necessary'medical ex'pe'nses? :

'. 3 Petitloner cEalms $2 533 34 in medrcal expenses it appears he arrives at thrs frgure by _
o .combmrng the amount hss group carrrer paad (51 070 69) toward the treatment he underwent wrth :

a3



Greater Chicago Specialty Physicians (Dr. Vergara) with a claimed unpaid balance of $1,462.65 relating
to several visits to Parkview Orthopaedic Group (Dr. Fuentes) in 2018 and 2019. PX 6_,

The Arbutrator decimes to award any expeﬂses assoc&ated w1th Dr Vergara s care, Dr: Vergara is
a rheumatologts’c who treated Pet|t10ner on several occasmns before the work accadent PX3,6.

The Arbstrator fmds the treatment underiymg the claimed bl!ls from Parkv;ew/Dr Fuentes to be
causally related to the accident as well as reasonable and necessary. The Arbitrator notes, however,
that the bills in PX 6 show balances of $145.00 and $157.65, not $1,462.65. It is not clear to the
Arbitrator how Petitioner arrived at a balance of $1,462.65. The Arbitrator awards Petitioner the
expenses assoaated_wuth the care Dr. Fuentes provided, subject to the fee schedule and with
Respondent receiving credit for the payments reflected in RX 3.

Is Petitidnef entitled to temporary total disability benefits? -

Petitioner claims he was temporarily totally disabled from July 17, 2018 (the date of his first visit
to Dr. Fuentes) through November 5, 2018 (the date Respondent stopped paying benefits). Respondent
disputes this claimbased on its accident and causation defenses. The parties agree that Respondent
paid 521 572.52in temporary total dlsabmty benefits. Arb Exh 1.

The Arbitrator has pre\nousiy found in Petmoner s favor on the issues of acmdent and causataon.
The Arbitrator finds it reasonable for Dr. Fuentes to have taken Petitioner off work on July 17, 2018,
given his examination findings (PX 1, p. 21) and the nature of Petitioner’s job. Dr. Lieber s October 24,
2018 opinion that Petitioner returned to baseline and was capable of resuming full duty was not
persuasive, as noted above, Petitioner did resume working after Respondent stopped paying him, in

reliance on Dr. Lieber, but his credible testimony establishes he is relymg on a brace and modafy:ng his
actnntles as his foreman status permrts hlm to do.

The Arb:trator finds that Petltioner was temporanly totally disabled from July 18 2018 the day
after he saw Dr. Fuentes, through November 5, 2018, a period of 16 weeks. Pursuant to the parties’
stlpulation, Respondent is entitied to credit for the $21,572.52 in benefits it paid. Arb Exh 1.

Is Petitioner ent;tled 1o prospectlve care?

The Arbitrator has prev:ousiy found in Petltmner s favor on the issues of accu:ient aﬂd causation.
The Arbitrator finds that Petitioner is entitled to prospective care in the form of the nght knee
replacement surgery recommended by Dr. Fuentes. In so finding, the Arbstrator relies on Petztioner 5
failure to respond to conservative care, Petstloner s credible testimony concemmg his ‘worsening right
knee symptoms and brace usage and Dr. Fuentes’ exammataon findings. The Arbﬂtrator also notes that
Dr. Tonino viewed replacement surgery as a reasonabEe treatment optlon While Dr. Lieber was initially
hesitant to comment on the need for this surgery, he ultimately conceded that Petztnoner s knee

pathology is consistent with that of individuals whe can potentially beneflt from repiacement RX 1, p
31.
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18 ‘WC 13557 '

Page 1
STATE OF ILLINOIS o ) _ % Afﬁrm and adopt (no changes) D In_]ured Workerg Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
_ : 388, : D Affirm w1th changes l:] Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g))
. _COUNTY OF .COOK_ '_ ) . - D Reverse - . . Second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
S :':_:.PTD/Fataidemed (R
DMDdlfy R _3_ '_ Noneoftheabove :

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION
Petltmner, :_:._;i o '_ 2 3 E = ﬁ C @ g i

v NO ISWC 13557

o :VILLAGE OF BEDFORD PARK

Respondent

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

szely Petmon fOI‘ Rewew under §19(b) havmg been ﬁled by Pettttoner herem and nottce e
L glven toall parties the Comnuss;on after cons1der1ng the issues of causal connection, temporary
- total dzsablhty, medlcal expenses, prospectxve medical, penalttes and attorney’s fees, -and bemg:-
~advised of the facts and law, affirms and adopts the Decision of the ‘Arbitrator, which is attached
~hereto and made a part hereof. The Commission further remands this case to the Arbitrator for
further proceedmgs fora determmatwn ofa further amount of 1 temporary total compensation or of
- compensation for permanent disablllty, if any, pursuant to T homas V. Indusrrzal Comm n, 78 Ill 2d
' '327 399NE2d 1322 35 1L Dec 794 (1980) - : SR B

- IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the DECISIOH of the
. _Arbltrator ﬁied July 10, 2019 is hereby afﬂrmed and adopted

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY. THE COMMISSION that thls case be remanded to the
Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with this Decision, but only after the latter of
expiration of the time for filing a written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has expired
without the filing of such a ‘written request, or after the time of completlon of any Judic:laf -

__'proceedmgs 1f such a wntten request has been ﬁled : - : :



- :18 WC 13557
: __'Pagez :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petmoner |

o mterest under §}9(n) of the Act if. any

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shaii have credlt :

L for all amounts paxd If any, to or on behaif of Petztloner on account of sa1d acc1dental 1n3 ury

g ::DATED
0020921

— Based upon the named Respondent herein, no bond is. set by the Commlssmn 820 ILCS o S
- 305/]9(}9(2) The party commencmg the: proceedmos for review in the Clrcult Court shail ﬁle w1th R

e the Commlsmon a Notlce of Intent to Fﬁe for Rev1ew 1n Cn‘cuxt Court

MAR 1& 2821

| KAD/as 2

. Thomasltywell/ ¢
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) D fnjured Workers™ Benefit Fund (34Hd))

z i Rare Adiustment Fund (38(gn
_ C{)L'Z\{'i'\'(}F _COOK_ o } S I__]Sewnd Emunhtn(l(\\(e )

1SS,

" ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION
ARBITRATION DECISION

19(b)/8(a)
WILLIAM J. LESNIAK Case # 18 WC 13557
Employee!?etitioner _ o o
v ' Consolidated cases: n/a

V!LLAGE OF BEDFORD PARK

Emp[oyerfRespondent

An Applzcanon for Adjustment of Claim was ﬁled in thiS matter, and a Notzce of Hearing was mailed to each
party The matter was heard by the Honorable DOUGLAS S. STEFFENSON Arbitrator of the Commission,
in the city of CHICAGO, on OCTOBER 9, 2018. After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the
Arbitrator hereby makes ﬁndmgs on the dlsputed issues checked below and attaches those findings to this
document : : U :
DISPUTED ISSUES

A. D Was Respondent operating under and subject to the Illinois Workers' Compensation or Occupational
Diseases Act?

D Was there an employee employer relationship?

D Did an accident occur that arose out of and in the course of Petttloner S empioyment by Respondent‘?
D What was the date of'the aec1dent" ' '

[:[ Was tlmely notice of the aceldent gwen to Respondent? -

K} Is Petitioner's current condition of 1il-be1ng causally related to the m;ury?
D What were Petltioner s earn1ngs‘7

: D What was Petltxoner s age at the time of the acc1dent° | _

D What was Petltloner s mantal status at the t1rne of the acmdent"

. Were the medleal services that were provzded to Petitioner reasonable and neeessary° Has Respondent
- paid all appropnate charges for all reasonable and necessary medleal servmes" -

Eﬂ Is Petitioner ent1tled to any prospectwe med:cal care" _

: f-*-»—-' mo oW o0

| 7‘5

-_L._ . What temporary beneﬁts are in dispute’? _
D TPD: - [] Maintenarice D TTD

M. Ezi Should penaltzes or fees be imposed upon Respondentr’
N. Xis Respondent due any credzt‘? o '

0. D Other '

: ICArbDeclS’(b) 210 IU() W Rando[plx Slreet #8-200 Cf?tcago [L 60601 312/814- 6617 Toll-free 866/352-3033  Web site: www.iwec.il.gov.
Dounsrate oﬁ”ces Coc‘fmswlle 618/345- 3450 Pegria 309/671 3079 Rockfoad 8!,}’987 7292 Spnngf‘e.’d 217/785- 7084 : :




'_.On the (ate ot di_leLl}{ DECEMBER 6 20?7 Respondent }ms opuatmw undu and sub)eet to the prousmns |
~ofthe Act. : S el

On thzs date an employee employer relataonslnp d’td e\ust betn ecn Pentloner and Respondent
_._.-On tlns date Potznoner dzd sustam an- accrdent that arose out ot and m the couxse of employment SO e '
":..'__'Timely nottce of thts acc1dent was gu en to Respondent ' DR AN A

_ "Petrtioners current cond1t1on of 1ll-belng zs not oausally related 10 the accrdent :

'._In the year precedmg the mjury, Pet1t1oner earned $63 739 72 the average weekly wage was $‘! 225 76 _

o On the date of acc1dent Petltioner was 32 years of age smgle w1th 0 dependent chttdren

"_'Respondent has not pa1d all reasonable and necessary charges for all reasonable and necessary medlcal servwes._ | -

._ .'Respondent shall be gwen a credxt of $9 572 52 for TTD $0 00 for TPD 1‘30 00 for mamtenance and L
'_-$3 000 00 for other beneﬁts for a total ered1t 0f$12 572 52 F R o S

- Respondent is entttled to a credrt of $7 134 69 for pald rnedtcat expenses under Sectron 8(]) of the Act

' As detalled in the attached memorandum dlsoussmg F xndlngs of F act and Conelusrons of Law '_ L Z' i

The Arbltrator ﬁnds the Petlttoner falled prove htS current condmon of Ill bemg IS causally related to hls : o
December 6 2017 acczdent and that hIS condrtton aﬁer Apnl 13 201 8 is not causally related to h1s

acmdent date

x _Z_Based upon the prevrous paragraph the Arb1trator ﬁnds the Respondent is not llabie for medlcal
o expenses after Apnl 13 2018 and shall be glven a credtt for all medlcal expenses pald after Apnl 13
2018 S i SR SATEEEN SR

' -_Based upon the ﬁrst paragraph above the Respondent is not ltable for T TD beneﬁts after Apnl 13 2018 : L
and shall be gwen a credtt for al4- day TTD overpayment : . : LR o

Based upon the ﬁrst paragraph above the Petlttoner s clarrn for prospectwe medlcal care after Apnl 13
2018 15 derued SERRRIR : . P _

'. The Petitloner S Petltlon for Penalt:es and Attorney s Fees is demed and
' '.The Respondent shall be glven credlt for those ﬁgures noted above under Sectlon 80) of the Act

In no mstance shall thls award be a bar to subsequent heanng and determlnatlon of an addrtional amount of
medtcal beneﬁts or compensatlon for a temporary or permanent dtsabtlrty, 1f any T

iCArbDecl9(b) PageZ
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RULES REGARDING APPEALS: Unless a party files a Pevition for Review within 30 days after receipt ot this
devisiuii aind perfucts 4 fosivw i accuidaies with the Actund Rules then this decizion shall be entered au the

- decision of the Commission. -

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE: If the C ommission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice
of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however,
if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue.

P

Signature of Arbitrator Date’

JuL 10 2019

ICArbDect9(b) Page 3



WILUAMJ LESNIAK v. VILLAGE OF BEDFORD PARK

18 WC 13557

FINDINGS OF FACTAND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

" f_ | INTRODUCTION

_ _ Thls matter was tned on the F’etrtloners Sectlon 19(b) Petltron before Arbltrator _ ;
o Steffenson on October9 2018 The 1ssues m dlspute were causai connectron medrcai bdls TTD ,
penalnes and attomey 3 fees prospectrve medical care and the Respondent s credlt if. any' S

o .'ﬁ:f(Arbrtrator s Exhlblt 1 and Transcrrpt at 4 6) The partles agreed to receipt of. thls Arbrtratron_' i &

B Decrs;on vra e marf and requested a wr:tten deosron, mcludrng flndmgs of fact and conclus:onsf, i
of faw pursuant to Sectlon 19(b) of the Act (Arb;trators Exhrblt (herernafter Ax) 1 and'-

-.:Transcript {heremafter T)at 8) IR R

FlNDlNGS OF FACT

Petrtloner testrfled th'at he is currently smgie wrth no chridren and iwes m Bedford Park 5

' '_fPetltloner stated that he :s currentiy 33 years of age and has a h:gh school equrva!ency'

| -'-'education fevel Petrtloner d|d adm;t to prror reiated snjurres mciudmg a prior work mjury to'_': S

3 -_the ieft frfth frnger as weli as a pr;or tumor removed from h:s nght blceps datrng back to 1998 o

E '-_'Petrtroner testifled that he had been emp!oyed as'a Pub]:c Works/mamtenance employee smce SR

_ jJune of 2012 Petltroner testzfaed that hiS }ob dutres rnciuded failmg pothofes cuttzng grass,_
R decoratmg burldmgs and snow removaf Pet:troner testn‘led that he performed the same types'
of;obs from the date of hire through the date of hrs accndent i RETRRI o

_ Petrtioner testrfled that on: December 6 2017 he began hls shzft at 7 OO a m. and wouid'_::. |
'have compieted hls shrft at 3: 30 p m Petatroner testtﬂed that on workdays, he: and hrsj'
coworkers would frrst go to a Village haEI in which they were then asmgned their job tasks for '
the day Petltloner testrfred that once they were assngned jOb tasks for the day, they would '

: transport themse[ves to those jobsrtes Petltloner testrfred that there were. certaln }ob act:vrties o

that he wouid perform alone, and other jObS that he would perform wrth a coworker__. '
Petrtroner stated that they would utmze Vil!age vehrcles to perform therr var;ousmbs '

o Petltroner testlfled that on hls alieged accadent date he was assrgned to hang Chrzstmas -

-~ -hghts on trees at the' Veteran’s Memorrai Burtdmg Petrtloner testsﬂed that as part of the jOb o
' _-’_he had to use a iadder to hang the i;ghts on the trees Petltioner testlfred that they arnved at o
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the jobsite at approximately 8:30 a.m., and the accident subsequently occurred at around 9:00

am. Petitioner testified that they had set the ladder up near a 15-foot evergreen tree that they
were going to hang Christmas lights on.

Petrtuoner testified that he was utilizing a Werner 8-foot alummum lacEder with steel
steps. (Petitioner’s Exhibit 12). it was an A-frame type ladder that folds open and stands.
petitioner testified that the lfadder weighed approximately 30 pounds. Petitioner testified that
prior to the accident; the ladder was approximately four feet behind him. Petitioner testified
that the ladder was not brand new, but he did not know its age.

Prror to the accrdent Petitioner testified that he was untangling Christmas l:ghts with a
coworker. Petitioner stated that whlle untangimg the Chrlstmas lights, a gust of wind knocked
the ladder over striking the Petitioner on the back and nght srde of his shoulder Petltloner
could not specifically recall what part of the ladder struck him. He belzeved that it was the top
part of the ladder but could not confirm or deny consrderrng that he dld not see the iadder fall.
Petitioner could not specify the amount of force that the ladder has when it struck hlm

Petitioner confrrmed on cross exammatlon that ;ust prior to the tncrdent he was
untangling Christmas lights with his co-worker, in which Petrtloner s arms were ata 90 degree
level, around waist level. Petitioner admitted that- his arms were not extended upward and/or
out in front of him at the time that the ladder hit him. Petitioner admitted that after the ladder
struck him, he did not fall to the ground and did not lose consciousness. Although Petitioner

testafled at trial that he “belleved” his shoulder popped forward out of p[ace the medlcal
| records sumply do not support the same.’ :

Pet:troner testlfled that after the ladder struck him on the back he feft a trauma to his
right shoulder and upper back. He testified that he yelped in parn and tried to catch his breath
after the incident. Petitioner testified that he developed pain in the right shoulder and upper
back. Petitioner testn‘ted that after about 30 minutes of catching his breath he contmued to
work hanging Chnstmas llghts until his Shtft‘ ended at 3:30, approx;mately six add;t:onal hours
of work after the alleged incident. Petlt:oner admltted that he did not report any accident to
hls supervrsor on Decemher 6, 2017. Petittonet admitted that he did not seek any medical
treatment rmmedlately after the mczdent :

Petrtroner testrfled that when he got home that mght he took Naproxen as well as
lbuprofen He test:fred that his pam got worse. -The followmg day, on December 7, 2017, he
was scheduled to go to work. Petitioner stated that when he showed up to work, he reported a
work i injury to hlS superwsor An mjury report was completed at that tsme

After completron of the injury report Petltloner went to the company. clinic for
_treatment Petitioner testlfled that he was exammed ort December 7 2017 He test;faed that

5
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he provrded a truthfui representatron and descrsptron of h s accadent and condltlon Petrtroner
testified that he was authorrzed return to fight duty work on December 12 2017 Petrt;oner'_-

' admitted that he d:d retum to work at that trme

Petrtloner further admrtted 10 undergomg physrcai therapy durmg that penod .

N Pet;troner ciarmed that the hght dutyJob dutres were berng accommodated but he stri! felt that - -
“he . was domg too much and he contmued to have ongorng pam Petltroner was then' o

. :'recommended to undergo an MRI Petltroner contlnued to follow up w:th Dr. Prllar He c:!armed E
: :.that he was not dorng too much at the jOb and hIS empEoyer toEd hrrn to just reiax R

Accordmg to the Petrtaoner in February of 2018 he was authonzed off work because he: '

-_:-was prescnbed medlcatrons that would have a sedatlon type effect and therefore woutd
'--prevent hlm from workrng Petrtroner drd admrt that he worked from December of 2017 untli T

: _ 'he was authonzed off work due to hrs medlcat;ons rn r’-ebruary of 2018

_ Thereafter Petrtroner test fled that he sought treatment W|th an orthopedlc physraan S
':Dr Maday on March 6 2018 Petltroner testrfled that he provrded Dr Maday wrth a consrstent : |
':-hlstory of hrs acc:dent and condltson that he testrﬁed to at trral Dr.: Maday authonzed

o Petrt;oner off work Eventualiy, Petatroner was recommended to undergo surgery o

Petrtroner testrfled as to the exammatlon he attended wrth Dr Thangamanl on Apni 13

'-_2018 Petltrorrer admrtted that he prov;ded a con5|stent history of hrs accrdent and symptoms_'-'

" toDr. Thangamam Petstloner admltted that Dr Thangamanl performed a physrcai exammatlon_ o o

L '_'on hrm at the trme of the appomtment

. Uitrmateiy, Petrtroner drd undergo surgery on the rrght shoulder on May 17 2018_ :
Petltroner testrﬁed that he contmued to foilow up with Dr Maday in May and }une of 2018 as' :
-wei] as undergomg regu!ar and consrstent physmal therapy Petrtrouer noted that his - pam b

s began to rncrease in phys:cat therapy and he began to have a rad:atmg pa;n numbness and

'_t:ngilng down the rrght arm, rnto the hand and fmgers Petetloner testrfred that he treated wrth '
- Dri- Maday in July, August and aliegedly in September 2018 Petrtroner did. admlt that in July of
'_ -2018 he had: almost reached fuli range of motron of the rlght shoulder, but since that trme his

'shoulder has worsened Petrtloner testahed that he. underwent therapy through October of'

'2018

Petltroner testrfted that he dzd foliow up wrth Dr I\/Iaday on September 25, 2018 There

was no evrdence of that wsrt rn the submrtted tr;al exhrbrts Pet:troner testrfied that he was - .

_- allegediy dragnosed wrth severe brceps tendmltrs and was strit undergomg physrcal therapy
_ 'Petmoner contmued to be authonzed off work. - Petrtroner test;f;ed that he’ also prevrousiy
‘underwent an mjectron to the back of the shoulder and the front of the shouider Petrtroner -
- ":testrhed that he underwent an updated MRI Wthh aiiegediy revealed severe brceps tenchmtss o
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and a 2-millimeter cyst. Petitioner testified that he was told to stop performing physical
therapy, as it was causing more pain than relief. '

Despite his follow up with Df. Maday in September of 2018, Petitioner admitted that
there was not any specific recommended medical treatment plan for him, other than taking
various medications.

Petitioner testified that he currently lives at home with his brother and his mom.
Petitioner stated that he receives a lot of help at home from his younger brother who takes
care of everything around the house, including cleaning, lawn care and faundry. Petitioner
testified that he can drive but driving with his right arm causes pain,

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Arbitrator adopts the above Findings of Fact in support of the Conclusions of Law
set forth below. T

Issue F: Causal connection

The Arbitrator finds that the Petitioner failed to meet his burden of proof in that his
condition of ill-being as it relates to the rrght shoulder is causally related to his work accident on
December 6, 2017. The Arbitrator finds that Petitioner did sustain an accrdent that day which
'resuited ina spraln/straln and a contusion to the rrght shoulder and upper back The Arbltrator
finds that the Petitioner underwent and received reasonabte and necessary medlcal care
through Aprll 13, 2018 However, based upon the testimony, medrcal ewdence and expert
opinions rendered by Dr. Thangamanr the Arbitrator finds that Petrtloner s surgmal
intervention in May of 2018 and postoperative care is not causally related to the acudent on
December 6, 2017. The Arbitrator frnds that Petltloner reached MMI as a result of his work
accident and did not require medical care related to the accident after Aprrt 13, 2018

Based upon the testlmony, medicat evidence and deposrtlon of Dr. Thangamam the
Arbltrator finds the opinions of Dr. Thangaman; as to causatlon as persuasive and credible. The
Arbitrator fmds that Petitloners accident caused a contusmn to the neck ancf nght shouider
However, based upon the medlca evadence and testimony of Dr. Thangamam the Arbltrator
finds that Petitioner’s MRE fmdmgs and/or any tear:ng and/or shoulder mstabrhty woutd not
have been caused aggravated or acceterated by the mcsdent that occurred when the ladder
struck Petltloner on the shoulder on December 6, 2017 '
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At h;s deposatton Dr Thangamam testlfled that Petltroner proysded a hlstory of the

acc!dent on Decembet &, 2017 Wherem he was struck by a ladder on the: posterior rrght'_ R

_-shoulder and back reglon Petltroner reported pam but did eot fall to the ground or. dislocate .

: hls shouider (Respondent 5 Exhlbtt 2)

Dr Thangamans testtfled that he rev:ewed the contemporaneous and relevant rnedlcal S |

. records at the tlme of his lmtial evaiuatlon in Apnl of 2018 Dr. Thangamani testrfled that he -

: .._revlewed Petltloners MRI WhiCh documented a shallow tear wrthrn the posterlor‘supenor'_-f' o

| -'giencnd labrum mlld dlstaE supraspmatus tendlnosrs and mlld mtra art;cular long head blceps'-_ |

tendlnoms (Respondents Exhibit (heremafter Rx) 2). Dr. Thangamanl testn‘;ed that he R
o revsewed Petit;oner s EMG/NCV study whlch revealed no evadence of cer\ncal radrculopathy or.

o _"'_'brachlal plexopathy Dr Thangamam testrﬂed as to hls physmal exammatlon of the Petltroner m_" '_ -
: ;_'_"Aprii of 2018. Dr. Thangaman: noted that, Petatroner guarded h:s shoulder qulte sngmflcantly,'- L
o _thus zt was drfflcult to performafull examlnatlon - P T e

After Dr Thangamanl s examlnatzon and rewew of the med:cal records m Apnl of 2018

: _' he dlagnosed the Petltloner W|th a rlght shoulder and neck contusron (Rx 2) Dr Thangamam ': -
_opmed that based upon the mechamsm of mjury, wrth a ladder strikmg hls posterlor right |
'_shoulder/back sald acc;dent would not cause a labrai tear shouider mstabllity or rotator cuff' R

' 'tendimt:s (Rx 2) Dr Thangamam further noted that the MRI dld not reveai any sagmfacant-._f

“the !adder Dr Thangaman" pmed that the: fmdlngs on the MRl specnf:cally the mlld posterior; :':

. supertor labral tear and the alleged tendmos:s wouid not have been caused by a strlke tothe

'back of the. shouider on the rlght srde (Id ). Based on the same, Dr Thangamam oplned that':

liegedly struckby

-_the recommended surgery, and any labral or rotator cuff pathology would not be related tothe -
R acc;dent As of Aprll 13 2018 Dr Thangamanl opmed that no further treatment was necessary L

: '_ for Petltloner 5 rlght shouider/neck contusaon Dr Thangamanl oplned that Petltloner would _

- have reached MMi wnthm snx weeks after the mc;dent arguab!y in February of 2018 (Id ) Dr _'

Thangamanl went as far as to say - that any treatment after 6 weeks post accrdent would not_ '
) 'reasonable necessary and causally related to the December 6, 2017 |nc1dent (ld ) '

_ However desplte the opmlons of Dr Thangamanl Petltloner Stl“ underwent surgery
_wrth Dr. Maday on May 17 2018, Dr Thangamanl rewewed satd operatlve report and
'postoperative records On Ju!y 10 2018 Dr. Thangamam authored an addendum report'_:'
: regardlng the updated records After revnew of the records Dr Thangamam opmed that the
surgery was not reasonabie, necessary and/or related to the Petltloner s December 6, 2017
: -accndent Based on the operatlve report Dr Thangamani noted that there was no ewdence of
: posterlor or mfer:or mstabalsty and no ewdence of arthrltrs Dr Thangamam opmed that the B
_operatlve flndmgs were preexls’cmg ancl unrelated to the Petltroner s accndent - B
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On July 10, 2018, Dr. Thangamani opined that the mechanism of simply getting struck in
the back of the right shoulder by a ladder would not cause a distocation or tabral tear, nor
‘would it cause shoulder impingement. (Rx. 2). Dr. Thaﬂcamam opmed that a shoulder
dislocation causing a labral tear would require the arm to be in a flexed, adducted and/or
extemally rotated position. We know that was not the case here, as conf:rmed by the medical
records and Petitioner’'s own testimony. Further, Dr. Thangamam opined that shoulder
impingement syndrome is not caused by an acute injury. Dr. Thangamam opined that the
postoperative diagnosis rendered by Dr. Maday was unrelated to the Petitioner's work injury.
{Rx. 2}. 'Dr Thangamani testified that the alleged diagnosis of posterior—superior labral tearing
and parting tearing of the rotator cuff were preexrstmg conditions, and not caused by the
December6 2017 accident. : :

During his deposition, Dr. Thangamani testified that without an acute shoulder
dislocation because of the accident, Petitioner’s intra-articular pathology (labral tear) would not
been caused by this accident. {(Rx. 2 at 11). Dr. Thangamani testified that the mechéniém of
injury, position of his arms, and the fact that he did not fall to the ground were all rnconsrstent
with the findings of any major intra-articular pathology that would have been caused by gettmg
struck i in the back of the shoulder by a ladder. {(Rx. 2 at 19 28)." Based upon. the mechamsm of
injury, Dr. Thangamam confidently and credibly testified that the accident ‘caused a Fight
shoulder/neck contusion and would not have caused any of the intra-articutar findings on MRI.
(id. at 27}. Dr. Thangamani opined that if Petitioner sustained such a significant trauma to his
right shoulder due to the accident, enough so to potentially cause a dislocation and Iabral tear,
Dr. Thangamani testlfled that there would also be S|gn|f|cant swellmg and brursmg to the same
region, which was not documented on the dlagnostic scans. {Id. at:29). Addttlonally, Dr.
Thangamani testified that the mechanism of injury and location of the ladder striking the
Petitioner on the back of the rlght shoulder would not cause a'labral tear because the scapula
and shoulder blade would be protectmg ‘said area Further, Dr. ‘Thangamani noted that the
operative report documented a posstlve “drive- through” sign, which coincides with shoulder
laxity or mstablllty However, a positive drive- through sign is not indicative of a shoulder
dlslocatron but rather faxity and/or degeneratlon ' - '

Moreover Dr. Thangamanr provrded ample and credlble e\ndence as to how and why he
came to his oplmons that the accident dld not cause any intra-articular pathology F:rst Dr.
Thangaman; confldently testrfred that a traumatlc/acute tear of the labrum would - requ:re a
dislocation. Dr. Thangamanl then prowded multiple examples of what would need to happen
for a labral tear and/or dzslocatlon to oceur based upon Petitioner’s mechamsm of i anjury {Rx. 2
at 61) Dr. Thangamanl testlfled that if Pet|t|oner s right arm was up, extended and externally
rotated and/or Petitloner fell forward onto an outstretched arm after the accrdent then
arguably the mechamsm of i mJury could cause a potentlal labral tear. (Rx. 2 at 61 63).

6 .
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- Dr Thangamanr was provrded numeroos “hypothetrcal” 'srtuatrons in whrch Petrtroner s_ .
:mechanrsm of mjery couid potentraily cause the dlagnostrc frndrngs on Petrtsoner s MRF
'However none of the hypothetrcal mqurries ralsed at the deposrtron are consrstent wrth:?
_ Petrtronerstestamony as tothe events surroundmg hrs accrdent {Rx 2at 61——66} _3

_ Based upon the hrstory provrded to Dr Thangamanr by the Petrtsoner the medrcal-- '
-records and Petrtroner 3 testimony at trial, the facts: estabhsh that when the iadder struck the

'Petitaoner on December 6, 2017 he dld not have hIS rrght arm up |n the arr extended and/or

_ externally rotated Desplte the Petrtroners testrmony, there rs no objectrve or dragnostsc' '_
-evrdence that he sustalned a d|s|ocat|on of the shoulder The facts show that Petit;oner did not:.'-' |

fall to the ground iet alone fall onto an outstretched arm Petltaoner conﬁrmed that after the R

T acctdent he was abie to cont;nue workmg for the remamrng 6 hours of hrs shrft Per Petltroner s

'_: . 'testrmony, at the trme he was struck by the Iadder he was untaeglmg Chrlstmas Ilghts wsth h;s
- z_ﬁarms at hls warst ata 90 degree ievel [ ST e

The Arbitrator notes that Dr Thangamanss testlmony is . further supported by the' _'

| 'contemporaneous medrca! records The December 7, 2017 mrt:al treatmg records from Dr PIHHI’_. '

-from the day after the acctdent document no ecchymosrs swelhng or brursmg (Rx 4) The o

: record noted that there was no jOlﬂt mstab:hty or. mcreased iaxrty in the rlght shouider (Rx 4) e
' Petrtaoner had fuIE actrve range ‘of motron in the ba!aterai upper extremttles Strength was 5/5

'.'bllaterally Further X- rays - reveaied no obvrous fracture or dlstocation Petltloner was'_.'-_-'_'-::_'

o dlagnosed wrth a rlght neck and shoulder contusron (ld )

S Dr Pr[lar never provrded an’ opmlon as. to causation in thls matter ln fact durmg _- :
'Petrtloners January 12 2018 vrsrt wrth Dr. Prilar Dr P;ilar noted that suprasp;natus and- '

ey Brren s testmg were negatrve Dr Priiar did not note any focal weakness zn the shou!der Dr R

Piilar stated that he was not certam that the: smalt iabrai tears were causrng Petltloner s pam_'
| -compiamts {Rx. 4); Desprte the MRI f:ndings, Dr. Prliar contlnued to dlagnose the Pet;troner'- o
' wrth a rrght shouider/neck contUSIon (Rx 4) : I '

Moreover, the Arbltrator fmds the oprmons and treatment recommendatlons of Dr
Maday, as they reiate to the Petltroner S accedent as non persuasrve in terms of causation Dr.
Maday recommended Petrtroner pursue surgrca! mterventron due to mstabrhty of the shouider _
"and !abral pathoiogy found on th